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Department of Planning
Development Assesment Panels

This annual report covers the operations of three inter-related 
State Government entities — the Department of Planning, the 
Western Australian Planning Commission and Development 
Assessment Panels across Western Australia.

Each has separate enabling legislation and responsibilities, details 
of which are explained in this document.

This report also presents a series of audited financial statements 
and performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2014.



Letter of transmittal

Hon John Day MLA
Minister for Planning;  
Culture and the Arts;  
Leader of the House

In accordance with section 61 of the Financial Management Act 2006, 
we submit for your information and presentation to Parliament, the 
Annual Report of the Department of Planning, the Western Australian 
Planning Commission and Development Assessment Panels for the 
year ended 30 June 2014.

The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006, and any other 
relevant written law.

Eric Lumsden PSM
Chairman
Western Australian Planning Commission

30 August 2014

Gail McGowan
Director General
Department of Planning

30 August 2014



Contents

pg02 Executive summary

pg04 The year’s highlights
Highlights for 2013/14 (4)

pg05 Significant issues and trends
Significant issues impacting the  
Western Australian Planning  
Commission (5)
Significant issues impacting the  
Department of Planning (6)
Planning Reform feature (8)

pg09 About us
Western Australian Planning  
Commission (9)
The Department of Planning (10)
Development Assessment Panels (11)
Enabling legislation (11)
Responsible Minister (12)
Legislation administered (12)
Our stakeholders (12)
Shared responsibilities with  
other agencies (12)

pg13 Report on operations
Our operating environment (13)
Joint vision (13)
Strategic goals (13)
Performance management  
framework (13)
Performance Indicator Review (15)
The Planning Program 2013/14 (16)

Services provided by the 
Western Australian Planning 
Commission
Service W1: Statutory planning (17)
Service W2: Strategic planning (21)
Service W3: Asset management (25)

Services provided by the  
Department of Planning
Service D1: Integrated land and  
infrastructure policy development (28)
Service D2: Land accessibility  
planning and policy development (32)

pg36 Managing the Department
Our values (36)
Corporate governance (36)
Risk management (36)
Change management (36)
Internal audit (37)
External audit (37)
Leading and developing  
our people (37)

Managing our relationships (41)
Substantive equality (42)
Reconciliation Action Plan 2013–15 (42)
Freedom of Information (42)
Public information (43)
Managing our resources (43)
Governance and other disclosures (43)
Where to find us (45)

pg46 Appendices (index page)

Appendix 1: Executive descriptor – Term of 
appointment – Department of Planning (47)
Appendix 2: Composition of Western Australian 
Planning Commission (48)
Appendix 3: Western Australian Planning 
Commission committees (52)
Appendix 4: Remuneration for committee 
members (53)
Appendix 5: Performance Indicator Review  
– non auditable (55)

pg56 Financials & KPIs (index page)

Western Australian Planning Commission
Auditor General Independent Auditor's Report (57)
Financial statements (60)
Key performance indicators (102)

Department of Planning
Auditor General Independent Auditor's Report (109)
Financial statements (112)
Key performance indicators (163)

The graphic that appears to the left and on every page works 
as a quick link back to this page. Click on it anywhere in the 
document to return to the Contents, which are also interactive.



Executive summary

Eric Lumsden PSM
Chairman
Western Australian Planning 
Commission

Our focus this year was on bringing the State’s planning 
system to a level of preparedness where it can readily 
support the demands of Western Australia’s predicted 
future growth. With the support of the Department of 
Planning, the Western Australian Planning Commission 
(WAPC) successfully effected a number of fundamental 
planning reforms that will be the drivers of future 
activities to shape our State.

At the start of November, after seven years in the role, 
I resigned my tenure as Director General with the 
Department of Planning to take up the Chair of the 
WAPC. I am keen for the Commission to continue to 
enhance its strategic planning role and ensure that its 
decisions are based on the soundest evidentiary and 
predictive assessments of the community’s needs. To 
this end we have strengthened our relationship with the 
Department to help guide the most effective allocation of 
resources, funded under a Service Delivery Agreement 
to transparently reflect that operational arrangement. The 
Department, for example, will be tasked with delivering 
the Planning Reform: phase 2, which was advanced 
significantly this year.

With an extra two million plus people expected to call 
Western Australia home in the next 40 years, the Phase 
2 planning reforms are now set to further streamline 
approval processes to improve housing affordability, 
ensure continuity of land supply and coordinate essential 
services. Importantly, they will allow WA’s planning 
system to evolve to ensure the State remains an 
internationally competitive place to live and do business. 

Ahead of the release of the phase 2 reforms later in 
2014, we launched the State Planning Strategy 2050, 
in June. This shared growth vision for the State gives a 
strategic planning context for all levels of government, 
community organisations and the private sector to meet 
a potential doubling of WA’s population by 2050.

Among other initiatives progressed this year, which will 
underpin the State’s future planning agenda, are:
 � the development of three sub-regional structure plans, 

against the background of Directions 2031, to identify all 
required land uses for Perth’s North East, North West and 
South Metro-Peel; 

 � the Greater Bunbury Strategy which will guide urban, 
industrial and regional land-use planning and associated 
infrastructure for a population of 150,000 by 2026;

 � new legislation to protect the Swan Valley from 
inappropriate development and ensure it continues as a 
popular destination and a thriving semi-rural community;

 � the introduction of statewide provisions for land-use 
planning in bushfire-prone areas, in response to the 
Keelty Report, through a new bushfire management 
policy and guidelines; and

 � investigation by the Infrastructure Coordinating 
Committee into infrastructure corridors, to examine if 
existing policies and practices need to be improved to 
better protect the State’s strategic infrastructure corridors 
and sites from encroachment by incompatible land uses. 

I am confident we have completed much of the groundwork 
necessary to deliver of a broad set of strategic initiatives 
and frameworks throughout 2014/15, which will redirect 
the focus of planning to shape functional, resilient and 
sustainable future communities for all Western Australians.

I extend my thanks to the Honourable Minister for Planning, 
John Day and all WAPC commissioners and board members 
for their commitment and support through the past year. I 
also acknowledge the contribution of Duncan Ord during his 
four month tenure as acting Director General, Department of 
Planning; and of course that of recently appointed Director 
General, Gail McGowan with whom I am looking forward to 
working closely with during 2014/15.



The 2013/14 operating year has been a year of both 
consolidation and change for the Department of 
Planning. Long-term projects have been progressed 
or come to fruition, procedural reforms embedded 
and advanced, and substantial work completed on 
the massive undertakings to plan for the future of 
Western Australia.

Since taking up the Director General role in April 
this year I have been impressed at the capacity of 
this agency to make a positive difference in shaping 
sustainable communities across the State. This 
report offers an insight into the diversity of planning 
achievements over the past year, as well as the 
significant issues and challenges that lie ahead.

Of highest priority in the coming year will be 
the continuation of the comprehensive planning 
reform process which began with the publication 
in 2009 of Planning Makes it Happen – a blueprint 
for planning reform. Widespread stakeholder 
engagement and community consultation assisted 
in delivering a phase 2 implementation program to 
effect these reforms, bringing the most significant 
changes to the State’s planning system in the past 
50 years.

Some of this work, such as the new Residential 
Design Codes (R-Codes) was gazetted in the 
2013/14; while other initiatives, for example, 
standardising the text and regulations for local 
planning schemes (Model Scheme Text reform) are 
well advanced. The Department is committed to the 
planning reform action plan, published in August 
this year, to deliver the remaining initiatives in the 
short to medium term.

The Department has a strong regional focus 
and dedicated teams which work with Regional 
Development Commissions, local councils and 
other regional stakeholders to improve planning 
outcomes throughout the whole State. A significant 
achievement this year was the finalisation of 
Regional Planning and Infrastructure Frameworks 
for the Mid West and Gascoyne; and the release 
for public comment of Planning and Infrastructure 
Frameworks for the Kimberley, Goldfields and 
Esperance, Wheatbelt, Great Southern and South 
West regions.

Improvements in policies and processes to 
streamline planning decisions will continue. Much 
of this work was initiated by my predecessor 
Eric Lumsden, in his role as Director General of 
Planning for much of the past seven years, as 
well as in his continuing role as Chairman of the 
Western Australian Planning Commission. I also 
acknowledge the role of Duncan Ord who was 
the Planning’s Acting Director General in the first 
quarter of 2014.

Planning, by its very nature, is complex and 
detailed work and I have been impressed by the 
professionalism and dedication of the Department’s 
specialist staff, across all divisions. I extend my 
thanks to all team members for their work and 
support to senior management during the year.

Gail McGowan
Director General
Department of Planning



The year’s highlights

Highlights for 2013/14
In August 2013 the new Residential Design Codes 
(R-Codes) were gazetted to provide more housing 
options in Western Australia. The changes freed 
up regulations on issues such as who could live in 
"granny" flats, and the size of these developments, 
as well as amendments to provisions relating to 
overshadowing, privacy and parking requirements. 
Further information is available at: www.planning.
wa.gov.au/637.asp.

In September 2013, the Minister for Planning 
launched Planning makes it happen: phase two and 
a Discussion Paper on potential reform initiatives 
was advertised for public comment for three 
months. The report on submissions was released 
in May 2014 and is available at www.planning.
wa.gov.au/653.asp.

Department of Planning Director General Eric 
Lumsden was confirmed as Chair of the Western 
Australian Planning Commission in December 
2013. Duncan Ord, Deputy Director General of 
the Department of Aboriginal Affairs stepped in as 
Acting Director General until Gail McGowan took up 
the position of Director General in early April 2014. 

In February 2014 new legislation was foreshadowed 
to further protect the Swan Valley from 
inappropriate development, following the release 
of the Department of Planning’s "The Way Forward" 
document. www.planning.wa.gov.au/7231.asp

In March 2014 the Murdoch Specialised Activity 
Centre Structure Plan was released to provide the 
planning framework for one of Perth’s largest and 
most specialised activity centres. The long-term 
plan will facilitate the transformation of Murdoch 
into an attractive and vibrant urban centre that will 
ultimately accommodate up to 35,000 workers, 
22,000 residents and 44,000 students. www.
planning.wa.gov.au/656.asp

The WAPC’s draft State Bushfires Risk 
Management Policy and Guidelines were released 
for public comment in May 2014. The documents 
aim to reduce the risk of bushfire to people, 
property and infrastructure by encouraging a 
conservative approach to strategic planning, 
subdivision, development and other planning 
decisions proposed in bushfire-prone areas. Further 
information can be found at: www.planning.
wa.gov.au/publications/7055.asp.

Planning Minister John Day launched the 
WAPC’s State Planning Strategy 2050 in June 
2014. Prepared by the Department of Planning, 
the Strategy seeks to build strategic planning 
capacity and capability around a State planning 
vision. The Strategy supports the Government’s 
intention to undertake a collaborative approach to 
planning for the State’s land availability, physical 
and social infrastructure, environment, economic 
development and security. www.planning.wa.gov.
au/publications/6561.asp

www.planning.wa.gov.au/637.asp
www.planning.wa.gov.au/637.asp
www.planning.wa.gov.au/653.asp
www.planning.wa.gov.au/653.asp
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Significant issues impacting the 
Western Australian Planning 
Commission
The Western Australian Planning Commission 
(WAPC) continues to respond to the strategic 
direction of Government as the statutory authority 
with statewide responsibilities for sustainable land-
use planning and development regulation. 
 � The Strategic Assessment for Perth and Peel 

Regions (SAPPR) is under way through an 
agreement between the Commonwealth 
and State Governments and is expected to 
significantly streamline environmental approvals 
processes. The SAPPR urban footprint is 
designed to accommodate a population of at 
least 3.5 million people in Perth and Peel. To 
complement the SAPPR, the WAPC will publish 
sub-regional structure plans and an urban 
consolidation plan to provide greater certainty 
on the pattern of land-use needed to support 
population growth, while facilitating efficient and 
sustainable land development. 

 � The WAPC facilitated a new State Planning 
Strategy 2050, with a key theme of inter-
portfolio collaboration and implementation, to 
guide State authorities and local governments 
on the strategic direction for regional and local 
land-use planning and development. 

 � A planning strategy was been released to guide 
future development of the Greater Bunbury 
area. The strategy allows for growth around 
activity centres and along public transport 
routes and within individual town sites in the 

 � Surplus properties identified under the 
WAPC’s strategic property review continue 
to be prepared for disposal, with the funds 
to be returned to the Metropolitan Region 
Improvement Fund to meet strategic land 
acquisition. 

 � The WAPC developed a draft State Planning 
Policy and associated guidelines on bushfire 
risk management to inform and guide planning 
decision-makers and proponents to mitigate 
the risk of bushfires to people, property and 
infrastructure in bushfire-prone areas. This 
is consistent with the State Government’s 
adoption of the recommendations of the 2011 
Keelty report into the Perth bushfires. 

 � The WAPC undertook a review of State Planning 
Policy 4.1 (Industrial Buffers) to protect strategic 
infrastructure corridors from encroachment by 
incompatible development. 

 � The Stirling City Centre Alliance between 
the City of Stirling and the WAPC ended 
in December 2013. The project resulted 
in a comprehensive understanding of the 

short-term and greenfield development options 
for an urban expansion area in the medium to 
long-term. 

 � The WAPC released five draft Regional 
Planning and Infrastructure Frameworks 
for comment in 2013/14, developed by the 
Department of Planning in collaboration 
with Regional Development Commissions, 
Regional Development Australia, local 
government and regional stakeholders. Each 
framework establishes a regional vision 
and basis for decision-making; identifies 
regional infrastructure projects to advance the 
development of each region; and introduces 
a number of planning initiatives to undertake 
further detailed planning and to guide local 
government decision-making.

 � The acquisition of land for infrastructure 
corridors in the Perth Metropolitan region for 
public transport and to assist with congestion 
mitigation, along with the acquisition of the 
remaining privately owned land within Bush 
Forever sites continues as a priority. 

Significant issues and trends 



Significant issues impacting the 
Department of Planning
The Department has experienced a period of 
sustained change both at a system and service 
delivery level. These changes aim to make the 
Department more flexible and responsive in 
meeting the Government’s objectives of providing 
strategic advice on the management of land-use 
and development, which supports sustainable and 
economic prosperity of Western Australia. 
 � The Minister for Planning launched phase 2 of 

planning reform in September 2013, which aims at 
identifying opportunities for improvement of the 
Western Australian planning system. The public 
response was considered, in the implementation 
of the phase 2 reform agenda to streamline 
approvals processes and improve land-use 
planning and development decisions. 

 � The Strategic Assessment for Perth and Peel 
Regions, under an agreement between the 
Commonwealth and State Governments, is 
expected to significantly streamline environmental 
approvals processes. The Department has a lead 
role in coordinating inter-agency input towards 
forming the spatial framework and developing 
ancillary strategic planning documents on behalf 
of the Western Australian Planning Commission 
(WAPC). 

 � The Department supports the WAPC in developing 
structure plans for selected activity centres and 
corridors, including Stirling, Murdoch, Burswood 
Peninsula, Canning Bridge, Bentley-Curtin Precinct, 
and Scarborough Beach Road Activity Corridor. 

development opportunities and constraints 
for the area, a planning framework for 
the key commercial and retail centres 
with structure planning, local scheme 
amendments and concept level transport 
planning and environmental due diligence. 
A planning framework is being developed to 
build upon the work of the Stirling Alliance. 

 � The Delivering Directions 2031 Report 
Card was published in December 2013. 
This is the second comprehensive report 
card monitoring the progress of the Perth 
and Peel region in achieving the strategic 
planning objectives of Directions 2031 and 
Beyond. 

 � The WAPC developed a planning toolkit, 
Diverse City by Design. Fact sheets explain 
planning terminology and residential 
planning requirements and provide 
examples of how to plan for different 
types of development. The toolkit will 
raise awareness among the public and 
development industry about the benefits 
of a consolidated city and higher residential 
density. 

 � The WAPC’s funding relationship with the 
Department of Planning was reformed 
so that all activities undertaken by the 
Department on behalf of the Commission 
will be funded through a Service Delivery 
Agreement, which better reflects the 
operational arrangement between the two 
entities.



 � Transformation of the Department’s 
geospatial information system continued with 
improvements to the electronic lodgement, 
referrals and approvals system. In 2013/14, the 
Department deployed its new internal geospatial 
viewer and is finalising its automated geospatial 
boundary alignment and data capture system 
for deployment in 2014/15. A system for lodging 
subdivision applications, structure plans and lot 
amalgamations is to be rolled out in 2014/15. 

 � The Department on behalf of the WAPC will 
investigate planning options for identifying, 
reserving and protecting shared infrastructure 
corridors. This is aimed at increasing land 
availability for future network infrastructure 
while developing the mechanisms for 
planning and constructing strategic economic 
infrastructure to use land more efficiently. 

 � The Department continues to support the State 
Government’s Affordable Housing Strategy, and 
is developing a model to utilise WAPC land to 
provide secure tenure for permanent park home 
residents. 

 � The Way Forward - Swan Valley Land Use 
and Management Report was published 
in December 2013 with the Government 
adopting the recommendations in early 2014. 
The recommendations of this report will be 
implemented in 2014/15, and include the 
drafting and introduction of new legislation 
governing land-use planning and development in 
the Swan Valley. 

 � The Alignment Definition report and 
implementation proposal in support of the 

Oakajee-Narngulu Infrastructure Corridor 
defines a preferred alignment to the east of 
Geraldton for a shared infrastructure corridor. 
Environmental and heritage approvals processes 
are progressing in parallel with the adoption of 
the preferred alignment. 

 � The Department also supported the WAPC in its 
functions in 2014/15 in delivering: 
 � Directions 2031 and Beyond, and preparing 

draft associated sub-regional and central 
structure plans for Perth and Peel; 

 � regional planning and infrastructure 
frameworks covering the State’s planning 
regions; 

 � planning instruments to manage bushfire risk; 
 � reviews of State Planning Policies; 
 � completion of the State Planning Strategy 

2050; and 
 � statutory planning assessments.



The phase two Blueprint for planning 
reform will see faster housing approvals 
and significant savings in the cost and 
time taken to develop land. 

Significant changes include:
 � Consistent processing of 

Development Applications across 
local governments.

 � The concurrent amendment of the 
Metropolitan Region Scheme (MRS) 
and local planning schemes.

 � Introduction of an online application 
system to make it easier and faster to 
lodge and track planning applications.

 � A focus on quality design in urban 
infill and high density developments.

 � Changes to the value of the 
thresholds for Development 
Assessment Panels (DAPs).

In 2009 the Western Australian Planning 
Commission and the Department of 
Planning began a comprehensive reform 
process to improve the land-use planning 
and development approvals system in 
Western Australia.

Planning Makes It Happen – a blueprint 
for planning reform sets out 11 key 
strategic priorities and a two year forward 
work program that included 22 actions for 
the State.

In September 2013 the Minister for 
Planning released Planning makes it 
happen: phase two to further streamline 
approval processes to improve housing 
affordability, ensure continuity of land 
supply and coordinate essential services.

Planning Reform Phase Two Discussion 
Paper Summary of submissions was 
released in May 2014. It included detailed 
summary of more than 250 responses 
which were considered before Planning 
makes it happen: phase two blueprint for 
planning reform was to be released in 
August 2014.

www.planning.wa.gov.au/planningreform

Planning reform phase one 
and two provide for the most 

significant change to the State’s 
planning system since 1963.
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Western Australian Planning 
Commission
The Western Australian Planning Commission 
(WAPC) comprises a Chair and 16 members, 
representing industry, government and the 
community. Together, they respond to the strategic 
direction of government on urban, rural and 
regional land-use planning, as well as other land 
development matters throughout Western Australia.

The Commission operates with the support of 
the Department of Planning, which provides 
professional and technical expertise, administrative 
services, and resources to advise the Commission 
and implement its decisions.

About us
Who we are, what we do

The Commission has a broad range of 
responsibilities, including:
 � advising the Minister for Planning on strategic 

land-use planning and land development, 
legislation reform and local planning schemes;

 � making statutory decisions on a range of 
planning application types;

 � the preparation and implementation of the State 
Planning Strategy to provide a vision for the 
future development of Western Australia;

 � the preparation and amendment of 
State planning policies;

 � integrated land-use planning 
strategies for the coordinated 
provision of transport and 
infrastructure for land development;

 � the preparation and review of region 
schemes to cater for anticipated 
growth;

 � monitoring and forecasting land supply 
throughout the State and developing 
strategies to ensure the timely supply 
of affordable residential land; 

 � undertaking research and developing 
planning methods and models relating 
to land-use planning, land development 
and associated matters; and

 � compensating affected landowners 
and acquiring land for public requirement 
reservations in region planning schemes.



Director General 
Gail McGowan

Office of the 
Director General

Strategic Corporate 
Support

Regional Planning 
and Strategy

Perth and Peel 
Planning

Infrastructure, Projects, 
Policy and Research

Executive Support
Assistant  
Director General 
Neil Thomson

Executive Director 
David Saunders

Executive Director 
Sue Burrows

Executive Director 
Anne Hill

Independent Planning 
Reviewer Executive Support Executive Support Executive Support Executive Support

Strategic Workforce 
Services Financial Services Northern Regions Infrastructure & Land 

Use Coordination
Strategic Infrastructure 
& Projects

Intergovernmental Relations 
& Strategic Research Information Services Central Regions Schemes & 

Amendments Policy & Research

Committee Support Strategic Property 
Unit Wheatbelt Region Metro Planning  

North West

Ministerial & Parliamentary 
Services Internal Audit South West Regions Metro Planning  

North East

Property Operations Strategic Regional 
Projects

Metro Planning 
Central

Information 
Management

Metro Planning  
South East

Communication 
Services

Metro Planning  
South West

Strategic Business 
Unit

Statutory Policy 
Implementation

Governance & 
Corporate Planning Peel Planning

Whiteman Park Planning 
Administration

GeoSpatial Planning 
Support

The Department of Planning 
The Department of Planning is made 
up of more than 430 employees from a 
diversity of backgrounds. Most are based 
at the Department’s head office in Perth, 
while other support comes from staff at 
Whiteman Park and regional offices located 
at Broome, Karratha, Geraldton, Mandurah, 
Bunbury and Albany.

The Department provides professional 
and technical expertise, administrative 
services, and resources to advise the 
Western Australian Planning Commission 
and the Minister for Planning, and 
implements decisions relating to the 
planning and development of communities 
throughout the State.

The Department also provides considerable 
assistance to the public with:
 � advice and assistance on land-use 

planning;
 � local government structure planning;
 � the processing of statutory approvals 

for subdivision, strata title and 
development applications;

 � the assessment of local planning 
schemes and scheme amendments;

 � management of reserved land held 
under the region schemes; and

 � the review of region planning  
schemes.



Development Assessment Panels 
Development Assessment Panels (DAPs), which 
commenced operating from 1 July 2011, were set 
up as part of the State Government’s commitment 
to streamline and improve the planning approvals 
process in Western Australia.

A total of 15 DAPs operate across the State, nine 
in regional centres and six in the metropolitan 
area. The panels, comprising a mix of Specialist 
Members with technical expertise and Local 
Government representatives, operate with 
powers to determine applications for development 
approvals in place of the relevant decision-making 
authority.

The introduction of DAPs in Western Australia has 
significant benefits for local governments, the 
development industry, landowners, the general 
community and other stakeholders. They aim to 
improve the planning system by providing more 
transparency, consistency and reliability in decision-
making on complex development applications.

Under the Planning and Development 
(Development Assessment Panel) Regulations 
2011, each development assessment panel (DAP) 
can determine development applications that meet 
set type and value thresholds as if it were the 
responsible authority under the relevant planning 
instrument, such as the local planning scheme 
or region planning scheme. The DAP regulations 
state that DAP applications cannot be determined 
by local government or the Western Australian 
Planning Commission.

The role of DAP members is to determine 
development applications within a certain type and 
value threshold through consistent, accountable, 
and professional decision-making.

There are two different types of DAPs:

Local Development Assessment Panels
A local development assessment panel (LDAP) 
only has one local government within its boundary 
area. An LDAP is established to service a single 
local government, where it is deemed to be a high-
growth local government with enough development 
to support its own DAP. There is currently only one 
LDAP, for the City of Perth.

Joint Development Assessment Panels
Joint development assessment panels (JDAPs) 
are established to service two or more local 
governments. There are 14 JDAPs in Western 
Australia. For more details about metropolitan and 
regional DAPs can be found online at http://daps.
planning.wa.gov.au.

Appendix 4 contains the remuneration data for DAP 
members.

Enabling legislation

Western Australian Planning 
Commission
The Western Australian Planning Commission was 
established under section 7 of the Planning and 
Development Act 2005. 

Department of Planning
The Department of Planning was established under 
section 35 of the Public Sector Management Act 
1994.

Development Assessment Panels
Development Assessment Panels were established 
under part 3 of the Approvals and Related Reforms 
(No.4) (Planning) Act 2010. Commonly known as 
the 2010 Amendment Act it contains a number of 
amendments to the Planning and Development Act 
2005.

Also relevant are the Planning and Development 
(Development Assessment Panels) Regulations 
2011.

http://daps.planning.wa.gov.au
http://daps.planning.wa.gov.au


Department of Planning
The Minister for Planning, principally assisted by 
the Department of Planning, is responsible for the 
administration of the following Acts:
 � Fitzgerald Street Bus Bridge Act 1991
 � Forrest Place and City Station Development Act 1985
 � Hope Valley-Wattleup Redevelopment Act 2000 
 � Metropolitan Region Improvement Tax Act 1959 
 � Metropolitan Region Scheme (Fremantle) Act 1994
 � Perry Lakes Redevelopment Act 2005
 � Planning and Development Act 2005
 � Planning and Development (Consequential and 

Transitional Provisions) Act 2005
 � Port Kennedy Development Agreement Act 1992
 � Road Closure Acts (various) 
 � Swan Valley Planning Act 1995. 

Development Assessment Panels
Development Assessment Panels exercise the 
functions and powers given to it under:
 � the Planning and Development Act 2005; and
 � the Planning and Development (Development 

Assessment Panels) Regulations 2011.

Responsible Minister
Both the Department of Planning (incorporating 
Development Assessment Panels) and Western 
Australian Planning Commission are responsible 
to the Minister for Planning; Culture and the Arts, 
Leader of the House, the Hon John Day BSc 
BDSc MLA.

Legislation administered

Western Australian Planning 
Commission
The Western Australian Planning Commission 
exercises the functions and powers given to it 
under the Planning and Development Act 2005.

The Western Australian Planning Commission is 
responsible for and has decision-making functions 
under the following region planning schemes and 
processes; and strategic and statutory planning 
through the State:
 � Metropolitan Region Scheme;
 � Peel Region Scheme; and
 � Greater Bunbury Region Scheme.

Our stakeholders
As well as the Minister for Planning, the Premier 
and State Parliament, the Western Australian 
Planning Commission, the Department of Planning, 
and Development Assessment Panels interact 
with numerous stakeholders. They include local 
governments, town planning consultants, property 
developers, builders and architects, State and 
federal government agencies, environmental 
groups, community groups, and individual land 
owners and their legal representatives.

Shared responsibilities with other 
agencies
The Western Australian Planning Commission has 
common interests with a number of statutory 
authorities, such as the Environmental Protection 
Authority, the Heritage Council and the Swan River 
Trust, among others. 

The Department of Planning, in its role of 
assisting the Commission with land-use and land 
development, coordinates with a wide range 
of State agencies and State enterprises across 
numerous portfolios. During 2013/14, both the 
Department and the Commission continued to 
foster relationships with local, State and federal 
government agencies through various programs 
and community networks.



Strategic goals
The strategic goals that will enable achievement of 
that joint vision have been identified as:
 � Planning: by improving the planning system 

and delivering plans that more efficiently meet 
changing community demands, we will be 
supporting the development of effective local 
communities.

 � Building partnerships: by strengthening 
our leadership capability through managed 
partnerships and services, we will enhance our 
relationships to assist in achieving our vision 
and the outcomes of our customers and partner 
organisations.

 � Governance: by improving management 
systems and promoting high participation 
and leadership at all levels, we will ensure 
accountability, good governance and financial 
sustainability.

 � Regulation: by improving the efficiency 
of legislated frameworks and supporting 
regulations, we will be adding value to our 
communities.

Our operating environment
With a strong economy and rapidly growing 
population, the demand for land in Western 
Australia continues to be strong. Strategic land-use 
planning for a sustainable future is therefore critical 
and the WAPC with the assistance of the DoP work 
conjointly to that end.

Joint vision
The WAPC/DoP joint vision is "planning makes 
a difference for Western Australia by shaping 
sustainable communities".

This achieved through leadership and stewardship, 
with a focus on:
 � state strategic or statutory policy development;
 � planning communities for the future;
 � facilitating private and public investment; and
 � regulation and education.

Performance management 
framework
The Western Australian Government has five goals 
that guide the development of policies, programs 
and services within its agencies. These are:

Goal 1: State building – major projects
Building strategic infrastructure that will create 
jobs and underpin Western Australia’s long-term 
economic development.

Goal 2: Financial and economic responsibility
Responsibility for managing the State’s finances 
through the efficient and effective delivery of 
services, encouraging economic activity and 
reducing regulatory burdens on the private sector.

Goal 3: Outcome based service delivery
Greater focus on achieving results in key service 
delivery areas for the benefit of all Western 
Australians.

Goal 4: Stronger focus on the regions
Greater focus on service delivery, infrastructure 
investment and economic development to improve 
the overall quality of life in remote and regional 
areas.

Goal 5: Social and economic responsibility
Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a 
socially and environmentally responsible manner 
for the long-term benefit of the State. 

Report on operations



CONTRIBUTION TO GOVERNMENT GOALS

Western Australian Planning Commission
The Western Australian Planning Commission 
contributes to each of the State Government goals in 
general but in particular to Goal 1, by delivering the 
desired outcome of land-use planning and land-use 
implementation strategies to guide the State’s long-
term urban settlement and economic development.

This outcome is achieved through the delivery of 
three services:

SERVICE W1: STATUTORY PLANNING

The utilisation of statutory, consultative, legislative, 
regulatory reform and coordination processes 
that facilitate the implementation of creative and 
innovative strategic regional and local plans and 
policies.

SERVICE W2: STRATEGIC PLANNING

The development and advancement of strategic and 
statutory planning strategies, policies and information 
systems that guide the State’s long-term urban 
settlement, industrial and economic development, 
and the management of the environment in such 
a way that reflects the aspirations of the Western 
Australian community for a high quality of life.

SERVICE W3: ASSET MANAGEMENT

The acquisition, management and disposal of 
properties reserved under the Metropolitan, Peel 
and Greater Bunbury region schemes for primary 
and other regional roads, parks and recreation and 
regional open space areas, special uses including 
planning control area and improvement plans and 
major land development projects.

WAPC’s and Department of Planning outcomes and services, and contribution to the State Government goals

SERVICE
DESIRED 

OUTCOME
GOVERNMENT 

GOAL

Department of Planning

D1. INTEGRATED LAND 
& INFRASTRUCTURE 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT
pg 28

Integration of land systems 
that facilitates economic 
development

Accessibility to serviced 
land and infrastructure

Outcome Based Service Delivery

Greater focus on achieving results 
in key service delivery areas for the 
benefit of all Western Australians

GOAL 3

D2. LAND ACCESSIBILITY 
PLANNING AND 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT
pg 32

W1. STATUTORY PLANNING
pg 17

Land-use planning and land-
use implementation strategies 
to guide the State’s long 
term urban settlement and 
economic development

State building – major projects

Building strategic infrastructure 
that will create jobs and underpin 
Western Australia’s long-term 
economic development

GOAL 1

W2. STRATEGIC PLANNING
 pg 21

W3. ASSET MANAGEMENT
pg 25



Performance Indicator Review
During 2013/14 both the WAPC and the 
Department continued working on a joint review 
of their current outcome structures and corporate 
key performance indicators (KPIs). The outcome 
structures and corporate KPIs are being reviewed 
to facilitate a greater understanding of the 
distinction between WAPC and departmental 
outcomes, with the aim of reporting against new 
corporate KPIs in the future.

Progress of the review to date includes 
the Department gaining the approval of the 
Department of Treasury to abolish the following 
effectiveness performance measures from the 
Department’s Outcome Structure:
 � people in the metropolitan region who live 

within 10 minutes of a major public transport 
route (within a 10-minute walk to a bus stop, 
within a 10-minute ride to a railway station, 
within 10 minutes car travel to a railway 
station); and

 � avoided land consumption costs.

For comparison purposes with previous years, 
the 2013/14 actuals for the above performance 
measures have been reported in Appendix 5. 

Department of Planning
The Department of Planning contributes to each 
of the State Government goals in general, but 
in particular to Goal 3 by delivering two desired 
outcomes: 
 � integration of land systems that facilitate 

economic development; and
 � accessibility to serviced land and infrastructure

Each is achieved through a service:

SERVICE D1: INTEGRATED LAND AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE POLICY DEVELOPMENT

SERVICE D2: LAND ACCESSIBILITY PLANNING AND 
POLICY DEVELOPMENT.

Development Assessment Panels
The 15 Development Assessment Panels (DAPs) 
that operate in metropolitan and regional Western 
Australia contribute to Government Goal 3 with a 
focus on achieving results in key service delivery 
areas for the benefit of all Western Australians. 
DAPs panels are responsible to the Minister 
for Planning, with support coming from the 
Department of Planning. An overview of the DAPs 
application process can be found online at http://
daps.planning.wa.gov.au.

http://daps.planning.wa.gov.au
http://daps.planning.wa.gov.au


Overarching Ministerial objectives
 � Communicate and implement a collaborative 

vision for well managed growth in Perth and 
Western Australia through strong strategic 
planning documents, and planning processes 
that facilitate well designed development and 
increased density and diversity in appropriate 
locations.

 � Ongoing reform and improvement of the 
planning system, to respond to growth and 
demographic change, streamline planning 
processes, and achieve improved outcomes in 
the physical environment.

 � Ensure the Department’s contribution to 
land supply continues to keep pace with the 
economic and population growth of the State 
(safeguard against future land supply crises).

 � Help make Western Australia a more affordable 
place to live, through assisting in the delivery 
of the State’s Housing Affordability Strategy 
and making effective and efficient planning 
decisions. 

 � Coordinate infrastructure planning and provision 
through integrated planning and stakeholder 
liaison.

 � Continue to provide considered planning advice 
to the Minister’s office and other stakeholders, 
and promote the values of transparent decision-
making and orderly and proper planning. 

The Planning Program 2013/14
The overarching land-use planning obligations 
and the correlated outcomes of the Commission 
and supported by the Department, as previously 
detailed, are actualised in the WAPC’s Planning 
Program.

The program for 2013/14 was determined at the 
start of the financial year, with the Chairman of 
the WAPC and the Department working closely 
with the Minister for Planning to identify State 
planning objectives and priorities. Ultimately, in 
acknowledging the significant volume of work to 
be undertaken and the number of priority projects 
proposed for both the Department and WAPC, the 
Minister confirmed his overarching objectives and 
priorities for the delivery of the proposed planning 
program.

These objectives and priorities provided the focus 
and direction for all business areas.



arrangements in the Greater Bunbury Region 
Scheme area were considered and determined, 
together with a further five from the preceding 
financial year. During the reporting period 17 
development applications were approved, two 
were cancelled, five were refused and one is 
deferred awaiting determination.

South West schemes, amendments and local 
planning strategies
Key statutory projects finalised or substantially 
completed in 2013/14:
 � Busselton Local Planning Scheme No. 21
 � Donnybrook – Balingup Local Planning  

Scheme No. 7
 � Ambergate North Structure Plan (Busselton)
 � Wimbridge Precinct Structure Plan (Bunbury) 
 � Koombana North –Bunbury Waterfront Structure 

Plan.

In addition 26 Amendments were finalised.

Greater Bunbury Region Scheme
This year four amendments to the Greater Bunbury 
Region Scheme were finalised and a further three 
amendments were initiated or are ongoing in 
various stages of the amendment process.

The main accomplishment was the finalisation 
and gazettal of an amendment to the GBRS to 
introduce a new zone – Industrial Deferred Zone. 
This zone will allow the WAPC, before the return 
of a development upswing, the opportunity 
to strategically designate areas for industrial 
development, subject to further detailed planning. 
It will provide landowners/proponents with surety 
that additional detailed planning can occur once 
identified issues are resolved. The Industrial 
Deferred Zone will only apply to strategically 
identified industrial areas, which have been 
identified through a public process and can be 
logically developed in relation to endorsed urban 
growth strategies, allowing stakeholders to be 
engaged from vision setting to subdivision approval.

The Greater Bunbury Region Scheme has control 
over the use and development of land; however, 
there are delegation arrangements to allow 
appropriate proposals to be determined by local 
government. This year, 19 development applications 
that were outside the scope of these delegation 

Services provided by the Western 
Australian Planning Commission
Complementing and supporting the Planning 
Program, operations at the Commission supported 
by the Department, encompass the following core 
activities. During 2013/14 the Western Australian 
Planning Commission provided three key services, 
namely Statutory planning, Strategic planning and 
Asset management.

SERVICE W1: STATUTORY PLANNING

Metropolitan Region Scheme amendments
The 2013/14 operating year saw two major 
amendments finalised to the Metropolitan Region 
Scheme, while a further 10 major amendments 
were initiated or are ongoing in various stages of 
the amendment process.

Peel Region Scheme amendments
The 2013/14 operating year saw four amendments 
finalised to the Peel Region Scheme, one of which 
was also initiated during 2013/14. No further 
amendments were initiated in 2013/14.

Beyond these key objectives, the projects 
directed at delivering services sought by the 
Government, the Commission or Department 

are detailed according to their service.



MAJOR MINOR OTHER

Amendment title Website address IN TAB FIN IN FIN IN FIN

METROPOLITAN REGION SCHEME AMENDMENTS
1222/41 Perth–Darwin National Highway www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6385.asp ü ü
1225/41 Upper Swan Urban Precinct www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6365.asp ü ü
1239/41 Gidgegannup Urban Precinct www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6548.asp ü
1240/41 South Forrestdale Business Park www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6557.asp ü
1242/41 Lot 911 Midland Road, Hazelmere www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6708.asp ü
1270/41 Ocean Reef Marina Redevelopment Not yet released ü
1271/41 Lot 59 Wilkins Road, Kalamunda Not yet released ü
1236/57 Bush Forever Area Definition Clause Insertion and Removal of Clause 16 (1a)(A) for New Similar 

Clause Insertion 16 (1a)(A) & (Ba)
www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6487.asp ü

1244/57 North West Districts Omnibus 8 www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6681.asp ü
1245/57 Lot 9014 Skeet Road, Harrisdale www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6722.asp ü
1247/57 Part Lot 1 Alexander Drive, Mirrabooka and Surrounds www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6789.asp ü
1248/57 Yanchep City Centre Structure Plan Area www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6810.asp ü
1251/57 Hazelmere Enterprise Area Structure Plan Precinct 2A and 2B - Helena River Precinct

www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6994.asp

ü
1252/57 Hazelmere Enterprise Area Structure Plan Precinct 3A and 3B - HEA Buffer Area ü
1253/57 Hazelmere Enterprise Area Structure Plan Precinct 4 - Hazelmere Interface ü
1254/57 Hazelmere Enterprise Area Structure Plan Precinct 7 - HEA South ü
1255/57 Hazelmere Enterprise Area Structure Plan Precinct 8 - HEA South Buffer ü
1256/57 Hazelmere Enterprise Area Structure Plan Precinct 9A - Bushmead ü
1263/57 Lots 89, 95 & 100 Dundebar Road and Lot 88 Garden Park Drive, Wanneroo www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7152.asp ü
1266/57 Rosehill Golf Course Redevelopment www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7108.asp ü
1267/57 Rationalisation of Pt Lots 40 and 41 River Avenue, Maddington www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7104.asp ü
1274/57 Balannup/Skeet Road Precinct, Harrisdale www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7177.asp ü
1275/57 Central Districts Omnibus 4 Not yet released ü
1276/57 Caporn Street, Sinagra Not yet released ü
1277/57 Mount Helena Precinct Not yet released ü
1250/27 Lots 21, 569 and 1263 Sixty Eight and Baldivis Roads and Potion of Baldivis Road, Baldivis www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6884.asp ü
1257/27 Casuarina Cell www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6886.asp ü
1258/27 Portion of Lot 294 Kerosene Lane and Lot 1210 Baldivis Road, Baldivis www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6919.asp ü
1260/27 Portion of Mandogalup Urban Deferred Cell www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7015.asp ü
1261/27 Lots 459, 461, Pt Lots 462 and 463 Baldivis Road and portion of Pug Road, Baldivis www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6927.asp ü
1262/27 Lots 635, 739 and 740 Baldivis Road and portion of Baldivis Road, Baldivis www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6929.asp ü
1264/27 Lots 4 and 702 Gnangara Road, Pt Lot 1187 Priest Road, a Portion of Unconstructed Road Reserve and 

Pt Pollino Gardens, Landsdale
www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6967.asp ü

1265/27 Lot 603 Toreopango Avenue, Yanchep www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6969.asp ü
1268/27 Key Close and Lots 3, 10, 545, 921, 922 and 746–750 Baldivis Road, Baldivis www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7017.asp ü
1269/27 Pt Lot 1 Armadale Road, Banjup www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7019.asp ü

TABLE LEGEND
IN Initiated in 2013/14 financial year
FIN Finalised in 2013/14 financial year
TAB Tabled in parliament in 2013/14 financial year
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MAJOR MINOR OTHER

Amendment title Website address IN TAB FIN IN FIN IN FIN

1272/27 Anketell Road Corridor, Anketell/Wandi No website listing ü
1273/27 Various Lots Bounded by Kwinana Freeway, Mundijong Road and Baldivis Road north of  

Lot 1000 Baldivis Road, Baldivis
No website listing ü

PCA 96 Lloyd Street Southern Extension (modification) www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/787.asp ü
PCA 103 Whiteman Proposed Caravan and Park Home (Leasehold) Facility (modification) www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6506.asp ü
PCA 106 Lot 38 Hopkinson Road, Cardup www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6818.asp ü
PCA 107 Public Purpose (Special Uses) Disability Justice Centres, Caversham and Kiara www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6819.asp ü
PCA 109 Ascot Park Home (Leasehold) Facility www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7053.asp ü

PEEL REGION SCHEME AMENDMENTS
030/41 South Western Highway – Waroona Deviation Reservations www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6464.asp ü ü
031/41 North Dandalup Townsite Expansion www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6391.asp ü
033/57 Modification of Regional Roads Reservation – Pinjarra and Old Mandurah Roads www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6724.asp ü
037/57 Lot 108 Mandjoogoordap Drive, Parklands www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6898.asp ü ü

GREATER BUNBURY REGION SCHEME AMENDMENTS�

0024/41 Industrial Deferred Zone www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6782.asp ü ü
0028/57 Part Lot 301 Boyanup-Picton Road, Picton East Not yet released ü
0030/57 Lot 9001 Waterloo Road, Roelands and various zoning anomalies www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6808.asp ü
0031/57 Lot 312 Jeffrey Road, Glen Iris www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7050.asp ü
0033/57 Omnibus No. 3 – Anomalies Amendment www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7126.asp ü
0032/13 Lot 150 Leisure Drive, Australind No website listing ü
0034/13 Grand Entrance, Australind No website listing ü

Notes
Major amendments are indicated by /41
Minor amendments are indicated by /57
Lifting of Urban Deferred outside MRS are indicated by /13
Lifting of Urban Deferred within MRS are indicated by /27
PCA represents Planning Control Area

TABLE LEGEND
IN Initiated in 2013/14 financial year
FIN Finalised in 2013/14 financial year
TAB Tabled in parliament in 2013/14 financial year

� Proposed amendment 0023/41 Various Lots Newton and Ince Roads, Vittoria – was not progressed to advertising
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SPP 2.3 Jandakot Groundwater Protection 
Policy (SPP 2.3)
The WAPC recently amended SPP 2.3 in 
partnership with the Department of Water. The 
WAPC endorsed a revised draft of the policy for 
public comment in March 2014. The policy seeks to 
prevent, control or manage development and land-
use changes in defined locations in the Jandakot 
Groundwater Protection policy area that are likely 
to cause detrimental effects to the groundwater 
resource. The revised policy is expected to be 
released later in 2014 for public comment.

SPP 5.1 Land Use Planning in the Vicinity of 
Perth Airport
A revised draft of SPP 5.1 will be submitted to the 
WAPC seeking permission to undertake public 
consultation. The objectives are to protect Perth 
Airport from unreasonable encroachment by 
incompatible (noise sensitive) development to 
provide for its ongoing development and operation 
and minimise the impact of airport operations on 
existing and future communities through aircraft 
noise.

SPP5.3 Land Use Planning in the Vicinity of 
Jandakot Airport
The Department of Planning continued to work 
with Jandakot Airport Holdings Pty Ltd on the 
revised draft SPP 5.3 which will be referred to the 
WAPC in 2014 seeking endorsement to undertake 
public consultation. 

Review of WAPC decisions

During the 2013/14 operating year, 79 new State Administrative Tribunal review applications were received out of 
a total of 4198 determinations made by the Western Australian Planning Commission on subdivision, strata and 
development applications.
During this period, the tribunal finalised 87 applications for review, of which 74 were mediated or withdrawn 
without the need for a substantive hearing. 13 were decided after a substantive hearing, of which six 
applications were upheld and seven dismissed.

Overall the number of successful challenges to WAPC determinations is less than 0.15 per cent. This indicates a 
strong effectiveness in the WAPC’s application of the State Planning Framework.

State Administrative Tribunal – review of WAPC decisions

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

Applications determined by WAPC 3,850 3,866 3,436 4198

WAPC determinations subject to SAT review 90 105 71 79

SAT review of WAPC decisions finalised 95* 89 69 87

SAT review of WAPC decision mediated or withdrawn 74 72 62 74

SAT review of WAPC decision decided after substantive hearing 21 17 7 13

SAT review of WAPC decision upheld 10 9 3 6

SAT review of WAPC decision dismissed 11 8 4 7

* includes 5 from a previous period



Sub Regional Structure Plans – North East, 
North West and South Metro and Peel 
Structure Plans
Three Sub Regional Structure Plans (SRSP) are in 
the process of preparation for the Perth and Peel 
region, these being Metropolitan North West, 
Metropolitan North East, and South Metropolitan 
and Peel.

The SRSP are being prepared against the 
background of Directions 2031, which is the 
overarching strategic spatial plan for the Perth 
and Peel region. Directions 2031 sets out a broad 
spatial framework for the development of Perth 
and Peel, and contains a series of principles, 
strategies and actions to guide future growth and 
development.

The SRSP identify the full spectrum of land uses, 
and they thus set aside areas for future urban 
development, and include areas for residential 
purposes, activity centres, employment and 
industrial development, parks, recreation and 
conservation areas, educational facilities, and key 
infrastructure including major roads, power and 
water infrastructure.

The SRSP will provide much needed direction 
and will help to create a sense of certainty and 
confidence for a range of stakeholders, including 
communities, local governments, developers, 
and infrastructure agencies. The planning work is 
being informed by the Strategic Environmental 
Assessment for the Perth and Peel Regions.

The Strategy anticipates the doubling of the State’s 
population post 2050 and has a strong regional 
development focus. The strategy provides the 
goals, objectives and long-term outcomes for the 
State, and serves as a planning tool to align and 
inform all stakeholders’ strategic planning. The 
Strategy is an excellent example of collaboration, 
as all government agencies and non-government 
stakeholders made significant contributions to 
the structure and content of the report, effectively 
creating a shared growth vision for the State.

SERVICE W2: STRATEGIC PLANNING

Planning reform initiatives
On 19 September 2013, the Minister for Planning 
launched Planning makes it happen: phase two. A 
Discussion Paper on potential reform initiatives was 
advertised for public comment for three months. 
A total of 257 submissions were received, which 
have been analysed and assessed in detail by the 
Government in order to make decisions on which 
initiatives will be pursued as part of the final phase 
two reform agenda. A "Report on submissions" 
was released by the WAPC in May 2014. A report 
outlining the final phase two reform agenda was 
expected to be released for public information 
in August 2014. Implementation of the various 
initiatives will then commence, encompassing a 
combination of legislative change, policy change 
and organisational change. www.planning.wa.gov.
au/653.asp

State Planning Strategy
Cabinet endorsed the State Planning Strategy 
in April 2014 and the Minister for Planning 
subsequently launched the Strategy for 
implementation on 12 June 2014. This formalised 
the Strategy as the Western Australian Planning 
Commission’s highest order planning instrument, 
which provides the strategic planning context 
for State and local government, community 
organisations and the private sector.

State 
Planning
Strategy
2050
 

www.planning.wa.gov.au/653.asp
www.planning.wa.gov.au/653.asp


Regional Planning and Infrastructure 
Frameworks 
During 2013/14 the Department progressed all eight 
Regional Planning and Infrastructure Frameworks 
(RPIFs) across the State’s country planning regions. 
The projects were developed under the guidance of 
the WAPC’s various Regional Planning Committees 
and in association with Regional Development 
Commissions and local governments. www.
planning.wa.gov.au/6971.asp. The first of the 
RPIFs to be finalised was for the Pilbara in 2012/13. 
The significant achievements in the past year are 
described in more detail in the following text.

Mid West Regional Planning and Infrastructure 
Framework
The WAPC endorsed the Mid West Regional 
Planning and Infrastructure Framework (MWRPIF) 
with the prime goal to develop a strategic regional 
planning document, through a process involving a 
whole-of-government approach, that: 
 � provides the regional context for land-use 

planning in the Mid West region; 
 � identifies priority actions to enable further 

comprehensive regional and sub-regional 
planning; 

 � identifies the priority regional infrastructure 
requirements to facilitate economic and 
population growth in the Mid West; and

 � the identification of the Mid West’s priority 
regional infrastructure requirements has been 
considered through the Mid West Regional 
Infrastructure Priorities Project which has been 
run in parallel with this project.

Gascoyne Regional Planning and Infrastructure 
Framework
Similarly, the Gascoyne Regional Planning and 
Infrastructure Framework (GRPIF) was endorsed by 
the WAPC during 2013/14. 

Kimberley Planning and Infrastructure & 
Framework 
The Kimberley Regional Planning and Infrastructure 
Framework was released as a draft for public 
comment which closed on 5 June 2014. The 
regional focus is on tourism, horticulture and 
the potential for resource development. This 
increased activity also presents challenges 
such as the protection of the environment, 
preservation of Aboriginal culture and heritage as 
well as maintaining the unique lifestyle enjoyed by 
residents.

Goldfields and Esperance Regional Planning 
and Infrastructure Framework
Also released as a draft for public comment, closing 
on 4 June 2014. This is the State’s largest region 
geographically and contains a great range of social, 
economic and natural environments. The Goldfields-
Esperance region’s diverse economy, including its 
important mining, agriculture and tourism sectors 
will continue to drive its growth.

Wheatbelt Regional Planning and Infrastructure 
Framework
Also released as a draft for public comment, closing 
on 4 June 2014. The RPIF sees the Wheatbelt 
continuing as the State’s agriculture powerhouse 

and will seek to further diversify and value add to 
the primary production sector. Freight and logistics 
will be an increasing part of the region’s future, 
along with lifestyle population growth around the 
Avon Arc and Turquoise Coast.

Great Southern Regional Planning and 
Infrastructure Framework
Again the anticipation is that economic growth and 
development will be sustained by a rich agriculture 
industry, new investment in mining and continuing 
population growth. The protection and management 
of ecosystems in the region will be central to 
ensuring the sustainability of water supply, 
agricultural production and fisheries to retain the 
lifestyle advantages of the Great Southern. 

South West Regional Planning and Infrastructure 
Framework
Also released as a draft for public comment, closing 
on 4 June 2014. With an expected population of 
230,000 by 2026 the South West is one of the 
fastest growing regions in the State. This project 
reviewed the existing South West Framework 
to include an infrastructure component and 
the challenge of accommodating growth while 
protecting the region’s natural environment, 
character and amenity. The South West will 
continue to attract people to the region to live, 
visit and invest while the development of natural 
resources and intensified agriculture will continue 
to underpin economic success. 

www.planning.wa.gov.au/6971.asp
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Indian Ocean Drive Planning Guideline
The Indian Ocean Drive Planning Guideline was 
released in March 2014, specifically covering 
land within a 500 metre corridor either side of 
the road and more broadly, land that may be 
prominently viewed from the Indian Ocean Drive. 
IOD is one of Western Australia’s principal tourist 
routes, nearly 270km in length, extending from 
Yanchep in the south, to Dongara in the north, and 
passing through five local governments: Gingin, 
Dandaragan, Coorow, Carnamah and Irwin. 

The Guideline – a joint effort between the 
Department of Planning, Department of Parks 
and Wildlife, Main Roads WA and the five local 
governments – sets out planning guidelines for 
land use and development in the locality of Indian 
Ocean Drive. 

It provides an integrated approach to land-
use decision-making across the five local 
governments, with the purpose of retaining the 
rural and natural landscape and enhancing the 
provision of services and facilities available to all 
users of the road.

The Guideline does not apply to land use and 
development within the townships of Jurien Bay 
and Leeman, or to existing development precincts 
along the road. Outside the town sites, people 
are encouraged to consider the Guideline when 
reconstruction, improvements or maintenance of 
existing development, or landscaping, is to occur.

The Guideline applies to both private and public 
land.

Greater Bunbury Strategy
The final report on the Greater Bunbury Strategy 
was released in December 2013 by the WAPC 
to guide urban, industrial and regional land-use 
planning, and associated infrastructure delivery, 
in the sub region 2013 for a population of some 
150,000 by 2026. The Greater Bunbury Strategy 
2013 advocates a "compact and connected" growth 
pattern as the most balanced and responsible way 
for the sub region to develop, supporting:
 � a robust, diverse and sustainable economy;
 � an efficient way to deliver economic and social 

infrastructure;
 � a range of housing options;
 � the conservation natural and cultural heritage 

and environmental values;
 � improvements and investment in public 

transport, walking and bicycle use;
 � the protection of agricultural land for its 

economic, landscape, tourism and social  
values; and

 � a community identity, particularly for  
hinterland towns.

The project was initiated to address the need to 
review the Greater Bunbury Structure Plan, and 
guide future amendments to the Greater Bunbury 
Region Scheme to ensure future urban and 
industrial land supply and coordinate transport and 
infrastructure provision. 

Burswood District Structure Plan
This will provide a strategic framework to guide 
the development of key projects in the short 
term (including the new Perth Stadium and 
Crown Towers hotel developments), and support 
the planning, assessment, coordination and 
implementation of longer term development across 
the Burswood Peninsula. A final draft of the DSP 
was completed by the Department of Planning in 
late 2013 and approved by the Western Australian 
Planning Commission in February 2014. The DSP 
will be submitted for Cabinet endorsement before 
being released for public comment.

Burswood Station West master plan
The Department of Planning has prepared a draft 
plan that sets out the vision for the Burswood 
Station west precinct that is expected to be 
released for public comment by the WAPC in 
2014/15.

Bushfire Policy and Guidelines
The Planning for Bush Fire Protection Guidelines 
(WAPC 2010) were reviewed and a new draft 
State Planning Policy 3.7: Planning for Bushfire 
Risk Management (SPP 3.7) prepared. Both 
documents were released for public comment. 
SPP 3.7 assists in reducing the risk of bushfire to 
people, property and infrastructure by encouraging 
a conservative approach to strategic planning, 
subdivision, development and other planning 



decisions proposed in bushfire-prone areas. The 
revised guidelines are designed to supplement 
the objectives and policy measures established in 
SPP 3.7, to assist in their interpretation and provide 
advice on how bushfire risk is to be addressed 
when designing or assessing a proposal within a 
bushfire-prone area. Documents can be found at 
www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7055.
asp.

In addition, draft regulations under section 256 
of the Planning and Development Act 2005 were 
created to apply consistent requirements to 
development throughout Western Australia to 
reduce the risk in bushfire prone areas. The draft 
regulations will be released for public consultation 
in 2014/15.

Infrastructure Corridors
The WAPC’s Infrastructure Coordinating Committee 
(ICC) is investigating whether there is a need for 
new initiatives to better identify, secure, protect 
and manage strategic infrastructure sites and 
corridors. 

In 2013/14, the ICC prepared an issues paper on 
infrastructure corridors, which was developed in 
consultation with government and private sector 
infrastructure providers. The paper examines 
whether existing policies and practices relating 
to infrastructure corridors and sites need to be 
improved, and suggests that stronger policies 
may be required to better protect the State’s 
strategic infrastructure corridors and sites from 
encroachment by incompatible land uses. It also 
outlines the challenges and benefits of establishing 
and managing multi-user infrastructure corridors. 
The ICC is currently investigating potential changes 
to current policies and practices in response to the 
identified issues. www.planning.wa.gov.au/7159.
asp

Oakajee Narngulu Infrastructure Corridor 
(ONIC) Project 
The Department prepared a draft Alignment 
Definition Report for the Oakajee Narngulu 
Infrastructure Corridor (ONIC), which was released 
for public comment in early 2014. The ONIC is 
one component of the broader Oakajee Mid West 
Development Project which is coordinated by the 
Department of State Development, with the aim to 
establish an integrated port and industrial estate at 
Oakajee; supporting rail and infrastructure corridors 

to facilitate the development of the resources 
sector in the Mid West; and ensure the long-term 
prosperity of the region.

The key planning objective for the ONIC is to 
co-locate road and rail infrastructure within 
one corridor between Oakajee and Narngulu to 
minimise impacts on landowners. It would also 
be advantageous to provide capacity within the 
corridor to accommodate utilities infrastructure. 
Through this draft Alignment Definition Report it is 
proposed that the ONIC will be approximately 34 
kilometres in length, providing strategic linkages 
between Oakajee (proposed port and industrial 
estate), Narngulu, Geraldton Port and iron ore 
mines. To accommodate road, rail and services 
utilities infrastructure the ONIC is required to be at 
least 230 metres wide, however, it may be wider 
in some locations to accommodate engineering 
requirements of the road and rail alignments.

The ONIC is an important strategic road, rail and 
utility services corridor which will link the existing 
Narngulu Industrial estate and Geraldton Port to 
the proposed Oakajee Industrial Estate (OIE) and 
Oakajee Port. It will connect into, and be an integral 
part of, the regional road and rail transport network, 
and will support the future transport tasks to and 
from the OIE and Oakajee Port as well as the Mid 
West Region. 

www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/7055.asp
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SERVICE W3: ASSET MANAGEMENT

Property acquisition 
The WAPC’s land acquisition program for 2013/14 
included the purchase or payment of compensation 
for 43 properties totalling 442 hectares at a cost of 
$47 million.

Major land purchases

Roads
In meeting strategic infrastructure plans for the 
future, a total of 12 properties were purchased 
comprising 5.34 hectares at a cost of $5.033 million 
for the following road types:

Primary regional roads
 � Boyanup Bypass
 � Waroona Bypass (3 properties)
 � Tonkin Hwy
 � Canning Hwy (2 properties)
 � Perth – Lancelin Hwy

Other regional roads
 � Beaufort St, Mount Lawley
 � Main St, Balcatta
 � Mundijong Rd, Baldivis

Other road requirements
 � Charles St, North Perth.

Railways and Ports
Two properties totalling 3.9042 hectares were 
purchased for the Bunbury Port expansion at a cost 
of $4,255,000.

Bush Forever
Three properties comprising 21.9 hectares were 
purchased at a cost of $6m, including 17 hectares 
in the Southern River area.

Parks and recreation/regional open space
A total of 20 properties comprising 402 hectares 
at a cost of $31 million were purchased. Major 
purchases included 116 hectares for the Darling 
Range Regional Park, 129 hectares for the Peel 
Regional Open Space and 87 hectares for the 
Ocean to Preston Regional Park in Bunbury.

Field management
The Department of Planning provides services 
to the Western Australian Planning Commission, 
which includes management of the Commission’s 
land estate. During 2013/14 the estate, comprising 
land identified in the Metropolitan Region Scheme, 
Peel Region Scheme and the Greater Bunbury 
Region Scheme, continued to be efficiently 
managed as is appropriate as an interim land 
owner. Currently 11,700 hectares of land is 
managed prior to transfer to end managers. 
Main works included fire control, fencing, alien 
species control, clean ups from dumped rubbish 
and access control. Illegal access and use of 
Commission land continues to be both a financial 
and environmental concern and in meeting this a 

surveillance camera program was commenced as 
an additional tool in managing the WAPC estate. 
The Department continues to work with local 
representatives and landcare groups to ensure 
that where possible public access to the estate is 
possible and enhanced through revegetation and 
other programs.

Area Assistance Grants Scheme 
Under this scheme, the Western Australian 
Planning Commission supports the planning 
and development of regional open space in the 
metropolitan area. In particular, the WAPC provided 
grants of $157,000 to further development of land 
in the Rockingham area this financial year.

Rental management
The Western Australian Planning Commission 
has, as part of its asset portfolio, a substantial 
number of properties that have been purchased in 
preparation for future infrastructure developments 
and regional open space. These properties are 
suitable for, and consequently managed as, 
commercial or private residential rentals until 
required for the purpose intended. Rental rates for 
each property are benchmarked against industry 
standard rates for their respective areas and the 
Commission abides by the Residential Tenancies 
Act in applying rates for all residential tenancies and 
the Commercial Tenancies Act for its commercial 
tenancy rates.

During 2013/14, there were 219 residential and 60 
commercial properties in the metropolitan area, 
plus 11 residential and one commercial property in 



regional areas that were rented or leased under the 
Residential Tenancies or Commercial Tenancies Act. 
The Commission received $6,236,839 in rent from 
these portfolios. 

Disposals 
Property disposals comprise predominantly of 
remainder land that was purchased for strategic 
purposes and are now surplus to requirements. 
Surplus land may also include subdivided land 
where the intended portion of the original lot has 
been subdivided and moved over to the end land 
user (e.g. Main Roads WA).

During 2013/14, three lots totalling 1.5 hectares, 
were transferred to the State for parks and 
recreational purposes to consolidate the 
Glendalough Regional Open Space within the 
Herdsman Lake Regional Park. Five lots were 
dedicated free of cost for the widening of 
Walcott Street, Coolbinia; Beaufort Street, Mount 
Lawley; Lord Street, Perth; Spectacles Drive, The 
Spectacles and Ashwood Parkway Mandurah. 
A further two lots were transferred to the State 
free of cost at Greenfields for the new Mandurah 
Emergency Services facility.

The WAPC continues to be an interim land 
manager; however, in circumstances where the 
land is no longer required, it disposes of these 
parcels at market value through a disposals 
program on the open market. Sixteen properties 
were sold by auction, private treaty for a total of 
$13,335,000 including lots in Claremont Crescent, 
Swanbourne and Claremont following the removal 
of this regional road from the Metropolitan Region 

Planning Scheme and a development lot at 
Woodvale to LandCorp that was surplus following 
the realignment of Ocean Reef Road. 

Whiteman Park
Whiteman Park, one of Western Australia’s 
most popular recreation and conservation park, 
continued to build on its success of recent years 
with a number of projects being completed during 
2013/14.

Located in the Swan Valley, it is the most popular 
tourist destination in the Swan region.

In the past year the park completed the following 
major capital projects:
 � Completion of a Fire Suppression System 

(FSS) located at the workshops area, which 
is state of the art technology. The system will 
protect the assets of Perth Electric Tramway 
Society, Bennett Brook Rail and the Bus 
Preservation Society all of whom own rare and 
valuable items in their collections. The FSS also 
provides storage tanks and hydrants to enable 
Whiteman Park and DFES enhanced fire fighting 
capabilities.

 � Opening of the new Visitor Information Centre 
located in the Whiteman Village giving tourists a 
central place to gain information about the park 
and its attractions.

 � Upgrades to the Pavilion making it able to be 
utilised for private functions and education 
programs.

 � Upgrades to toilet facilities.
 � Continued landscaping within the Whiteman 

Village.

The park hosted a range of successful community 
events and growth continued to be strong in the 
areas of education programs delivered to schools, 
shelter and wedding hire and nocturnal tours of the 
Woodland Reserve.

Revolutions Transport Heritage Museum continued 
its success by holding more exhibitions and 
enjoying increased visitation numbers.



stakeholder consultation and initial scoping studies 
to identify a potential master plan layout which 
incorporates the community’s vision for the area 
and protects areas of significant flora and fauna or 
Archaeological or Ethnographic significance, while 
understanding identified site constraints. The draft 
Master Plan will be informed by further technical 
studies and broad public consultation.

Port Kennedy Development 
The Department assists the Minister to facilitate 
the development of Crown Land in the City 
of Rockingham, known as the Port Kennedy 
Development, in accordance with the Port Kennedy 
Development Agreement Act 1992 (the Act). 
The Act provides for Crown Land to be granted 
under a three-stage development to Western 
Australia Beach & Golf Resort Pty Ltd (WABGR). In 
exchange, WABGR will construct and provide the 
State with agreed Public Work infrastructure items. 
The intention is to provide a coastal residential, 
recreational and tourism development for the 
benefit of the local and wider community.

The Department has undertaken a comprehensive 
review of the project and is working with WABGR 
and the Office of the Valuer General to reframe 
the project. Various potential development 
options and Public Works are being considered 
with the aim of creating a development that 
meets the communities’ needs and is viable. 
Following consultation with the community and 
other stakeholders, the reframed project will 
be presented to the Minister and Parliament 
for consideration. The Department anticipates 

Overall visitation rates continued to rise after 
breaking through the one-million mark for the first 
time in 2012. Since 2008, visitation has had an 
average increase of 11 per cent annually making the 
park one of the fastest growing tourist destinations 
in WA. It is envisaged that Whiteman Park will 
continue its strong visitation growth, in particular 
within the overseas tourist sector with growth 
expected to increase rapidly over the next five 
years.

Park management has developed a five-year 
Strategic Operations Plan 2015-2020 outlining the 
direction the park will take to cater for expected 
urban growth and development in the region 
and increased visitation to ensure customer 
expectations are met.

Hester Park 
Hester Park in Langford/Beckenham is owned 
by the WAPC and has over time been managed 
in unison with the City of Gosnells and SRT. The 
preparation of a Master Plan to facilitate the 
redesign of the Hester Park Region to incorporate 
open water wetlands and lakes, re-vegetation 
areas, playing fields, walking trails and amenities 
has been identified by all stakeholders. 

The Masterplan aims to make the area suitable for 
a mix of active and passive recreational uses and 
high quality residential development. A project has 
commenced in 2013/14 financial year and is jointly 
funded by the WAPC and City of Gosnells.

The project is expected to continue into the 2014/15 
financial year and will utilise community and 

Parliament will be requested to consider the 
reframed project during mid to late 2015.



Services provided by the  
Department of Planning

SERVICE D1: INTEGRATED LAND AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE POLICY DEVELOPMENT

The following initiatives were progressed by 
the Department of Planning during the 2013/14 
operating year:

The Perth and Peel Economic Development 
Strategy
The Economic Development Strategy is required 
for the Perth and Peel regions as foreshadowed in 
current work programs being undertaken by the 
Department of Planning. Generally, the strategy will 
assist the WAPC and government decision-making 
through:
 � underpinning the structure plans to support the 

growing population for Perth and Peel;
 � recommending changes to the Economic 

and Employment Land Strategy to support a 
population of 3.5 million in relation to industrial 
land for Perth and Peel;

 � providing modelling to allocate employment 
targets and determination of spatial 
requirements for activity centres to form part of 
the structure plans;

 � providing a framework for land-use, 
infrastructure, movement networks and 
employment areas for the Perth and Peel 
regions; and

 � assisting to provide a plan to achieve higher 
residential densities and promote housing 
affordability and lifestyle choices.

The Economic Development Strategy will be 
released for public consultation in November 2014 
with the sub-regional structure plans. The Economic 
Development Strategy is critical to underpinning 
the economic development direction for each sub-
region and Perth and Peel as a whole.

Mandurah Central Revitalisation Strategy
During 2013/14, the Department of Planning, 
on behalf of the State Government, authorised 
payment of $53,925.44 towards the cost of works 
associated with improvement of the Mandurah 
eastern foreshore area. This takes the State 
Government contribution to the project so far to 
$2.8 million.

The 2013/14 expenditure partly reimburses the 
City, under a joint funding arrangement, for work 
undertaken by consultants, including geotechnical 
work, environmental studies, seawall design and 
landscape architectural services. The function 
and enhancement of the Mandurah foreshore 
area is a key component of the Mandurah Central 
Revitalisation Strategy.

Canning Vale Sports Masterplan 
The Canning Vale Sports Masterplan is a joint 
WAPC/Department of Sport and Recreation and 
City of Canning project which aims to facilitate 
the preparation of a recreation based Masterplan 
for sporting fields in Canning Vale. The Masterplan 
will be used for funding applications and will 
identify the sporting needs and framework for 
implementation of the precinct. The site is located 
on Clifton Road near Ranford Road and is over 
120 hectares in size. The Masterplan identified 
areas of the site which are suitable for recreational 
based activities and associated facilities such as 
recreation centres, change rooms and the like. 
It also identified the areas of existing bushland 
and vegetation which should be protected and 
rehabilitated.

The Masterplan is underpinned by technical studies 
such as a Flora and Fauna Study, Hydrological 
Feasibility Study and a District Water Management 
Strategy. The Masterplan and studies were 
completed in June 2014 and is expected to be 
endorsed by the Project Board and the WAPC in 
late 2014. 



Land-use planning for tourism 
Review of Planning Bulletin 49 Caravan Parks 
was released in May 2014 to support the 
provision of caravan parks within Western 
Australia by facilitating greater flexibility in the 
design and composition of new or redeveloped 
caravan parks, while delivering quality land-use 
planning outcomes. www.planning.wa.gov.au/
publications/1085.asp

The Tourism Planning Guidelines released in May 
2014 will assist with the development of the 
tourism component of a local planning strategy 
to provide local governments with a rationale for 
determining the future land allocation, planning 
controls and infrastructure needs for tourism, based 
on sound planning principles. www.planning.
wa.gov.au/publications/7113.asp

Jandakot Airport eastern link road
The Jandakot Airport Master Plan (2009) outlined 
the proposed industrial land development 
within the airport boundary and also the need 
for an additional safe and direct access route 
to the airport. The Commonwealth and the 
State Government endorsed the Master Plan. 
Subsequently, the WAPC selected a preferred route 
from a number of options which will connect the 
airport with Ranford Road in Canning Vale. This 
exercise was undertaken in consultation with all 
relevant stakeholders including Jandakot Airport. 
A new "Other Regional Road" reservation will now 
be included in the Metropolitan Region Scheme 
through an amendment to the scheme. This 
process is expected to commence in 2015 and will 
provide opportunities for wider consultation with 
the community and stakeholders.

Evaluation and review of State Planning  
Policy 5.4
The Department on behalf of the WAPC is 
reviewing and updating policy guidelines for Road 
and Rail Transport Noise and Freight Considerations 
in Land Use Planning SPP 5.4. The Department 
is the first point of contact for planning advice 
on transport noise impact matters and practical 
noise mitigation using planning mechanisms. 
This planning policy guides the form of urban 
development along transport corridors and creates 
awareness of policy requirements across local 
governments, the land development industry, 
acoustic consultants and transport infrastructure 
providers. Once endorsed, the updated guidelines 
will be published online by the WAPC.

Transport route planning
Among many contributions to transport route 
planning during 2013/14 some of the more 
significant deliverables were: 

Flynn Drive
Flynn Drive provides access to the residential areas 
to the south and the planned Neerabup Industrial 
area to the north. The Department determined 
future traffic demand for Flynn Drive based on 2031 
traffic modelling analysis for the North West sub 
region. Accordingly, road design concept and land 
requirement plans for the WAPC were modified to 
ensure appropriate future road upgrading to satisfy 
the traffic and access requirements. Also, a report 
was prepared to record all relevant planning and 
traffic information.

Henley Brook Avenue
Given the rapidly increasing development in West 
Swan, Henley Brook and The Vines, Henley Brook 
Avenue will play a critical role in carrying high 
volumes of north-south regional traffic. Based 
on the future role and function, the Department 
undertook a review of the existing road plans and 
prepared modified road design concept and land 
requirement plans. The modified plans endorsed 
by the Commission, will assist in providing more 
accurate transport planning advice to internal and 
external stakeholders and guide statutory referrals 
to the WAPC.

www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/1085.asp
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Stirling City Centre
The Stirling City Centre Alliance completed an 
extensive amount of planning that outlines how 
the Stirling City Centre may develop based on 
sustainable planning principles. The Alliance 
formally closed on 31 December 2013 and the 
responsibility for future planning was transferred 
to the parent agencies, the City of Stirling and the 
Department of Planning. 

The Department is working with several key 
stakeholders to negotiate land development 
outcomes that meet identified performance 
targets. 

An Improvement Scheme has also been drafted 
for the Stirling City Centre on behalf of the WAPC, 
which could guide development according to the 
agreed performance targets. 

A significant amount of transport modelling has 
been completed and this shall inform future road 
network planning. Options are being investigated 
for expanding and improving access to Stirling bus/
train interchange to better facilitate a range of travel 
modes. www.planning.wa.gov.au/662.asp

MAX Planning Framework
The Department of Planning prepared the draft 
MAX Planning Framework in collaboration with 
the Department of Transport and in consultation 
with the six affected local governments. This was 
endorsed by the Western Australian Planning 
Commission in December 2013. The State 
Government subsequently decided to defer the 
project by three years until 2017.

Bush Forever MRS text amendment 
(1236/57)
The Bush Forever MRS text amendment 1236/57 
which includes two administrative amendments 
was endorsed by the WAPC in March 2014 and 
approved by the Minister for Planning in May 2014. 
The Bush Forever MRS text amendment 1236/57 
Report on Submission was published and released 
to the public on 20 June 2014. 

Canning Bridge Activity Centre Structure 
Plan
The WAPC has assisted the Cities of Melville and 
South Perth in the development of a draft Activity 
Centre Structure Plan for the Canning Bridge 
precinct. The local governments will be advertising 
the draft Structure Plan for public comment in the 
second half of 2014. www.planning.wa.gov.au/
publications/6672.asp

Liveable Neighbourhoods review
The Department of Planning has made significant 
progress on the review of the Western Australian 
Planning Commission’s Liveable Neighbourhoods 
policy. 

The updated document is expected to be 
advertised for public comment later this year. 

The Liveable Neighbourhoods policy is to be 
followed in the design and approval of urban 
development, specifically structure planning 
and subdivision for greenfield sites, and for the 
redevelopment of large brownfield/urban infill sites. 

Due to the complex and technical nature of the 
matters addressed in the policy, the review was 
undertaken in stages and conducted with input 
from a technical advisory group, comprising 
members from State and local government, 
planning and development industry sectors. 

www.planning.wa.gov.au/662.asp
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system. In 2013/14, the Department deployed its 
new internal geospatial viewer and Subdivision, 
Strata and Development Application modules in 
geospatial data capture infrastructure along with its 
new data standards. In 2014/2015, The Department 
will be finalising the deployment of automated 
geospatial boundary alignment and data capture 
infrastructure as well as continuing work in data 
standardisation and capitalisation of spatial data 
frameworks. A system for lodging subdivision 
applications, structure plans and lot amalgamations 
is to be rolled out in 2014/15.

Model Scheme Text Review
During the year the Department finalised its review 
of the Model Scheme Text and has prepared a 
draft of the new regulations. These are likely to 
be released for public comment by the WAPC 
in the latter half of 2014. Subject to WAPC and 
Government endorsement, the new regulations 
could then be readied to take effect, sometime in 
2014/15.

Systems reform
Transformation of the Department’s geospatial 
information system continued with improvements 
to the electronic lodgement, referrals and approvals 

Employment Lands Strategy 
The Economic and Employment Lands Strategy 
Implementation Report Card 2013 was prepared 
and released by the WAPC. This provides an 
update on the actions undertaken by State and 
local government, in addition to the private sector. 
It supports the timely delivery of general and light 
industrial land in the Perth metropolitan and Peel 
regions. The Department of Planning is continuing 
to work closely with other State government 
agencies, local government, infrastructure providers 
and landowners to implement the key objectives of 
the EELS. www.planning.wa.gov.au/dop_pub_
pdf/EELs_ReportCard_2013.pdf

www.planning.wa.gov.au/dop_pub_pdf/EELs_ReportCard_2013.pdf
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Development Assessment 
Panels achievements 
The 15 Development Assessment 
Panels (DAPs) operating in 
metropolitan and regional 
Western Australia contribute to 
Government goal 3 with a focus 
on achieving results in key service 
delivery areas for the benefit of all 
Western Australians. DAPs panels 
are responsible to the Minister 
for Planning, with support from 
the Department of Planning. An 
overview of the DAPs application 
process can be found online at 
http://daps.planning.wa.gov.au.

During 2013/14 the Development 
Assessment Panels secretariat 
received 321 applications, 
compared with 265 for the previous 
year. These were made up of 
220 development applications 
(Form 1), 74 applications for 
amendment (Form 2) and 27 
State Administrative Tribunal (SAT) 
appeals for review. 

The tables following indicate the 
number of applications determined 
for each joint development 
assessment panel (JDAP) during 
2013/14, by application type.

� The statutory timeframe for the processing of DAP 
applications is either 60 days or 90 days for an 
application that requires advertising by the local 
government. The timeframe may be extended if an 
application requires additional information for the 
completion of the Responsible Authority Report.

� Mandatory DAP applications are those valued at $15 
million or more for the City of Perth, and $7 million 
or more for the rest of the State. 

� Optional DAP applications are those valued at $10 
million and less than $15 million for the City of 
Perth, and $3 million and less than $7 million for the 
rest of the State. 

� Fees for applications received within the financial 
year 2013/14 may not yet be received as local 
governments have 30 days to remit payment to the 
Department of Planning.

� Refunds for withdrawals of applications have not 
been included in this calculation.

SERVICE D2: LAND 
ACCESSIBILITY PLANNING 
AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT

AVERAGE TIME TAKEN FOR DAP APPLICATION� 60 DAY 90 DAY

City of Perth LDAP 62 122
Gascoyne JDAP Nil Nil
Goldfields Esperance JDAP Nil Nil
Great Southern JDAP 60 90
Kimberley JDAP 57 Nil
Metro Central JDAP 60 109
Metro East JDAP 62 94
Metro North-West JDAP 91 122
Metro South-West JDAP 67 109
Metro West JDAP 60 98
Mid-West JDAP 87
Peel JDAP 60 99
Pilbara JDAP 60 88
South West JDAP 68 90
Wheatbelt JDAP 99
TOTAL 64 101

NATURE OF FORM 1 APPLICATIONS RECEIVED 2013/14

JDAP Mandatory� Optional�

City of Perth LDAP 7 Nil
Gascoyne JDAP Nil Nil
Goldfields-Esperance JDAP Nil Nil
Great Southern JDAP 1 1
Kimberley JDAP 1 Nil
Metro Central JDAP 28 15
Metro East JDAP 14 6
Metro North-West JDAP 20 17
Metro South-West JDAP 38 4
Metro West JDAP 23 9
Mid-West JDAP 2 Nil
Peel JDAP 3 1
Pilbara JDAP 16 4
South-West JDAP 4 1
Wheatbelt JDAP 1 Nil
TOTAL 159 58

VALUE OF DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS

JDAP
Sum of 

Development value 
($) 

Sum of 
Application Fee 

($) 

Sum of 
Application Fee 

Form 2 ($) �

City of Perth LDAP $245,350,000 $45,002 $900
Gascoyne JDAP Nil Nil Nil
Goldfields Esperance JDAP Nil Nil Nil
Great Southern JDAP $15,900,000 $8,716 $150
Kimberley JDAP $12,500,000 $6,053 Nil
Metro Central JDAP $773,330,000 $225,665 $1,350
Metro East JDAP $185,892,835 $185,226 $2,850
Metro North-West JDAP $603,545,666 $160,269 $1,200
Metro South-West JDAP $762,455,944 $244,916 $1,950
Metro West JDAP $528,200,000 $181,228 $1,950
Mid-West JDAP $29,000,000 $12,274 $150
Peel JDAP $82,800,000 $26,173 Nil
Pilbara JDAP $536,342,094 $112,428 $900
South-West JDAP $53,097,119 $21,269 $300
Wheatbelt JDAP $46,000,000 $6,557 Nil

Grand Total $3,874,413,658 $1,173,337 $11,850

TOTAL FEES RECEIVED FOR 2013-14� $1,185,187

http://daps.planning.wa.gov.au


Applications received in 2013/14 and decisions made�

Form 1 Form 2 SAT
City of Perth LDAP    
app'l undetermined from 12/13 13
received 7 6 1
decision - approved 16 4
decision - refused 2
withdrawn 1
still current (app undermined from 13/14) 2 2

Gascoyne JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13
received
decision - approved
decision - refused
withdrawn
still current

Goldfields-Esperance JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13
received
decision - approved
decision - refused
withdrawn
still current

Great Southern JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13
received 2 1 1
decision - approved 1 1
decision - refused 1
withdrawn
still current 1

Kimberley JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13
received 1
decision - approved 1
decision - refused
withdrawn
still current

Applications received in 2013/14 and decisions made�

Form 1 Form 2 SAT
Metro Central JDAP    
app'l undetermined from 12/13 9 1 5
received 43 9 2
decision - approved 32 8
decision - refused 2
withdrawn 1 5
still current 18 1 2

Metro East JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13 1 1
received 20 9 2
decision - approved 14 10
decision - refused 1
withdrawn 1 1
still current 5 1

Metro North-West JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13 9 2 4
received 38 14 6
decision - approved 24 11
decision - refused 5
withdrawn 2 6
still current 15 5 4

Metro South-West JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13 3 1
received 42 13 2
decision - approved 37 11
decision - refused 1
withdrawn 1 2
still current 6 2 1

Metro West JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13 6 1
received 34 13 8
decision - approved 25 1
decision - refused 5
withdrawn 3
still current 9 6

Applications received in 2013/14 and decisions made�

Form 1 Form 2 SAT
Mid West JDAP   
app'l undetermined from 12/13
received 2 1
decision - approved 1
decision - refused
withdrawn
still current 1

Peel JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13 1 1
received 5 1
decision - approved 2
decision - refused
withdrawn 1
still current 3 1

Pilbara JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13 7 3
received 20 6 1
decision - approved 23 5
decision - refused 1
withdrawn 1 1
still current 2 4

South West JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13 4
received 5 2 1
decision - approved 9 1
decision - refused 1
withdrawn 1
still current

Wheatbelt JDAP
app'l undetermined from 12/13 1
received 1 1
decision - approved 1
decision - refused 1
withdrawn
still current 1

� Decisions will include some applications 
that were received in 2012/13



Demography and Indicators 
The Australian Bureau of Statistics release of population projections for Australia 
to 2101 and for states and territories to 2060-61 in November 2013 (ABS Cat. No. 
3222.0) would ordinarily be used as the long term projection for WA. However, 
in this latest release, ABS have assumed that WA’s share of the net overseas 
migration to Australia will continue to remain at the unusually high levels 
experienced recently. Both the DoP and Department of Treasury considered 
this assumption to be overly optimistic. Therefore, the WA Tomorrow Long Term 
Population Forecast for Western Australia has been prepared as an alternative 
to those prepared by the ABS. The Western Australian Planning Commission 
endorsed the alternative WA Tomorrow Long Term Population Forecasts at its 
meeting of April 22, 2014. These long term forecasts are only available for the 
total population of Western Australia.

Western Australia  
– Total Population Forecast

Urban Development Program
The Urban Development Program published by the WAPC aims to monitor land 
supply and promote the timely delivery of residential, industrial and commercial 
land and targeted regional centres and areas of activity. 

The Urban Growth Monitor has reported on several key stages of land supply, 
lot availability and the stocks of land zoned for future urban development in the 
Perth metropolitan, Peel and Greater Bunbury regions. The fifth edition of this 
annual report, which was scheduled for release in August 2014, identified a 
substantial stock of undeveloped land that is zoned urban or urban deferred that 
could theoretically satisfy urban growth for the long term. If all of this land were 
to be developed under Directions 2031 targets for infill and density, it would meet 
demand for the next 61 years. www.planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6182.asp

The Perth and Peel Urban Land Development Outlook 2013/14, is based on a 
comprehensive assessment of future land supply at all stages of the planning, 
zoning, approval, development and redevelopment pipeline. The Urban 
Development Program’s dynamic database enables the monitoring of current land 
development projects in addition to the identification of likely future residential, 
industrial and commercial land development across Perth and Peel. www.
planning.wa.gov.au/publications/6409.asp

The Regional Developers’ Land and Dwellings Intentions Survey 2014, was 
undertaken to gather data on the intentions developers have in regards to 
development for residential, transient workforce accommodation, key worker 
housing, tourism, industrial and commercial/retail purposes across the State’s 
regional centres. The data is assisting in developing strategies for various regional 
centres around the State. 

The preparation of the Newman and Tom Price Regional HotSpots Report rounds 
out the award winning suite of Pilbara HotSpots products, produced as part of 
the Urban Development Program. The HotSpots reports are important tools for 
developing the State’s major regional centres, helping to guide infrastructure 
planning and investment in those areas. The draft of the Newman and Tom Price 
report was completed during the year and charts the surge in demand for land and 
housing during the resources boom.
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SUBDIVISION TABLE�

2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14

SUBDIVISION APPLICATIONS (S)

Received 2,514 2,129 2,206 2,027 1,855 2,099 1,831

Determined 2,666 2,282 2,156 2,113 1,792 1,788 1,991

Within statutory time frame (target 80%) 57 49 65 79 79% 86% 83%

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS (D)

Received 500 681 586 547 492 512 615

Determined 465 569 557 420 432 442 540

Within statutory time frame (target 70%) 39 52 46 59 55% 73% 72%

STRATA TITLE APPLICATIONS (T)

Received 381 335 4 1 1 3 3

Determined 396 357 28 1 1 2 1

Within statutory time frame (target 70%) 47 52 21 100 0% 0% 100%

SURVEY STRATA APPLICATIONS (A)

Received 1,556 1,454 1,229 1,238 1,070 1568 1,443

Determined 1,605 1,685 1,159 1,732 1,056 1182 1,649

Within statutory time frame (target 70%) 69 69 78 64 79% 85% 76%

VACANT STRATA TITLE APPLICATIONS (V)

Received 29 23 22 18 16 31 20

Determined 16 33 11 20 16 22 17

Within statutory time frame (target 70%) 50 48 64 90 63% 73% 94%

SUBDIVISION APPROVALS

Residential lots - lodged 28,419 26,119 28,563 29,965 27,752 35,083 37,901

Residential lots - preliminary 25,865 22,772 24,307 25,346 25,394 26,018 34,031

Residential lots - final 18,115 12,186 10,915 12,695 11,339 15,009 17,781

State Lot Activity and Housing Activity
The Department continued throughout the year 
with the quarterly publication of the State Lot 
Activity report and the Land Supply and Housing 
Activity Report, which contributes significantly 
to sound decision-making by government 
concerning land and housing development.

Housing Industry Forecasting Group
The Department assisted in the production 
of the annual Housing Industry Forecasting 
Group report. This initiative provides the 
opportunity for significant input by a wide range 
of stakeholders in the housing industry to 
contribute significantly and assist government 
in making sound decisions around land and 
housing development. 

Planning applications 
A report on lot approval statistics, entitled State 
Lot Activity is produced quarterly as part of 
the Office of Land and Housing Supply Priority 
Project.

During 2013/14, the Western Australian Planning 
Commission received 2,656 applications 
(down 7 per cent on the previous year) for 
subdivision on 37,901 residential lots (up 8 per 
cent). It also granted conditional approval for 
34,031 residential lots (up 31 per cent) and final 
approval for 17,781 lots (up 18 per cent).

At 30 June 2014, the number of residential 
lots in stock across Western Australia stood at 
80,039 (up 10 per cent on the previous year).

� These figures include survey strata, vacant strata and subdivision applications



allocation, as well as monitoring performance, 
progress against targets and resource use. The 
following committees assist the Department in 
achieving good governance:
 � Executive Management Committee
 � Information Management Committee
 � Audit and Risk Management Committee.

In recognition of the importance of public sector 
agencies upholding high standards of ethics 
and conduct, whilst providing an environment of 
transparency and accountability, the Department 
maintains an Accountability Framework. The 
Accountability Framework details the overarching 
policies, reporting processes, legislation and 
Government directives that govern the way we 
perform our duties. 

The Department also maintains a Governance 
Guide for Managers which aims to build managers’ 
knowledge and understanding of governance and 
their responsibilities as public sector employees. 
The information contained in the Governance Guide 
can be applied to all levels of management and also 
includes a section to assist first time managers and 
supervisors. 

During 2013/14, work continued to streamline 
and review corporate policies and procedures 
in line with the Department’s Corporate Policy 
Development Framework which provides for the 
development, approval, implementation, review and 
evaluation of corporate policies and procedures. 
Key policies and procedures reviewed during 
the year related to the areas of procurement, 

Our values

Commitment: We do our best to build on our 
centres of excellence

Cooperation: We work collaboratively with our 
customers and stakeholders to achieve our goals 
and deliver a quality service

Honesty and integrity: We act ethically and with 
integrity

Innovation: We encourage creativity and 
excellence

Leadership: We are accountable and responsible 
while inspiring others to lead

Respect: We treat each other with fairness, 
dignity and understanding

During 2013/14, the Department of Planning 
continued to promote its corporate values within 
the workplace. This was achieved through a number 
of initiatives such as continued promotion of 
the Department’s code of conduct, accountable 
and ethical decision-making training, corporate 
inductions, performance and development 
discussions and other awareness-raising activities.

Corporate governance
The Department supports best practice in corporate 
governance which is demonstrated through 
consideration and approval of all Department 
policies, setting strategic direction and resource 

delegations, customer service, recruitment 
and selection, record keeping and information 
management.

Risk management
In line with the Department’s Risk Management 
and Business Continuity Policy, the Department 
maintained a Strategic Risk Register during 
2013/14. The Strategic Risk Register identifies a 
number of risks which have been assessed against 
the Department’s risk matrix. The register also 
details treatment strategies to minimise the rating 
of each risk. Monitoring of risks and treatment 
strategies occurs quarterly. Business areas also 
monitor risks applicable to their area of operation as 
part of the quarterly reporting process. 

Change management
Change management is increasingly being 
recognised as an essential capability for 
contemporary agencies operating in a rapidly 
changing environment. The Department 
implemented many changes within a challenging 
environment during 2013/14, including: welcoming 
our new Director General; re-incorporating our 
finance and payroll functions following the roll-out 
from the Department of Finance Shared Services 
Centre; and releasing the State Planning Strategy 
2050. The Department has thus demonstrated 

Managing the Department



Leading and developing our 
people

Employee profile
The Department employs a highly diverse range 
of talented people who work together to provide 
a broad range of planning services to the WAPC, 
Government and Western Australian community. 

The Department aims to create a workplace 
where our staff are valued and supported, 
business outcomes are achieved, diversity is 
encouraged, health and safety is promoted across 
all Department sites, the wellbeing of employees 
is supported through regular health promotion 
campaigns and the development of its people 
is supported to ensure that the services offered 
by the Department meet the diverse needs 
of our private, local government and industry 
stakeholders.

The recommendations derived from internal audit 
reviews are managed and monitored through 
the Department’s Audit Recommendation 
Management System. Progress reporting on the 
status of implementation of recommendations 
occurs on a monthly basis to the Executive 
Management Committee. In addition, the 
Department has in place an Audit and Risk 
Management Committee. The Committee’s 
primary objective is to improve the credibility and 
objectivity of the Department’s accountability 
processes and governance practices. The 
Committee is chaired by the Director General, 
and includes external audit representation.

External audit
During the year, both the Department and WAPC 
were included in the sample of agencies of the 
OAG Across Government Benchmarking audit of 
Debtor Management. Both agencies received 
"good" ratings against the criteria applied by the 
OAG. In addition, recommendations derived 
from external audit reviews are managed and 
monitored through the Department’s Audit 
Recommendation Management System. 

During 2013/14 progress reporting on the 
status of implementation of recommendations 
continued to be delivered to the Executive 
Management Committee on a monthly basis.

its change management capability by maintaining 
effective and efficient service delivery through 
these and other strategic and operational changes.

Internal audit
The Department’s internal audit function provides 
an independent and objective assurance and 
consulting service to add value and improve 
organisational operations and business practices, 
including those the Department undertakes 
on behalf of the Western Australian Planning 
Commission.

The Internal Audit Branch conducts comprehensive 
audits in accordance with the Department’s 
endorsed Internal Audit Charter and Audit Program. 
Some of the key reviews undertaken in 2013/14 
included:
 � attendance and leave management;
 � Development Assessment fees and collections;
 � asset and public property management and 

control;
 � follow–up of travel;
 � contract management;
 � post implementation review of eLodgement;
 � leasing arrangements at Whiteman Park; and
 � Committee Members fees, allowances and 

claims.



Promoting our values
During 2013/14, the Department continued to 
promote its corporate values within the workplace. 
This was achieved through a number of initiatives 
such as continued promotion of the Department’s 
code of conduct, accountable and ethical decision-
making training, corporate inductions, performance 
and development discussions and awareness-
raising discussions held at team and divisional 
managers’ meetings.

Learning and development
The Department is committed to providing its 
employees with appropriate opportunities to 
develop skills and knowledge that will enable 
them to both build their careers within the  
Department and contribute to the Department’s 
strategic goals.During 2013/14, 405 employees 
attended a professional development activity. 
Course topics ranged from leadership and people 
management, accountable and ethical decision-
making, appropriate workplace behaviour and 
change management through to first aid and 
generic training such as use of the Microsoft 
suite of tools. Planning-specific training programs 
and events were attended by planning staff 
throughout the year and identified through 
professional memberships and related corporate 
providers. Training aimed specifically at staff new 
to management positions was undertaken to 
support staff transitioning into management roles 
as well as keeping existing managers’ skills current. 
The program includes support and guidance on 
managerial compliance responsibilities for new 

Induction and included as a fundamental part of the 
Accountable and Ethical Decision Making training, 
which is compulsory for all staff to attend.

Accountable and ethical decision-
making
Accountable and ethical decision-making training 
aims to ensure our employees act with integrity 
when making decisions that relate to undertaking 
their duties. Being accountable and ethical is 
essential in maintaining the trust and confidence of 
the public in the work of government. In 2013/14, 
the Department continued face to face training, 
educating its employees in accountable and ethical 
decision-making that relates directly to planning 
decisions and processes as well as Public Sector 
issues they may face. The Department held four 
workshops this financial year. Since 2013, the 
Department continues to maintain an 82 per cent 
target of its workforce trained in accountable and 
ethical decision-making, as per the Public Sector 
Commissioner’s requirements.

Inductions
The Department continued its induction series 
in 2013/14 for all new staff in both metropolitan 
and regional locations. The Department aims to 
make each of our new employees feel welcomed, 
valued and prepared for their new role with the 
Department.

Employee numbers 

EMPLOYEE TYPE 2012/13 2013/14

Permanent employees 465 430

Full-time equivalent (Average) 484 446

Part-time employees 73 61

Fixed-term contracts 44 44

Regional employees

REGION NO. EMPLOYEES

Great Southern 8

Kimberley 1

Mid-West 4

Pilbara 1

South-West 21

Code of conduct
The Department of Planning’s Code of Conduct 
is included with each employee’s employment 
contract. The Code of Conduct is required to 
be read by all new staff as part of the induction 
process to ensure the highest standard of ethics, 
integrity, impartiality and professional conduct are 
adhered to. Support for staff in understanding the 
implications of the topics discussed is provided 
by the employee’s line manager or supervisor 
and through the Strategic Workforce Services 
division. The code is available on the Department’s 
intranet for all staff and promoted via the Corporate 



The Department is committed to providing 
education and awareness around the importance 
of good mental, physical and financial health and 
providing employees with information, resources 
and tools to support their wellbeing. Further 
information is available under the Employee 
Wellness section of this report below.

Occupational safety and health
During 2013/14, the Department built on its 
occupational health and safety platform through 
the use of proactive measures to address potential 
health and safety concerns of its staff. Included in 
this work were the following areas of focus:
 � Employee wellness and health promotion 

program;
 � Workers’ compensation and injury management;
 � Occupational safety and health training for 

managers; and
 � Hazard awareness and management.

Employee wellness and health 
promotion program
Since its launch in November 2011, the 
Department’s Wellness Program has promoted 
the benefits and increased awareness of health 
by offering staff opportunities for learning and 
interactive participation. The Department has 
participated in Quit Smoking, Get-on-track, Walk 
to Work and many other initiatives and challenges 
that target health and wellness. It has also included 
programs that revolve around Mental Health 

managers through to discussion on developing 
staff and alignment with divisional business 
planning and the Department’s strategic goals. The 
Department continues to promote other learning 
and development initiatives offered by external 
agencies, including the Public Sector Commission 
and the CCC, which are relevant to the business of 
the Department and the individuals’ career within 
the public sector. 

Employee assistance and support
The Department offers a range of services to 
support the health and wellbeing of our employees. 
The Department’s Employee Assistance Program 
(EAP) provides free confidential counselling to our 
employees and their families on both work-related 
and personal issues. The Department’s managers 
can access the EAP’s "Manager Hotline", which 
provides consultants who can offer practical advice 
to managers who are dealing with challenging staff 
issues in the workplace.

During 2013/14, the Department continued 
its commitment to the Grievance Resolution 
Program, aimed at promoting informal resolution 
of workplace issues and encouraging a positive 
workplace culture. The Department offers both 
grievance guidance officers for informal matters 
and trained grievance officers, who are available 
for more structured concerns and consultation. 
HR Business Partners provide overall support and 
guidance for managers and directors on reaching 
resolution for grievances within the Department.

management and stress management to improve 
positivity and productivity, whilst promoting the 
Department’s Employee Assistance Provider who is 
available to provide assistance and support.

The Department has continued its proactive 
partnerships with the Departments of Local 
Government and Communities, Finance, Regional 
Development, Lands, Transport and Treasury, 
each of which also run active wellness programs 
in Gordon Stephenson House and other regional 
locations that the Department of Planning may 
share. These partnerships are designed to promote 
professional networking and interaction between 
employees across agencies and advance the 
principle of sustainable interaction and engagement 
of State Government employees at Gordon 
Stephenson House. The Department uses a health 
promotion methodology to support workers in 
pursuing their interests, which has resulted in 
longer term and higher levels of healthy behaviours.

Workers’ compensation and injury 
management
The Department maintains its relationships 
with RiskCover, WorkSafe and external medical 
practitioners to ensure that staff continue to be 
supported if injured or ill as a result of their work, 
and return to work as soon as possible following 
both compensable and non-compensable injury. 
The Department has a low incident rate and has 
a 100 per cent return to work rate of workers’ 
compensation claimants returning within 13 weeks. 



Following a review of staff understanding of 
the Department’s processes supporting injury 
management and return to work, a review of 
procedures and training was undertaken to ensure 
that managers and supervisors are better able to 
support employees in these circumstances. These 
changes are supported in the OSH training for 
managers provided by the Department.

Occupational safety and health training 
for managers 
During 2013/14, the Department provided targeted 
training for its managers in Occupational Health 
and Safety through a risk management approach. 
The Department provides reports to the Corporate 
Executive on training participation rates and will 
continue to approach managers with the aim 
of ensuring their professional development and 
participation in safe work behaviours and risk 
management is maintained. 

� OSH performance statistics are measured against a three year trend in accordance with PSC Circular 2012 - 05

Hazard awareness and management
Hazard reporting and management was highlighted 
during the year with a focus on developing staff 
awareness of identification of hazards and the 
Department’s hazard reporting and management 
processes. This message has been reiterated to 
staff via the Safety Health and Wellness (SHAW) 
Committee meetings. 

During 2013/14, the Department continued to 
maintain its awareness of OSH requirements 
for its regional personnel and will continue to 
work with staff in these locations to ensure their 
good health and safety. The assessment of the 
Department’s OSH Management System was 
conducted in a regional location this year to enable 
a review of how safety information was transferred 
and used in these offices. Changes arising from 
the assessment will be included in further OSH 
management system refinements. The review 
also aims to simplify staff reporting of incidents 

Occupational safety and health performance statistics

MEASURE ACTUAL ACTUAL AGAINST TARGET

2011/12� 2013/14 Target Department 
result

No. of fatalities 0 0 0 Achieved

Lost time injury/disease incidence rate 0.6 1.57 0 or 10% reduction N

Lost time injury/disease severity rate 0 0 0 or 10% reduction Y
Percentage of injured workers returned to work: 
within 13 weeks 
within 26 weeks

 
100% 
100%

 
100% 
100%

Greater than or equal to 80%

Percentage of managers trained in OSH and injury management 39% 64.8% Greater than or equal to 80% N

and hazards and to streamline investigations of 
incidents, and the review process at the SHAW 
Committee level. SHAW representation includes: 
staff from each division, metropolitan and regional 
sites, management representative and the 
Department’s OSH consultant.



 � All Departmental advertisements for 
vacancies now contain a diversity 
statement affirming that the 
Department is an Equal Opportunity 
Employer and encourages people with 
disability to apply. 

 � The Department regularly reviews its 
recruitment and selection processes 
in order to encourage a diverse pool of 
applicants to apply and to ensure that 
the process is accessible to all. 

 � Requests for employment 
advertisements and all supporting 
documentation in alternative formats 
are accommodated on a case-by-case 
basis.

 � The Department ensures that staff 
and new employees with disability are 
provided with appropriate support and 
tools to undertake their employment 
responsibilities as specified in their 
position description.

 � The Department ensures that staff 
with disability are provided with 
appropriate development opportunities 
to meet longer-term plans for 
career development as part of the 
MyPlan performance review process 
which applies to all staff within the 
Department.

Managing our 
relationships

Disability Access 
and Inclusion Plan 
outcomes
The Department is currently 
implementing its Disability 
Access and Inclusion Plan 
2011-15 (DAIP) to achieve 
the seven outcomes 
defined in the Disability 
Services Act 1993. 

The DAIP details various 
strategies to ensure that 
people with disability 
have equal access to the 
Department’s products, 
services and consultation 
processes. Opposite is 
a summary of how the 
Department improved 
access to its products, 
services and consultation 
processes for people with 
disability during 2013/14. 

Outcome 1: People with disability have the same opportunities as other people to access the services of, 
and any events organised by, the Department.

The Department designed a customer feedback survey to ascertain client satisfaction to access services and 
attend events it organised to be distributed regularly at events and public consultation processes.

The Department ensures that, where practicable, all bus stops and train and tram platforms for the transport 
services provided at Whiteman Park are accessible and that there is a continuous accessible path of travel, 
including kerb ramps, from the ACROD parking bays and set down areas. 

Outcome 2: People with disability have the same opportunities as other people to access the building and 
facilities of the Department.

The new Visitor Information Centre at Whiteman Park is equipped with ramp access, automatic opening 
doors and lowered height information desk for ease of access for wheelchair users.

The Department ensures that the foot and bike path network at Whiteman Park is upgraded continuously to 
improve access from the bus stop at Lord Street to the Village Centre.

Outcome 3: People with disability receive the same level of information from the Department in a format that 
will enable them to access information as readily as other people. 

The Department developed a Language Services Policy and Procedure that includes provision for Auslan. 
These documents were communicated to staff via the Department’s intranet. Specialised sessions were also 
delivered to staff who have customer interaction.

Outcome 4: People with disability receive the same level and quality of service from employees of a public 
authority as other people receive. 

The Department’s Access and Inclusion Customer Service training package continued to be delivered to staff 
who have customer interaction. 

Outcome 5: People with disability have the same opportunities as other people to make complaints to a 
public authority. 

The Department completed a Complaints Handling Review and is currently implementing amendments to the 
complaints handling system. 

Handling complaints from people with disability is covered as part of the Department’s Access and Inclusion 
Customer Service training package for staff who have customer interaction.

Outcome 6: People with disability have the same opportunities as other people to participate in any public 
consultation by the relevant public authority. 

The Department’s stakeholder database has been updated to ensure that consultation processes now 
include key disability groups.

Outcome 7: People with disability have the same opportunities as other people to obtain and maintain 
employment with a public sector.



Freedom of Information
The Department and the Western Australian 
Planning Commission are considered one 
organisation for matters under the Freedom 
of Information Act 1992. The Department is 
responsible for processing FOI applications for both 
agencies, with the Assistant Director General as 
the designated decision-maker.

Under the Freedom of Information Act 1992 
(the FOI Act), a departmental decision can be 
reviewed if an applicant is dissatisfied with then 
that decision. Under Section 40 of the FOI Act, an 
application for internal review must be forwarded 
to the Department in writing within 30 calendar 
days of the date of decision. Matters still in dispute 
following an internal review can be submitted for 
external review to the Office of the Information 
Commissioner within 60 days from the date of the 
internal review decision. No fees or charges apply 
to internal or external FOI reviews.

Internal manuals and documents containing 
interpretations, guidelines, rules, policy, practices, 
precedents and particulars of any administrative 
scheme can be requested. These can be inspected 
at the agency, purchased or obtained free of 
charge. 

During 2013/14, the Department received 133 FOI 
applications. Of these, one was subject to internal 
review and five were transferred to another agency. 
No applications were subject to external review. 

Reconciliation Action Plan 
2013–15
As part of the Commonwealth and State whole-of-
government policy and in recognition of the importance 
of addressing the 17-year life expectancy gap between 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples and other 
Australians, the Department launched its Reconciliation 
Action Plan (RAP) for 2013-2015 on 16 September 2013 
at Whiteman Park. 

The Department is currently in the process of 
implementing the RAP. 

Key achievements to date include:
 � ensuring all departmental position advertisements 

contain a diversity statement that the Department 
is an Equal Opportunity Employer and encourages 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Australians to 
apply; 

 � gaining a trainee placement at Whiteman Park 
through the Public Sector Commission’s (PSC’s) 
Aboriginal Traineeship Program May 2013 intake;

 � reviewing all relevant policies, protocols and 
guidelines relating to Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander stakeholders; 

 � working with eight other Government agencies based 
in Gordon Stephenson House to organise a NAIDOC 
Week 2014 celebration; and

 � holding an Aboriginal cross-cultural awareness 
training session in May 2014 for key frontline staff to 
ensure the Department’s services meet the needs 
of its Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander customers, 
with more sessions to be delivered during 2014/15.

Substantive equality
In accordance with the Public Sector 
Commissioner’s Circular 2009-23: 
Implementation of the Policy Framework 
for Substantive Equality (Policy Framework), 
the Department is implementing two 
Substantive Equality reviews in areas of high 
relevance which have a substantial effect 
on discrimination, as well as equality of 
opportunity: 
 � Review of Customer Service at Whiteman 

Park – Substantive Equality Assessment 
2011/12, due for completion in December 
2014; and

 � Review of the Aboriginal Communities 
Program Consultation Process - 
Substantive Equality Assessment 2012/13, 
which includes ongoing strategies. 

During 2013/14 no new reviews were 
undertaken as the Department’s focus on 
implementing the outcomes of the above 
reviews undertaken in previous years.

The Department undertakes regular 
reviews of policies and procedures affecting 
our Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
stakeholders and those from diverse 
backgrounds. The Department also ensures 
that all new policies, services and major 
initiatives are assessed for their impact on 
those stakeholders.



 � An online Record Keeping Awareness Training 
(RAT) course is available to all Planning employees. 
At 30 June 2014, 86 per cent of the Department’s 
employees had completed the course.

 � The online RAT is mandatory for all employees. 
Training assessment is integrated into the package 
and feedback from those who have completed the 
course is reviewed and acknowledged. Agency-
specific information on RAT processes is made 
available on the employee intranet. Content is 
reviewed periodically to ensure it reflects current 
operational and administrative practices and 
processes.

 � A comprehensive training package in the use 
of the Objective system is available and all new 
staff must attend an Objective training session. 
Follow-up assistance is available through the 
Department’s Help Desk and a Training and 
Support officer. Quick reference guides are also 
available.

 � A presentation on recordkeeping is included in the 
Department’s induction program to advise new 
employees of their roles and responsibilities in 
creating, managing and maintaining government 
records. All new employees are expected to 
complete the online RAT, which covers roles and 
responsibilities on recordkeeping and compliance 
with the Recordkeeping Plan. A brochure, 
Recordkeeping: Your Responsibilities is also 
available to assist employees deal with different 
aspects of recordkeeping. New employees are 
also required to undertake training in the use 
of the electronic records management tool, 
Objective.

Public information
Publications and technical reports produced by 
the Department of Planning are available from the 
Department’s library and through the Library and 
Information Service of Western Australia. Many 
are also available through the Publications section 
of the Planning WA website at www.planning.
wa.gov.au.

Managing our resources

Recordkeeping
During 2013/14 the Department and the Western 
Australian Planning Commission continued to 
be committed to good recordkeeping under the 
requirements of the State Records Act 2000. The 
Department’s Recordkeeping Plan (2012) detailing 
legacy recordkeeping policies, procedures and 
practices was approved by the State Records 
Office on 30 August 2012.

The State Records Commission’s minimum 
compliance requirements are:
 � The Department uses Objective as 

its Electronic Document and Records 
Management System, which allows it to deal 
with digital as well as paper records within 
an integrated environment. A process of 
continuous improvement is also in place to 
improve performance and service and training 
sessions are made available for all employees 
on request.

Governance and other disclosures

Ministerial directives
In accordance with Treasurer’s Instruction 903(12), 
neither the Department of Planning nor the 
Western Australian Planning Commission received 
any ministerial directives in 2013/14.

Pricing policies for services provided
The supply of goods and services undertaken 
by the Department of Planning represent works 
undertaken for the State Government and/or 
Western Australian Planning Commission on a cost 
recovery basis. Further details are available in the 
Financial Statements.

Probity

Contracts with senior officers
At 30 June 2014, other than normal contracts of 
employment of service, no senior officers, firms of 
which senior officers are members, or entities in 
which senior officers have substantial interests, had 
any interests in existing or proposed contracts with 
the Department of Planning. 

Advertising and marketing expenditure
In accordance with section 175 ZE of the Electoral 
Act 1907 the Western Australian Planning 
Commission and the Department of Planning 
incurred the following expenditure with advertising, 
market research, polling, direct mail and media 
advertising.

www.planning.wa.gov.au
www.planning.wa.gov.au


ADVERTISING AND MARKETING EXPENDITURE
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING

Advertising agencies nil

Direct mail organisations nil

Market research organisations

Research Solutions (50% with WAPC) 6,380

Media advertising organisations

Adcorp 13,195

Polling organisations nil

TOTAL 19,575

WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Advertising agencies

Gatecrasher 771

Direct mail organisations

The Poster Girls 2,880

Market research organisations

Research Solutions (50 % with DoP) 6,380

Media advertising organisations

Adcorp 63,140

Aussie Drawcards 540

Countrywide Australia 1,200

Datatrax 1,126

On Topic Media 90

Optimum Media Decisions (WA) 107,296

Sub total 173,392

Polling organisations nil

TOTAL 183,423

� Major projects valued at more than $5 million

Major capital projects
Details of major capital projects� at 30 June 2014 in accordance with  
Treasurer’s Instruction 903 Section 13) (ii) (a) (b) are listed in the table below.

Projects remaining incomplete

PROJECT NAME EXPECTED YEAR 
OF COMPLETION

ESTIMATED COST 
TO COMPLETE

ESTIMATED TOTAL 
COST OF PROJECT

$’000 $’000

WAPC

Acquisition of Land Ongoing 36,098 35,958

Regional Land Acquisition Ongoing 10,355 11,890

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING

Perry Lakes Redevelopment Project 2017/18 81,267 244,782

Accommodation Refurbishment 2022/23 2,556 6,022

Information & Communications Technology Infrastructure 2022/23 16,720 29,950

Minor Works Program 2022/23 7,455 20,123

Office of Shared Services Roll Out 2014/15 1,934 5,297
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Where to find us

Head office

Department of Planning
Gordon Stephenson House
140 William Street
Perth WA 6000
Phone: +61 8 6551 9000
Fax: +61 8 6551 9001

Western Australian Planning 
Commission
Gordon Stephenson House
140 William Street
Perth WA 6000
Phone: +61 8 6551 9000
Fax: +61 8 6551 9001

Website: www.planning.wa.gov.au
Email: corporate@planning.wa.gov.au

Peel office
Unit 2B, 11–13 Pinjarra Road
Mandurah WA 6210
Phone: 9586 4680

Great Southern office
178 Stirling Terrace
Albany WA 6330
Phone: 9892 7333 

Whiteman Park
Lord Street
Whiteman WA 6068
Phone: 9209 6000
Website: www.whitemanpark.com

Pilbara office
3-5 Welcome Road
Karratha WA 6714
Phone: 9159 6910

Mid West office
Level 2, 209 Foreshore Drive
Geraldton WA 6530
Phone: 9960 6999

Perth Head office
Full contact details on the left

Kimberley office
Unit 23 Shiba Lane Offices
Broome WA 6725
Phone: 9194 4900

South West office
Sixth floor, Bunbury Tower
61 Victoria Street,
Bunbury WA 6230
Phone: 9791 0577
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GAIL MCGOWAN
Director General
Gail McGowan was appointed 
the Director General of the 
Department of Planning in 
April 2014 for a five-year term. 
Prior to her appointment, 
she was the Deputy Director 
General for the State 
Initiatives division of State 
Development, which involved 
leadership and management 
responsibility for projects of 
strategic significance to the 
State, project approvals and 
strategic industrial land. Her 
work centred on negotiating 
and liaising with stakeholders 
across industry, government 
and community.

Ms McGowan’s background 
includes positions as the 
Director of Policy and 
Education at WorkSafe 
and a number of years as 
the principal policy advisor 
and Chief of Staff to State 
and Federal Ministers of 
Parliament, with responsibility 
across a range of portfolio 
areas including employment 
and training, industrial 
relations and the environment.

Appendix 1: Executive descriptor – Term of 
appointment – Department of Planning

NEIL THOMSON
Assistant Director General 
Strategic Corporate Support
Neil Thomson has held a 
number of positions within 
the Western Australian public 
sector for more than 24 years, 
providing economic advice 
and policy development 
within the departments of 
Agriculture, Fisheries, Industry 
and Technology and Treasury.

Mr Thomson has been 
with the Department of 
Planning since June 2011, 
leading the delivery of the 
Department’s operations, 
including among other things, 
corporate planning, audit and 
risk management, financial 
management, information 
management and systems, 
legal services, geospatial 
systems and mapping. 
Furthermore, he is responsible 
for the management of the 
Western Australian Planning 
Commission’s significant 
property portfolio, which 
includes Whiteman Park. 

DAVID SAUNDERS
Executive Director 
Regional Planning and 
Strategy
David Saunders joined the 
Department in October 
2007 after working in local 
government, State and 
Commonwealth public sector 
roles in WA, Queensland and 
NSW.

Mr Saunders has worked in 
senior roles with the NSW 
government in the planning 
and operation of the Sydney 
Olympic Games; and with the 
Australian and Queensland 
governments in the planning 
and gazettal of the statutory 
and strategic plan of 
management for the Wet 
Tropics World Heritage Area in 
North Queensland.

Mr Saunders’ current role 
includes the strategic and 
statutory planning for regional 
WA, with a current focus on 
developing strategic planning 
and infrastructure frameworks 
for each of the eight planning 
regions across the State.

SUE BURROWS
Executive Director 
Perth and Peel Planning
Sue Burrows joined the 
Department of Planning 
as its first Independent 
Planning Reviewer, in 2010. 
In that role she provided 
assessment and advice on 
planning process matters 
to both the Department 
and the Western Australian 
Planning Commission, as 
well as independent counsel 
on planning applications to 
consultants, developers, 
local government and other 
stakeholders.

In her current role, Ms 
Burrows is responsible for 
metropolitan planning across 
the Perth and Peel regions, 
operational policy coordination 
and planning administration.

Ms Burrows has extensive 
strategic and statutory 
planning knowledge and 
experience, which includes 
more than 25 years across five 
local governments. She has 
dealt with diverse planning 
issues from structure planning 
and Greenfield subdivisions to 
inner city developments.

ANNE HILL
Executive Director 
Strategy, Policy and Projects
Anne Hill re-joined the 
Department of Planning in May 
2013, having previously worked 
for the Department and its 
predecessor in 2008/09.

She has extensive experience 
in the Western Australian 
public sector, much of it in 
strategic policy leadership 
roles, across a range 
of portfolios including 
Agriculture, Energy, Planning, 
Premier and Cabinet, Public 
Sector Management, State 
Development, Transport and 
Treasury. She has also worked 
in the private energy sector 
and served on the boards of 
not-for-profit organisations.

Ms Hill holds a Master of 
Science degree and post-
graduate qualifications in 
public sector management. 
She is a graduate member 
of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors, a fellow 
of the Australian Institute 
of Energy and a member 
of the Institute of Public 
Administration Australia.

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING EXECUTIVE TEAM AS AT 30 JUNE 2014



Appendix 2: Composition of Western 
Australian Planning Commission

ERIC LUMSDEN PSM
Chairman

Term of appointment:  
5 November 2013 to  
4 November 2016
Eric Lumsden was formally 
appointed Chairman of the 
WAPC in November 2013, 
following 12 months in that 
role while also concluding 
six years as the Director 
General for the Department 
for Planning and Infrastructure 
(and latterly the Department of 
Planning). He was previously 
CEO of the City of Melville 
and the City of Swan. Mr 
Lumsden holds masters 
degrees in town planning and 
business administration, and 
post graduate qualifications 
in local government and 
social sciences. He is a 
life fellow of the Planning 
Institute of Australia, fellow 
of the Australian Institute 
of Management, and fellow 
and past president of the 
WA Division of the Local 
Government Managers 
Association. In 2005 Mr 
Lumsden was awarded a 
Public Service Medal for 
his contribution to local 

government, especially 
in the area of economic 
development, and in 2012 
was made a National Fellow 
of the Institute of Public 
Administration of Australia.

GAIL MCGOWAN
Director General, 
Department of Planning

Term of appointment:  
7 April 2014 – ex officio
For biographical details see 
Appendix 1, Department 
of Planning Executive 
biographies, page 47). 

RAY COLYER
Local government (non-
metropolitan) representative

Term of appointment:  
9 February 2010 to  
20 August 2014
Cr Ray Colyer was elected as 
Leeuwin Ward Councillor and 
Deputy Shire President in May 
2005. He was re-elected in 
2009 and 2011 as a Leeuwin 
Ward Councillor and Shire 
President of the Augusta 
Margaret River Shire.

Cr Colyer began his career 
as a horticulturalist and after 
further study moved into the 
finance and property sector 
working for the Swan Brewery 
and Bond Property companies 
for several years.

He has been involved in small 
business for more than 25 
years and currently operates 
a property maintenance 
business in Augusta-
Margaret River region. He 
is also involved in tourism 
accommodation and other 
tourism attractions in the 
Margaret River region.

MAREE DE LACEY 
BSW; B.Soc.Wk.
Director General, 
Department of Water

Term of appointment:  
31 May 2010 – ex officio
Ms Maree De Lacey’s most 
recent previous positions 
have been as Chief Executive 
Officer of Peel Development 
Commission and Executive 
Director with the then 
Department for Community 
Development.

Ms De Lacey has had 
extensive experience at 
practitioner and executive 
levels with State and 
Commonwealth governments 
in metropolitan and regional 
areas of Queensland and 
WA. She has more than 
30 years’ experience in the 
planning, design and delivery 
of services and infrastructure 
through partnerships with 
government, industry and the 
community.

PAUL DRECHSLER
Professional representative

Term of appointment:  
9 February 2010 to  
20 August 2014
Mr Paul Drechsler is the Group 
Managing Director of Hames 
Sharley, a national planning, 
urban design and architectural 
practice. He is a professional 
town planner, geographer and 
land economist with more 
than 35 years consulting 
experience in Australia, New 
Zealand, India and Asia. 

Mr Drechsler’s expertise 
includes master planning, 

WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION MEMBERS AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

urban design and feasibility 
studies of large-scale urban 
developments, town centres 
and major infrastructure 
projects. He is the Deputy 
Presiding Member of the 
Northwest Metropolitan Joint 
Development Assessment 
Panel. He also has a 
comprehensive understanding 
of retail sector dynamics 
in Australia and is currently 
undertaking a research 
doctorate at the University 
of Western Australia on 
the implications of place 
attachment in town centre 
design.

Mr Drechsler holds a 
double major in geography 
and biological science; is 
a member of the Planning 
Institute of Australia; and 
a fellow of the Australian 
Property Institute. He is also 
an affiliate of the Australian 
Institute of Architects and 
a member of the Australian 
Institute of Urban Studies 
and Institute of Australian 
Geographers.
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PROFESSOR ROBERT 
HARVEY
Professional representative

Term of appointment:  
9 February 2010 to  
20 August 2014
Professor Robert Harvey 
has a degree in engineering 
and a Master in Business 
Administration from the 
University of Western 
Australia.

Professor Harvey commenced 
his career as an engineer in 
the then Water Authority, 
specialising in resource 
management, planning and 
policy. His last position in the 
Authority was as Director 
Water Resources Planning. 
As an Executive Director at 
the Department of Justice 
from 1999 to 2003, he was 
responsible for community 
corrections, juvenile justice 
and correctional policy. He 
oversaw the introduction 
of the State’s first privately-
operated prison and made 
significant improvements 
to an important part of 
the State’s criminal justice 
system. 

From 2003 to 2009 Professor 
Harvey was Pro Vice-
Chancellor and Dean of 
Business and Law at Edith 
Cowan University. He has 
also been a member of the 
Water Corporation Board since 
2007. On behalf of the Board 
of the Water Corporation, he 
convened a scientific panel 
to review the State’s 50-year 
water plan — Water Forever.

GLEN KELLY
Indigenous interests 
representative

Term of appointment:  
20 March 2007 to  
20 August 2014
Mr Glen Kelly is the Chief 
Executive Officer of the 
South West Aboriginal Land 
and Sea Council, the Native 
Title representative body for 
the South West of Western 
Australia. He is a Wardandi 
Noongar and possesses a 
Bachelor of Environmental 
Science degree.

Mr Kelly has been working 
in the Aboriginal community 
sector since the early 1990s 

and specifically in protected 
area, land and cultural 
resource management and, 
since 2001, in the area of 
native title. Glen has served 
on a number of committees 
and statutory boards at both 
Australian and State levels.

JASON BANKS
Director General, 
Department of Environment 
Regulation

Term of appointment:  
1 July 2013 – ex officio
The appointment of Jason 
Banks to the inaugural position 
of Director-General of the 
Department of Environment 
Regulation, was announced 
this year following 12 months 
of acting in the role after the 
department’s creation in July 
2013. He led the formation of 
the agency, overseeing more 
than 300 staff and driving a 
range of reforms. 

Mr Banks has extensive 
management experience 
and has worked more than 
two decades at a range of 
state government agencies, 

including as CEO and co-
ordinator of energy at the 
Office of Energy. He was also 
instrumental in co-ordinating 
the government’s response 
to the June 2008 explosion 
at the Varanus Island gas 
processing plant.

He has also worked as a 
senior adviser with the 
Department of State 
Development and as a 
management consultant 
with the Public Sector 
Commission. He began his 
career with the WA Police 
where he served as an officer 
and later a detective.

The Department of 
Environment Regulation 
was formed along with 
the Department of Parks 
and Wildlife to replace the 
Department of Environment 
and Conservation

DR GARRY MIDDLE
Ph.D.; M.Phil.(Urban Studies); 
B.Sc.(Hons.Env.Sc.); B.Sc.
(Chem)Dip.Ed. 
Coastal Planning and 
Management representative

Term of appointment: 31 May 
2011 to 30 May 2013, and 
renewed to 5 August 2015
Associate Professor Garry 
Middle currently heads the 
Department of Urban and 
Regional Planning at Curtin 
University. He has more 
than 30 years’ experience 
in environment planning, 
policy and governance; 
environmental impact 
assessment; strategic 
environmental assessment; 
and coastal planning, 
working with State and local 
governments as a consultant 
and an academic.

Before joining Curtin 
University in June 2008 Dr 
Middle was the Appeals 
Convenor for the Minister for 
Environment and prior to that 
was Director, Environment 
and Natural Resource Planning 
at the Department for 
Planning and Infrastructure; 
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Manager, Strategic Planning 
and Environment at the 
City of Rockingham; and 
Manager, Environmental 
Planning Branch servicing 
the Environmental Protection 
Authority.

Dr Middle sits on the WA 
Planning Institute of Australia’s 
Division Committee and is a 
member of the International 
Association of Impact 
Assessment.

STEPHEN WOOD
B.Psych.; M.Pub.Admin.
Director General, 
Department of State 
Development

Term of appointment:  
24 May 2011 – ex officio
Stephen Wood commenced 
his current position in May 
2011. He has held a variety 
of positions across the 
Commonwealth and State 
public sectors, including 
in defence and customs. 
He was previously Deputy 
Director General, Strategic 
Issues at the Department 
of Premier and Cabinet; 

Commissioner of the Western 
Australian Industrial Relations 
Commission; Deputy Director 
General Department of 
Premier and Cabinet; and a 
consultant for native title.

GRAHAME SEARLE
Director General, 
Department of Housing

Term of appointment:  
26 August 2008 – ex officio
Grahame Searle holds a 
Bachelor of Business and 
has extensive experience in 
service delivery, leadership 
and organisational change. 

From 1998 to 2008 Grahame 
led the transformation of 
the Department of Land 
Administration from a 
traditional public service 
agency to its current statutory 
authority status, Landgate. 

Mr Searle’s broad conceptual 
and problem solving abilities 
are now being applied to 
address the complexities of 
the Department of Housing. 
He is focussed on forging 
new and innovative ways to 
meet increasing demand, 

including new partnerships 
with community housing 
organisations across the 
State. 

Mr Searle has a strong 
background in information 
technology and, in particular, 
integrating computer systems 
for customer service delivery. 
He has extensive experience 
in managing information 
technology projects in Victoria 
and Western Australia. 

Mr Searle is also an Honorary 
Fellow of the Spatial Sciences 
Institute of Australia; past 
president of the Institute 
of Public Administration 
(WA Division); and a board 
member of the WA Treasury 
Corporation.

REECE WALDOCK 
Director General, 
Department of Transport

Term of appointment:  
3 May 2010 – ex officio
Reece Waldock has more 
than 25 years’ experience 
in strategic management 
with particular expertise in 
organisational reform. He 

held a number of senior 
executive roles within the 
Department of Commerce 
and Trade and Department of 
Transport from the early 1990s 
through to the end of 2000. 
Prior to his career with the 
WA public sector, Mr Waldock 
held a number of senior 
management roles with BHP.

In December 2000, following 
the sale of the rail freight 
business of the Western 
Australian Government 
Railways Commission, he 
acted in the position of 
Commissioner of Railways. 
With the creation of the 
Public Transport Authority on 
1 July 2003, Mr Waldock was 
appointed as the inaugural 
CEO and oversaw the 
integration of all statewide 
public transport services, 
together with a major 
construction program, which 
included the Mandurah 
Railway.

In May 2010, the State 
Government integrated 
its three key transport 
agencies and Mr Waldock 
was appointed to head the 

Transport portfolio, consisting 
of the Department of 
Transport, Main Roads WA and 
the Public Transport Authority. 
This heralded a new direction 
for the portfolio of single point 
accountability and a whole of 
portfolio approach. 

HENRY ZELONES
Local government 
(metropolitan) representative

Term of appointment:  
9 February 2010 to  
20 August 2014
Mayor Henry Zelones JP was 
elected as a Councillor at the 
City of Armadale in 1989. 
Currently serving as Chairman 
of the Armadale Development/
Planning Services Committee, 
a position he has held for the 
past 20 years. He is a board 
member of the Armadale 
Redevelopment Authority 
(2002), WA Local Government 
Association State Council 
(2005), WA Heritage Council 
Board Member (2008) and 
Deputy Commissioner WAPC 
(2004) and Commissioner 
WAPC (2010).
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Deputy MembersMayor Zelones has been 
closely involved with 
local government reform, 
chairing WALGA’s Planning 
Reform Policy Forum and 
local government reform 
committees. He has extensive 
experience in private industry, 
having establishing his own 
business in 1971. He has 
served as a board member of 
the Chamber of Commerce 
and a member of the local 
Business Association for more 
than 30 years. He also has 
a background in information 
technology.

PAUL ROSAIR
Associate Member

Term of appointment:  
13 December 2011 to  
1 July 2014
Paul Rosair was the Director 
General of the Department 
of Regional Development and 
Lands following its formation 
in July 2009 to bring a new 
focus to regional Western 
Australia.

Mr Rosair previously held 
the positions of Director of 
Regional Operations with the 

Department of Water and the 
Department of Environment. 
He started his career as a 
hydrographer and spent time 
as an information technology 
professional. He worked for 
more than 30 years in senior 
government roles across 
environment, water, land 
management, Aboriginal 
affairs, infrastructure, planning 
and natural resources 
management portfolios.

RUSSELL AUBREY
Deputy for local government 
metropolitan representative

Term of appointment:  
21 August 2012 to  
20 August 2014
Russell Aubrey was Mayor 
of the City of Melville from 
2007, having been first elected 
to local government in 1991. 
He has completed university 
studies in economics and 
computing and a diploma 
from the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors.

Mayor Aubrey has led his 
local government on a path 
of responsible change to 
societal, economic and 
environmental drivers and 
is a strong advocate for 
contemporary planning 
principles. He shares a 
passion for building better and 
more resilient communities 
through his work and is a 
member of the Disability 
Services Board.

VALERIE AMMON
B. Psych.
Deputy for local government 
non metropolitan 
representative

Term of appointment:  
21 August 2012 to  
20 August 2014
Cr Ammon is currently 
a councillor with the 
Shire of Gingin, a board 
member of the Wheatbelt 
Development Commission 
and has experience as a small 
business owner. Cr Ammon is 
a qualified psychologist with 
extensive experience in the 
areas of mental health and 
drug and alcohol abuse.

TIM HILLYARD 
WAPC Secretary
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STATUTORY COMMITTEES
Committees that met regularly throughout 
2013/14 were:

Executive, Finance and Property Committee
The committee performs the administrative, 
financial and property functions of the Western 
Australian Planning Commission. Most of its 
activities centre on monitoring development 
projects, the acquisition and disposal of property 
and associated capital works. 

Statutory Planning Committee
The committee is the WAPC’s regulatory 
decision-making body. Its functions include 
approval of the subdivision of land, approval of 
leases and licenses, approval of strata schemes, 
advice to the Minister for Planning on local 
government town planning schemes and scheme 
amendments, and the determination of certain 
development applications under the Metropolitan 
Region Scheme. 

Infrastructure Coordinating Committee
The committee advises the WAPC on planning 
for the provision of physical and community 
infrastructure throughout the state. It has 
the powers to coordinate the metropolitan 
development program, the country land 
development program and the provision of 
infrastructure for land development.

Central Perth Planning Committee
The special purpose committee was established 
to oversee and provide direction for planning in 
the Perth central area. It exercises delegated 
authority to deal with the City of Perth town 
planning scheme and scheme amendments; the 
Metropolitan Region Scheme and amendments; 
subdivisions, strata titles, leases and licenses; 
and development on reserved land within the 
City of Perth. The WAPC has the authority to 
create special purpose committees to assist 
with its land-use planning activities across the 
State. Committees may have specific tasks or 
be established, as needed, to address a one-off 
situation. The Commission sets the membership 
and terms of reference for these committees.

REGIONAL COMMITTEES

South West Region Planning Committee 
The committee is the longest established 
regional planning committee in the State. It 
undertakes strategic and statutory decision-
making for land planning matters in the South-
West region on behalf of the WAPC. It deals with 
the subdivision of land, local planning schemes 
and amendments, the Greater Bunbury Region 
Scheme and amendments and land development 
policies for the region. 

During 2013/14 the committee met three times.

The Peel Regional Planning Committee
This committee was formed to oversee 
preparation of the Peel Region Scheme 
incorporating the local government districts of 
the City of Mandurah and the shires of Waroona 
and Murray. It met once during 2013/14.

Pilbara Regional Planning Committee 

The Pilbara Regional Planning Committee met on 
one occasion in 2013/14. 

Kimberley Regional Planning Committee
During 2013/14 the Kimberley Regional Planning 
Committee held two meetings.

WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING 
COMMISSION

In 2013/14, the Western Australian Planning 
Commission met 13 times (one special).

Appendix 3: Western Australian 
Planning Commission committees



COMMITTEE & MEMBER FEES

Western Australian Planning Commission
Ammon, Valerie Joy 1,142
Aubrey, Russell Anthony 1,142
Colyer, Raymond George 7,992
Drechsler, Paul John 13,700
Harvey, Robert Anthony 13,700
Kelly, Glen Alan 13,700
Middle, Garry John 13,700
Zelones, Henry Anthony 13,700

Total 78,775

Central Perth Planning Committee
Blackwell, Anthony Bowen 800
Butler, Robert John 400
Fulker, Marion Celia 800
Poole, Michael Leslie 600
Scaffidi, Lisa-Michelle 400

Total 3,000

Executive Finance and Property Committee
Perry, Russel John 1,050
Zelones, Henry Anthony 4,230

Total 5,280

Committee members sitting fees for 2013/14

Appendix 4: Remuneration  
for committee members

COMMITTEE & MEMBER FEES

Hearing Committee
Bartle, Megan Anne Adair 4,350
McDowall, James Kent 3,800
Taylor, Elizabeth 2,850

Total 11,000

Infrastructure Coordinating Committee
Dullard, Helen Mary 350

Total 350

Kimberley Regional Planning Committee
Campbell, Graeme Thomas 800
King, Thomas Phillip 200

Total 1,000

Peel Region Planning Committee
Chaney, Frederick Charles 200
Fitzpatrick, Paul Francis 200
Williams, Rhys John 200

Total 600

Pilbara Regional Planning Committee
Green, Richard Mark 200

Total 200

COMMITTEE & MEMBER FEES

South West Region Planning Committee
Hicks, Stuart Keith 650
Jackson, Tania Gae 500
Pimm, Rosanne Bromley 700

Total 1,850

Statutory Planning Committee
Bartle, Megan Anne Adair 5,600
Holloway, Ian Janson 5,600
Taylor, Elizabeth 7,220

Total 18,420

Swan Valley Planning Committee�

Gaudet, Joseph Alain 1,650
Gratte, Henry Victor 1,650
Griffiths, John David 1,500
Hunt, Brian Atlee 1,350
Lovreta, Jim Anthony 1,800
Shaw, Martin Sinclair 600
Taylor, Elizabeth 1,500
Tomlinson, Derrick Gordon 2,200
Trease, Darryl Raymond 1,270
Vuleta, Keith John 1,350
Zannino, Cosimo 1,720

Total 16,590

GRAND TOTAL  137,065

� The Swan Valley Planning Committee  
is a DoP operated committee



DAP SPECIALIST MEMBER NAME�� FEES

Bartle, Megan Anne Adair 23,400
Birch, Ian Thomas 6,500
Butterly, Vernon Selby 800
Chapman, Rachel Jane 400
Curtis, Brian  4,100
D'Alessandro, Luigi 16,800
Drechsler, Paul John 11,900
Ellis, John Rolyston 3,200
Gray, David 13,000
Higham, Clayton Morris 8,200
Hocking, Ian James 15,800
Hyde, Karen Suzanne 21,000
Johnson, Charles Ross 19,000
Koltasz, Eugene 16,500
Kotsoglo, Paul Basil 5,500
Lee, Peter Hugh 2,800
Mackay, Malcolm Alexander 7,200
McDowall, James Kent 7,200
Nicholson, Robert Charles 8,000
O'Brien, Rory John 16,800
Syme, Alexander John 400
Towne, Stacey Darriel 4,400
Tyzack, Terence John 6,800
Zuideveld, Freerk 8,800

Total 228,500

LG DAP MEMBER NAME� FEES

Stewart, Joy Margaret 4,000
Strachan, Jon Robert 3,650
Stubbs, Ian William 800
Sullivan, Andrew Charles 4,450
Syme, John Ken 1,200
Thomson, Barrie James 400
Toldo, Tiziano 400
Topelberg, Joshua Aaron 3,200
Trease, Darryl Raymond 1,200
Tulloch, Alastair George 800
Twaddle, Andrew 400
Urban, Barry 400
Waterhouse, Peter John 400
Webster, Barry George 400
White, Kerry Marlene 1,600
White-Hartig, Fiona Anne 1,600
Willox, Rodney Mervyn 5,200
Wilson, Gary William 1,200
Windram, Mark 400
Withers, Simon John 800
Wood, Dennis Cleve 1,200
Wood, Sherilyn Ivy 1,200
Wortley, Ronald 400
Wright, Dennis James 400
Young, Maria Luigia 400
Zannino, Cosimo 4,000

Total 178,000

GRAND TOTAL 406,500

DAP Committee members sitting fees for 2013/14

� DAP Specialist Members may sit on more than 
one panel and fees can include payment for State 
Administrative Tribunal Mediations, Hearings and 
Reconsiderations.

� DAP Member payments are based on a cost 
recovery model from DAP Application Fees



Abolished Performance Indicator: Avoided land 
consumption costs

This is a measure of savings made through compacting 
residential areas rather than allowing them to be freely dispersed 
and widespread. Where the avoided land consumption costs 
trend upwards or remain static, the Department demonstrates 
success in minimising urban sprawl and leveraging from existing 
infrastructure to increase affordability for consumers.

Estimated infrastructure cost savings per lot are extracted from 
the WAPC publication Future Perth: Cost of Urban Form, Perth 
Metropolitan Region. This is multiplied by final lot approvals for 
2013/14 from the WAPC publication State Lot Activity Report to 
arrive at indicative infrastructure savings which represent avoided 
land consumption costs. During 2011/12, the methodology used 
to calculate the infrastructure cost savings per lot was revised. 
As a result, when comparing the 2011/12 actual to previous year 
actuals, significant variances will be evident. 

Appendix 5: Performance Indicator  
Review – non auditable

Abolished Performance Indicator: People in the Metropolitan Region  
that live within ten minutes of a major public transport route

In order for transport systems to be accessible, they must be located within a reasonable 
distance of the commuter’s dwelling. In this context, accessibility refers to both train stations 
and bus stops that are within 10 minutes travel time. Travel mode includes pedestrian, bicycle 
and car trips. For bus stops the ‘ten minutes’ is on foot (10 minutes is usually recognised as the 
pedestrian threshold for trips) where for railway stations the 10 minutes is by car or bicycle1. 

To calculate this indicator, modeling techniques are used to create buffers around bus stops and 
train stations within the Metropolitan Region. The Metropolitan Region is inclusive of the Perth 
Metropolitan Region plus the City of Mandurah and the Shire of Murray. 

The Census small area population statistics previously used to determine these indicators are 
no longer available as they terminated with the 2006 census. Census 2011 commenced a new 
census time-series, the Australian Statistical Geographical Standard (ASGS) and like previous 
censuses, the data is available only once every five years. Dwelling counts since 2011/12 have 
replaced population as they are reliable indicators of population and economic activity and are 
readily available on an annual basis from the WA Valuer General (Landgate).2

An increase in the percentage of people living within 10 minutes by foot, bicycle or car of a 
public transport route would indicate enhanced accessibility. 

1 Liveable Neighbourhoods Policy, 2004
2 Valuer General’s Office, November 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Western Australian Planning 
Commission. 
 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014, the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Commission’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Commission is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Commission determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with 
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Commission’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Commission, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Western Australian Planning Commission at  
30 June 2014 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions. 
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Report on Controls 
I have audited the controls exercised by the Western Australian Planning Commission during 
the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Controls exercised by the Western Australian Planning Commission are those policies and 
procedures established by the Commission to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and 
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities 
have been in accordance with legislative provisions. 
 
Commission’s Responsibility for Controls 
The Commission is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to 
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of 
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Western Australian Planning Commission based on my audit 
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
controls to ensure that the Commission complies with the legislative provisions. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the 
design and implementation of relevant controls. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Western Australian Planning Commission are 
sufficiently adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and 
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities 
have been in accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Report on the Key Performance Indicators 
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Western Australian Planning Commission 
for the year ended 30 June 2014.  
 
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
Commission’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators 
The Commission is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key 
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Commission determines necessary to 
ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Commission’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of 
outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Western Australian Planning Commission 
are relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Commission’s performance and fairly 
represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements.  
 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators 
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
Western Australian Planning Commission for the year ended 30 June 2014 included on the 
Commission’s website. The Commission’s management is responsible for the integrity of the 
Commission’s website. This audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the 
Commission’s website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key 
performance indicators described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other 
information which may have been hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key 
performance indicators. If users of the financial statements and key performance indicators are 
concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to 
refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements and key performance indicators to 
confirm the information contained in this website version of the financial statements and key 
performance indicators. 
 

 
GLEN CLARKE 
DEPUTY AUDITOR GENERAL 
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia 
Perth, Western Australia 
18 September 2014 
 





WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

COST OF SERVICES Note 2014 2013
$000 $000

Expenses
Supplies and services 6 34,303 34,226
Depreciation expense 7 3,270 2,683
Bad and doubtful debts 8 14 17
Committee/board fees 9 275 275
Grants and subsidies 10 4,026 8,360
Revaluation decrement 11 0 19,937
Compensation payment 12A 5,715 2,643
Other expenses 12B 1,512 1,308
Total cost of services 49,115 69,449

Income

Revenue
Grants from other bodies 13 30 1,190
Revaluation increment 14 48,637 0
Rental revenue 6,617 6,375
User charges and fees 15 14,866 9,423
Interest revenue 16 4,447 4,696
Other revenue 17 1,218 1,390
Total Revenue 75,815 23,074

Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 18 6,844 4,780
Total Gains 6,844 4,780

Total income other than income from State Government 82,659 27,854

NET COST OF SERVICES (33,544) 41,595

Income from State Government 19
State grants and contributions 268 351
Service appropriation 93,292 88,465
Services received free of charge 3 0
Total income from State Government 93,563 88,816

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD(a) 127,107 47,221

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Changes in asset revaluation surplus 34 2,155 2,420
Total other comprehensive income 2,155 2,420

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 129,262 49,641

See also Note 47 'Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service'.

(a) The majority of the surplus represents appropriations received for the acquisition of land for the
     Metropolitan Region Scheme, the Peel Region Scheme and Greater Bunbury Region Scheme.

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes.



WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2014

Note 2014 2013
ASSETS $000 $000
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 20 205,506 150,480
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 21 6,817 11,512
Receivables 22 2,808 3,442
Inventories 23 9 9
Other current assets 24 312 350
Total Current Assets 215,452 165,793

Non-Current Assets
Amounts receivable for services 25 3,979 3,599
Land and equity in land 26 635,746 548,957
Buildings 27 32,076 31,680
Infrastructure 28 7,298 6,810
Equipment 29 996 1,221
Total Non-Current Assets 680,095 592,267

TOTAL ASSETS 895,547 758,060

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 32 8,928 8,016
Other current liabilities 33 14,899 11,583
Total Current Liabilities 23,827 19,599

TOTAL LIABILITIES 23,827 19,599

NET ASSETS 871,720 738,461

EQUITY 34
Contributed equity 3,997 0
Reserves 33,925 31,770
Accumulated surplus/(deficit) 833,798 706,691
TOTAL EQUITY 871,720 738,461

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.



WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Accumulated
Contributed surplus/ Total

Note Equity Reserves (deficit) equity
$000 $000 $000 $000

Balance at 1 July 2012 34 0 29,350 676,980 706,330

     Surplus/(deficit) 47,221 47,221
     Other comprehensive income 2,420 2,420
Total comprehensive income for the period 0 2,420 47,221 49,641

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
     Capital appropriations 8,400 8,400
     Distributions to owners (25,910) (25,910)
Total (17,510) 0 0 (17,510)

(17,510) 31,770 724,201 738,461

Transfer of debit balance to Accumulated surplus 17,510 (17,510) 0

Balance at 30 June 2013 0 31,770 706,691 738,461

Balance at 1 July 2013 0 31,770 706,691 738,461

     Surplus/(deficit) 127,107 127,107
     Other comprehensive income 2,155 2,155
Total comprehensive income for the period 0 2,155 127,107 129,262

Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
     Capital appropriations 5,400 5,400
     Distributions to owners (1,403) (1,403)
Total 3,997 0 0 3,997

Balance at 30 June 2014 3,997 33,925 833,798 871,720

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Note 2014 2013
$000 $000

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation 92,912 88,084
Capital contributions 5,400 8,400
Equity repayments (284) (17,696)
Net cash provided by State Government 98,028 78,788

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Supplies and services (24,778) (28,734)
Committee/board fees (53) (280)
Grants and subsidies (5,806) (6,444)
GST payments on purchases (2,323) (4,162)
GST payment to taxation authority 0 (248)
Other payments (14,583) (8,517)

Receipts
State and other bodies grants and contributions 926 1,164
Rental received 6,583 6,262
User charges and fees 14,902 8,899
Interest received 4,236 4,833
GST receipts on sales 466 1,047
GST receipts from taxation authority 1,155 3,584
Other receipts 2,298 1,082
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 35 (16,977) (21,514)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 16,802 7,084
Purchase of non-current physical assets (47,522) (46,336)
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (30,720) (39,252)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 50,331 18,022

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period 161,992 143,970

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 35 212,323 161,992

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

1.

2.

(a) General Statement

Australian Accounting Standards

General

The financial statements of the Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) for the year ended 30 June
2014 have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term 'Australian
Accounting Standards' refers to Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting Standard
Board (AASB).

The WAPC has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their operative 
dates.

Early adoption of standards

The WAPC cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by Treasurer's
Instruction (TI) 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements . There has
been no early adoption of Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not
operative) by the WAPC for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2014.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied
throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand dollars ($'000).

Note 3 'Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies' discloses judgements that have
been made in the process of applying the WAPC's accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect
on amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Note 4 'Key sources of estimation uncertainty' discloses key assumptions made concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The WAPC is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in
accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts
and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of
these are modified by the  Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s Instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB.

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon the reported results,
details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

(b) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost
convention, except for land, buildings and infrastructure which have been measured at fair value.



WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Revenue recognition

Sale of land and other assets

Provision of services

Subdivision and strata title application fees

Rental

Interest

Service Appropriations

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their fair value.
Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined and the services
would be purchased if not donated.

Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the WAPC gains
control of the appropriated funds. The WAPC gains control of appropriated funds at the time those funds are
deposited to the bank account or credited to the 'Amounts receivable for services' (holding account) held at
Treasury.

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the WAPC obtains control over the assets comprising the
contributions, usually when cash is received.

(d) Contributed Equity

AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires
transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or
prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have
been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to Wholly Owned
Public Sector Entities  and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.

The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative
arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-
reciprocal.

(e) Income

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised for the
major business activities as follows:

Revenue is recognised from the sale of land and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership transfer to the purchaser and proceeds can be measured reliably.

(c) Reporting Entity

The reporting entity comprises the Western Australian Planning Commission.

Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

Revenue is recognised on receipt of application fees and the services are contracted to Department of
Planning for determination.

Revenue is recognised on a straight line basis in accordance to leasing terms.  Refer also Note 2(n) 'Rent'.

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.



WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of
current market buying values determined by reference to recent market transactions. When buildings are
revalued by reference to recent market transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount.

In the absence of the market-based evidence, fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of
existing use. This normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted. Fair value
for existing use buildings is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic
benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost. Where the fair value of buildings is
determined on using the depreciated replacement cost basis, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated
against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount. Fair
value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar
approximate utility (high restricted use land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted
use land).

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority
(Valuation Services) and recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from the asset's fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Fair value of the regional open space buildings and infrastructure has been determined by reference to the
depreciated replacement cost (existing use basis) as the assets are specialised and no market-based
evidence of value is available.  Independent valuations are obtained every 3 years.

Initial recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure are initially recognised at cost. 

For items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost
is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land,
buildings and infrastructure and historical cost for all other property, plant and equipment. Land, buildings and
infrastructure are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation (buildings and infrastructure only) and
accumulated impairment losses. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where contributions recognised as revenues during the reporting period were obtained on the condition that
they be expended in a particular manner or used over a particular period, and those conditions were
undischarged as at the end of the reporting period, the nature of, and amounts pertaining to, those
undischarged conditions are disclosed in the notes.

Gains

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains arising on the
disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets.

(f) Property, Plant and Equipment and Infrastructure

Capitalisation/expensing of assets

Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets
and the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property, plant and
equipment and infrastructure costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of
Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are significant in
total).
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Asset  revaluation surplus

Buildings 10 - 40 years
Infrastructure 5 - 40 years
Computer equipment 2.5 years
Other equipment 5 - 15 years
Motor vehicles 5 - 10 years

Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written
down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued
asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other
comprehensive income. As the WAPC is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been identified
as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
depreciated replacement cost. 

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method, using rates
which are reviewed annually.  Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

Computer software

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and equipment. Software
that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an intangible asset.  Software costing less than 
$5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.

Website costs

Website costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the acquisition or
development of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised. Generally, costs in relation to
feasibility studies during the planning phase of a website, and ongoing costs of maintenance during the
operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in building or enhancing a website that can be reliably
measured, are capitalised to the extent that they represent probable future economic benefits.

(g) Impairment of Assets

Refer to Note 26 'Land and Equity in Land', Note 27 'Buildings' and Note 28 'Infrastructure' for further
information on revaluations.

Derecognition

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure, any revaluation
surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus.

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current
assets as described in Note 26 'Land and Equity in Land, Note 27 'Buildings' and Note 28 'Infrastructure'.

Depreciation

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful
lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits.

When regional open space buildings and infrastructure are revalued, the accumulated depreciation is
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued
amount.

The most significant assumptions and judgements in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to
apply the existing use basis to assets and in determining estimated economic life. Professional judgement by
the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide a clear distinction between market type assets and
existing use assets.
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• Loans and receivables; and
• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

• Cash and cash equivalents
• Restricted cash and cash equivalents
• Receivables
• Amounts receivable for services

• Payables
• Finance lease liabilities
• Borrowings

Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities

(i) Leases

Finance lease rights and obligations are initially recognised, at the commencement of the lease term, as
assets and liabilities equal in amount to the fair value of the leased item or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease. The assets are disclosed as plant,
equipment and vehicles under lease, and are depreciated over the period during which the WAPC is expected
to benefit from their use. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding lease liability, according to the interest rate implicit in the lease.

The WAPC has entered into a number of leases to rent land and buildings where the WAPC, as lessor,
retains all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly, these leases have been classified as
operating leases. Lease revenue is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

(j) Financial Instruments

In addition to cash, the WAPC has two categories of financial instrument:

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:

Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated. Where
the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written
down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued
asset is written down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other
comprehensive income. As the WAPC is a not-for-profit entity, unless a specialised asset has been identified
as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
depreciated replacement cost. 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially
understated, or where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life.
Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset's future economic benefits and to evaluate any
impairment risk from falling replacement costs.

The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and
the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair
value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is determined by reference to market-based
evidence. Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at
risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications
of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Refer to Note 31 'Impairment of Assets' for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing.

(h) Non-current Assets (or Disposal Groups) Classified as Held for Sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell and are presented separately from other assets in the Statement of Financial Position.
Assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.
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Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Regular rental valuations are commissioned to ensure a competitive rental is obtained for each leased
property. Rental revenue receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable, as they are due for
settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition.

(o) Receivables

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible
amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any
receivables identified as uncollectible are written off against the allowance account. The allowance for
uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence that the WAPC will not be
able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30
days.

(p) Payables

Payables are recognised when the WAPC becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a
purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled
within 30 days.

(q) Provisions

(l) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned by the method
most appropriate to each particular class of inventory, with the majority being valued on a first-in first-out
basis.  See Note 23 'Inventories'.

(m) Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding Account)

The WAPC receives income from the State Government partly in cash and partly as an asset (holding account
receivable). The holding account receivable balance, resulting from service appropriation funding, is
accessible on the emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover asset replacement.

(n) Rent

Rental revenue is received on properties leased by the WAPC prior to the properties being used for their
acquired purpose under the Metropolitan Region Scheme, the Peel Region Scheme and the Greater Bunbury
Region Scheme. 

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the
transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there
is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not
material.

(k) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash
equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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(i) Provisions - Employee Benefits

The WAPC has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities for the unfunded
Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to members who transferred from
the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent
contributions made by the WAPC to the GESB.

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and the GSS, and is recouped
from the Treasurer for the employer’s share. 

See also Note 2(r) 'Superannuation expense'.

All annual leave and unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the
WAPC does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Superannuation

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers administers public
sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements.
Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector employees vary according to
commencement and implementation dates.

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new
members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum
scheme closed to new members since 1995.

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension
Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme
(WSS). Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB
Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new
employees became able to choose their preferred superannuation fund. The WAPC makes concurrent
contributions to GESB and other funds on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth 
Government's Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992 . Contributions to these
accumulation schemes extinguish the WAPC's liability for superannuation charges in respect of
employees who are not members of the Persion Scheme and GSS.

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting.
However, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the concurrent contributions
(defined contributions) made by the WAPC to GESB extinguishes the agency's obligations to the related
superannuation liability.

Annual leave and long service leave

Annual and long service leave that is expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period is considered to be a 'short-term employee benefits'. The annual and long service leave
liability is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is
settled.

Annual and long service leave that is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of
the reporting period is considered to be 'other long-term employee benefits'. The annual and long service
leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary
levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the
experience of employee departures and periods of service.

The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on
national government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future
cash outflows.
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(ii) Provisions - Other

Employment on-costs

3.

4.

Estimating economic service potential of rental buildings

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of
accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. The
WAPC evaluates these judgements regularly.

Operating lease commitments

The WAPC has entered into a number of leases to rent land and buildings where the WAPC, as lessor,
retains all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Accordingly, these leases have been classified as
operating leases.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other
factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

The WAPC has depreciated its rental buildings based on the estimated economic service potential of each
building to the WAPC. The service potential of the buildings cannot always be reliably estimated due to timing
of land disposals not always being under the control of the WAPC. For example, changes to the Metropolitan
Region Scheme and the capital works programs of other agencies and local governments.

(s) Assets and Services Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Cost

Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost, that the WAPC would otherwise purchase if not
donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets or services where they can be reliably
measured. A corresponding expense is recognised for services received. Receipts of assets are recognised
in the Statement of Financial Position.

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed under Income
from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(t) Comparative Figures

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the
current financial year.

Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are
recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has
occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of 'Other expenses' and are not included as part of
the WAPC’s 'Employee benefits expense'. The related liability is included in 'Employment on-costs
provision'.

(r) Superannuation Expense

The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises of employer contributions
paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the WSS, the GESBS, and other superannuation fund.
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5.

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 Financial Instruments to 1 January 2015
(instead of 1 January 2013). Further amendments are also made to numerous consequential amendments
arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 2015.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)
[AASB  1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of
issuing AASB 119 Employee Benefits in September 2011. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities
that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material.

Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard

The WAPC has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2013 that impacted on the WAPC.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires additional
disclosures about fair value measurements.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 119 Employee Benefits

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010) , making changes to the recognition, presentation and
disclosure requirements.

The WAPC assessed employee leave patterns to determine whether annual leave is a short-term or other
long-term employee benefit. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that were previously
measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material.

AASB 1048 Interpretation of Standards

This Standard supersedes AASB 1048 (June 2012) , enabling references to the Interpretations in all other
Standards to be updated by reissuing the service Standard.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 &132]

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include information that will enable users of an
entity’s financial statements to evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights
of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised financial liabilities, on the
entity’s financial position.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009-11
Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2]

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a
consequence of the annual improvements process.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and
Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8]

AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7,
9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138,
139, 140, 141, 1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int  2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial
impact.
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Operative for
reporting
periods

beginning
on/after

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2018

1 Jan 2014

AASB 2012-9 Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from the Withdrawal of Australian Int 1039

The withdrawal of Int 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax Bills in Australia has no financial impact for
the WAPC during the reporting period and at balance date. Measurement of tax assets and liabilities
continues to be measured in accordance with enacted or substantively enacted tax law pursuant to AASB
112.46-47.

AASB 2012-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other
Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137,
1023, 1038, 1039, 1049, & 2011-7 and Int 12]

The Standard introduces a number of editorial alterations and amends the mandatory application date of
Standards for not for profit entities accounting for interests in other entities.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework, Materiality and
Financial Instruments.

Part A of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from revisions to the
Australian Accounting Conceptual Framework for periods ending on or after 20 December 2013. Other Parts
of this Standard become operative in later periods.  There is no financial impact for Part A of the Standard.

Int 21 Levies

This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government
levy imposed should be recognised. There is no financial impact for the WAPC at reporting
date.

The WAPC cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101
Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements . Consequently, the WAPC has
not applied early any of the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact
the WAPC. Where applicable, the WAPC plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their
application date.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement , introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities , introducing a
number of changes to accounting treatments.

The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January 2018 by AASB 
2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards . The WAPC has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
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Operative for
reporting
periods

beginning
on/after

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2016

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2014AASB 1031 Materiality

This Standard supercedes AASB 1031 (February 2010) , removing Australian guidance on
materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in other Australian
Pronouncements.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements , removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier standard
whilst retaining accounting and disclosure requirements for the preparation of separate
financial statements. Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB
2012-10.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates , introducing a number of
clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed ownership interest.

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-
10. The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the WAPC as it doesn’t
hold investments in associates or and the accounting treatments for joint operations is
consistent with current practice.

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements under AASB 
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements , AASB 128 Investments in
Associates  and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures .

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 
2012-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and
Other Amendments . The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the
WAPC as it doesn’t impact accounting for related bodies and the WAPC has no interests in
other entities.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements

This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures , 
introduces new principles for determining the type of joint arrangement that exists, which
are more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangement.

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-
10. There is no financial impact for the WAPC as the new standard continues to require the
recognition pf the WAPC's share of assets and share of liabilities for the unincorporated
joint operation.

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

AASB 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The WAPC has not yet determined the application of the potential impact of the Standard.

Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-
10.  There is no financial impact.
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Operative for
reporting
periods

beginning
on/after

1 Jul 2014

1 Jan 2015

1 Jan 2015

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2014

[modified by AASB 2010-7]

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 
[AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 
1038 and Int 10 & 12]

The WAPC does not routinely hold financial assets and financial liabilities that it intends to
settle on a net basis, therefore there is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 132]

This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified 
in applying some of the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be
considered equivalent to net settlement.

AASB 2013-4 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Novation of Derivatives
and Continuation of Hedge Accounting [AASB 139]

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the
Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 101,
107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int  5, 9, 16 & 17]

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of AASB 10, 
AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures . For not-for-profit entities it applies to annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. The WAPC has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131,
132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int  2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9  in December 2010.

AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets.  

This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes.  There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-6 amended the mandatory application date of this Standard to 1 January 2015.
The WAPC has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting

This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose financial
statements of not-for-profit entities within the General Government Sector. The WAPC will
be required to disclose additional budgetary information and explanations of major
variances between actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact.
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Operative for
reporting
periods

beginning
on/after

1 Jan 2014

1 Jan 2014
1 Jan 2017

1 Jul 2014
1 Jan 2015
1 Jan 2016
1 Jan 2018

This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances where a
derivative, which has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated from one
counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence of laws or regulations.  The WAPC 
does not routinely enter into derivatives or hedges, therefore there is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB
10, 12 & 1049].

The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in determining
whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when financial returns are not a key
attribute of the investor’s relationship.  The Standard has no financial impact in its own right, 
rather the impact results from the adoption of the amended AASB 10.

AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual Framework,
Materiality and Financial Instruments.

This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of
references to AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014 (Part B), and, defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C). The
application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1.
The WAPC has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9,
otherwise there is no financial impact for Part B.

AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards

The WAPC has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
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2014 2013
$000 $000

6. Supplies and Services

Consultants and contractors 4,782 7,481
Services provided by Department of Planning - labour 7,933 8,326
Services provided by Department of Planning - other 17,775 14,080
Repairs and maintenance 2,512 2,362
Cleaning / gardening 157 152
Lease / rental / hire charges 193 218
Advertising and promotion 237 436
Printing 114 221
Utilities 156 241
Communication 75 85
Consumables 260 410
Other 109 214

34,303 34,226

7. Depreciation

Regional open space buildings 462 439
Rental buildings 2,271 1,796
Infrastructure 248 169
Equipment 247 243
Vehicles 42 36

3,270 2,683

8. Bad and Doubtful Debt Expense

Bad debts written off 3 0
Doubtful debts expense 11 17

14 17

9. Committee / Board Fees

Travel 11 1
Sitting fees 242 223
Superannuation 22 20
Other 0 31

275 275

10. Grants and Subsidies

General government agencies 3,156 7,028
Non government agencies 441 496
Local government 323 836
Other 106 0

4,026 8,360

11. Revaluation Decrement

Land 0 19,937
0 19,937

12A. Compensation Payment

5,715 2,643
5,715 2,643

Interest compensation and contribution of legal costs on acquisition of
property
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2014 2013
$000 $000

12B. Other Expenses

Licence / maintenance fees 97 146
Minor equipment purchases 40 25
Employment on-costs(a) 75 142
Rates and taxes 636 606
Insurance 226 189
Refund of revenue from previous years 382 0
Other 56 200

1,512 1,308

(a)

13. Grants from Other Bodies

External sponsorships 0 109
External - local government 30 1,081

30 1,190

14. Revaluation Increment

Land 48,637 0
48,637 0

15. User Charges and Fees

Easements 441 3
Subdivision and strata title application fees 11,381 6,760
Endorsement fees 26 16
Plan and diagram fees 1,775 1,562
Land reservation certificates 1,095 1,020
Development application fees 148 62

14,866 9,423

16. Interest Revenue

Interest earned on Commonwealth Bank account 4,447 4,696
4,447 4,696

17. Other Revenue

Sale of goods 0 3
Whiteman Park revenue(a) 812 757
Recoup of expenditure 88 0
Land acquired for nil cost and capitalised at fair value 261 0
Previous years GST receivable from ATO 0 610
Other 57 20

1,218 1,390

(a)

Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. Superannuation contributions
accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee benefits and are not included in employment on-
costs.

Excludes rental revenue on leases held at Whiteman Park which is included within rental revenue on
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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18. Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets

Land
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 13,454 10,208
Selling costs of disposal of non-current assets 87 0
Carrying amount of disposal of non-current assets 6,848 5,388
Gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets 6,519 4,820

Rental buildings
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 793 38
Selling costs of disposal of non-current assets 14 0
Carrying amount of disposal of non-current assets 454 69
Gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets 325 (31)

Other assets
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 0 0
Carrying amount of disposal of non-current assets 0 9
Gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets 0 (9)

Total proceeds from disposal of non-current assets 14,247 10,246
Total selling costs of disposal of non-current assets 101 0
Total carrying amounts of disposal of non-current assets 7,302 5,466
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-current assets 6,844 4,780

19. Income from State Government

State grants and contributions
- General government agencies 268 351

268 351

Service appropriation received during the financial period(a):
- Metropolitan Region Improvement Tax 87,576 85,181
- Other 5,716 3,284

93,292 88,465

Determined on the basis of the following estimates provided by agencies:
Department of Water 3 0

3 0

93,563 88,816

(a)

(b) Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost are recognised as revenue at the fair value of
the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably measured and which would have been
purchased if they were not donated. Contributions of assets or services in the nature of contributions by
owners are recognised direct to equity.

Services received free of charge from other state government agencies during
the financial period:(b)

Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. Appropriation revenue comprises a cash
component and a receivable (asset). The receivable (holding account) comprises the budgeted depreciation
expense for the year and any agreed increase in leave liabilities during the financial year.
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20. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current
Cash held at the Commonwealth Bank:
- Metropolitan Region Improvement Fund 198,753 144,796
- Western Australian Planning Commission Account 6,751 5,682
Cash advance 2 2

205,506 150,480

21. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Current
- Metropolitan Region Improvement Fund(a) 342 259
- Western Australian Planning Commission Account(b) 6,475 11,253

6,817 11,512

(a)

(b)

22. Receivables

Current 
Receivables 313 1,511
Allowance for impairment of receivables (65) (70)
GST receivable 1,008 134
Accrued interest 1,347 1,135
Other accrued income 205 732

2,808 3,442

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:
Balance at start of period 70 125
Doubtful debts expense 11 17
Amounts written off during the period (16) (72)
Balance at end of period 65 70

23. Inventories

Current
Inventories held for resale:
-  Publications at cost 9 9

9 9

24. Other Assets

Current
Settlement payments 20 35
Tenant security bonds 261 263
Prepayments 31 52

312 350

Cash held in the MRIF is to be used for various projects and studies.

Cash held in the WAPC Account is to be used for Regional Land Acquisitions, Coastal Zone Management
and various other studies.
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25. Amounts Receivable for Services

Non-current 3,979 3,599
3,979 3,599

26. Land and Equity in Land

i. Land

Metropolitan Region Scheme Purchases
Other regional roads - at fair value 49,073 42,118
Primary regional roads - at fair value 76,147 64,799
Parks and recreation areas - at fair value 344,569 286,295
Other land purchases - at fair value 31,876 28,678
Land surplus to requirements - at fair value 89,671 88,382

591,336 510,272
591,336

Peel and Greater Bunbury Region Scheme Purchases
Other regional roads - at fair value 51 51
Primary regional roads - at fair value 7,951 7,641
Parks and recreation areas - at fair value 17,642 13,600
Other land purchases - at fair value 2,203 1,167
Land surplus to requirements - at fair value 0 3

27,847 22,462
27,847

ii. Equity in Land

Equity in land of this nature is as follows:
Equity in land - at cost 16,563 16,223
Total Land and Equity in Land 635,746 548,957

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. See Note 2(m) 'Amounts Receivable For
Services (Holding Account)'.  It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement.

This represents the total fair value of properties owned by the WAPC. Properties are either negotiated
purchases or are compulsorily acquired under the provisions of the Planning and Development Act 2005 or the
Land Administration Act 1997.

Land was revalued at 1 July 2013 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).
The valuations were performed during the year ended 30 June 2014 and recognised at 30 June 2014. In
undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to market value where the land has been
identified as being surplus to the region scheme requirements and on the basis of comparison with market
evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land).

Valuation Services, the Office of the Auditor General and the Department of Treasury assessed the valuations
globally to ensure that the valuations provided as at 1 July 2013 were compliant with fair value as at 30 June
2014.

When a property is reserved for possible future acquisition, the owner may apply under certain circumstances
through the provisions of Part 11 of the Planning and Development Act 2005, to sell the property at a lesser price
than might reasonably be expected had there been no reservation. If approved, compensation representing the
difference is paid to the vendor.

At the time of a compensation payment, the WAPC's equity in the property is established on the ratio of
compensation paid, as a proportion of the unaffected value of the property. If the WAPC resumes the property at
a later date, the purchase consideration is calculated by deducting the WAPC's equity as a percentage of the
total valuation at the time of acquisition.

Information on fair value measurements is provided in Note 30.
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635,746
27. Buildings

Regional open space buildings
At fair value 17,185 15,546
Accumulated depreciation 462 0

16,723 15,546

Rental buildings
At fair value 15,353 15,179
Accumulated depreciation 0 0

15,353 15,179

Buildings under construction
Construction costs 0 955

Total buildings 32,076 31,680

28. Infrastructure

At fair value 6,578 4,958
Accumulated depreciation 248 0

6,330 4,958

Infrastructure under construction
Construction costs 968 1,852

Total infrastructure 7,298 6,810

29. Equipment

Computer Equipment
At cost 211 211
Accumulated depreciation 211 211

0 0

Other Equipment
At cost 2,459 2,395
Accumulated depreciation 1,616 1,369

843 1,026

Vehicles
At cost 335 335
Accumulated depreciation 182 140

153 195

Total equipment 996 1,221

Information on fair value measurements is provided in Note 30.

Rental Buildings were revalued at 1 July 2013 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation
Services). The valuations were performed during the year ended 30 June 2014 and recognised at 30 June 2014.
In undertaking the revaluation, fair value was determined by reference to current market value where the
buildings have been identified as being surplus to the region scheme requirements and on the basis of
depreciated replacement cost where buildings are held for the purpose of the schemes.

Valuation Services, the Office of the Auditor General and the Department of Treasury assessed the valuations
globally to ensure that the valuations provided as at 1 July 2013 were compliant with fair value as at 30 June
2014.
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30. Fair Value Measurements

Assets measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
At end of period

2014 $000 $000 $000 $000
Land (Note 26) 89,300 529,883 619,183
Regional open space buildings (Note 27) 16,723 16,723
Rental buildings (Note 27) 1,195 14,158 15,353
Infrastructure (Note 28) 6,330 6,330

0 90,495 567,094 657,589

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period.

Valuation techniques to derive Level 2 fair values

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

2014 Land Regional Open Rental Infrastructure
Space Buildings Buildings

$000 $000 $000 $000
Fair Value at start of period 448,176 15,546 13,999 4,958
Additions 45,779 1,639 744 1,620

43,895 0

0 2,063

Transfers (from/(to) Level 2) 0 0
Disposals (7,967) (454)
Depreciation Expense 0 (462) (2,194) (248)
Fair Value at end of period 529,883 16,723 14,158 6,330

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

Valuation processes

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period.

Level 2 fair values of Land and Buildings are derived using the market approach. Market evidence of sales
prices of comparable land and buildings in close proximity is used to determine price per square metre.

Total gains or losses for the period
included in profit or loss, under 'Other
Gains'

Change in unrealised gains or losses for
the period included in profit or loss for
assets held at the end of the reporting
period

Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer. Transfers are generally limited to assets newly classified as non-current assets held for sale
as Treasurer's instructions require valuations of land, buildings and infrastructure to be categorised within Level 3
where the valuations will utilise significant Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis.

Revaluation increments/(decrements) 
recognised in Profit & Loss
Revaluation increments/(decrements) 
recognised in Other Comprehensive 

The regional open space buildings and infrastructure are revalued every 3 years. The last revaluation was
performed on 26 June 2013.



WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION

2014 2013
$000 $000

Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset

These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services).

Selection of land with restricted utility

Historical cost per square metre

Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements

$000

Land Market approach

Rental buildings

Infrastructure

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances is provided in Note 26 to 29.

Fair value for existing use of regional open space buildings and infrastructure assets are determined by
reference to the highest and best use, considering the most probable use that is physically, appropriately
justified, legally permissible, financially feasible and which results in the highest value of the property being
valued.

Description and fair
value as at 30 June
2014

The costs of construction are extracted from the financial records of the WAPC and indexed by movements in
construction costs by independent valuer.

Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of
comparable land that is unrestricted less restoration costs to return the site to a vacant and marketable condition
(low restricted use land), or, comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use
land).

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the WAPC are derived and evaluated as follows:

Historical cost 
per square metre

Historical cost 
per square metre

$8 - $6,125 per 
m2 ($249 per m2)$6,330

$529,883

$90 - $2,020 per 
m2 ($846 per m2)

Regional open space 
buildings

$16,723

Depreciated 
Replacement 
Cost

$14,158

$0 - $4,801 per 
m2 ($146 per m2)

Consumed 
economic benefit 
/ obsolescence of 
asset

0% - 4.75% per 
year (1.59% per 

year)

Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility.
Relevant comparators of land with low level utility are selected by the Western Australian Land Information
Authority (Valuation Services).

Range of 
unobservable 

inputs 
(weighted 
average)

Relationship of unobservable 
inputs to fair vale

Higher value of similar land 
increases estimated fair value

Greater consumption of 
economic benefit or increased 
obsolescence lowers fair value

Higher historical cost per m2 

increases fair value

Higher historical cost per m2 

increases fair value

Selection of land 
with similar 
approximate 
utility

Depreciated 
Replacement 
Cost

Depreciated 
Replacement 
Cost

Historical cost 
per square metre

$15 - $833 per 
m2 ($323 per m2)

Higher historical cost per m2 

increases fair value

Unobservable 
inputs

Valuation 
techniques
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Basis of Valuation

31. Impairment of assets

There were no indications of impairment to land, buildings, infrastructure and equipment assets at 30 June 2014.

In the absence of market-based evidence, due to the specialised nature of some non financial assets, these
assets are valued at Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis. The existing use basis
recognises that restrictions or limitations have been placed on their use and disposal when they are not
determined to be surplus to requirements. These restrictions are imposed by virtue of the assets being held to
deliver a specific community service.
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32. Payables

Current
Trade payables 0 1,509
Accrued expenses 8,928 6,507

8,928 8,016

33. Other Liabilities

Current
Tenants' bonds 261 263
Income in advance(a) 14,537 11,304
Other liabilities 101 16

14,899 11,583

(a)

34. Equity

Contributed equity

Balance at start of period 0 0

Contribution by owners
Capital contribution(a) 5,400 8,400
Repayable capital appropriation recognised as a liability(b) 0 0
Total contributions by owners 5,400 8,400

Distribution to owners
Net Assets transferred to Government(c) (1,403) (20,443)
Transfer of net assets to Metropolitan Redevelopment Authority 0 (5,467)
Total distribution to owners (1,403) (25,910)

3,997 (17,510)

Transfer of debit balance to Accumulated surplus(d) 0 17,510

Balance at end of period 3,997 0
3,997

(a)

(b)

(c)

$9.6m (FY2013:$9.6m) received from Public Transport Authority (PTA) for full payment for lands acquired by
the WAPC on behalf of PTA for the purpose of the southern suburbs railway.  

The Government holds the equity interest in the WAPC on behalf of the community. Equity represents the
residual interest in the net assets of the WAPC. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity
resulting from the revaluation of non-current assets.

Under TI 955 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities , capital contributions
have been designated as contributions by owners in accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038
Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities .

Under TI 955 repayable capital appropriations are to be recognised as a liability by the entity. When the
original appropriation was received by WAPC, it was treated as an equity contribution as the repayable
amount could not be measured with any degree of accuracy. Given that all but one claim is yet to be
resolved, it is now appropriate to recognise it as a liability to Department of Treasury the estimated amount
repayable to department of Treasury. Therefore this amount was transferred from equity to a liability as per
the intent of the TI 955.

TI 955 requires non-reciprocal transfers of net assets to Government to be accounted for as distribution to
owners in accordance with AASB Interpretation 1038.
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(d)

Reserves

Asset Revaluation Surplus:
Balance at start of period 31,770 29,350
Net revaluation increments/(decrements):
Rental buildings 2,155 2,087
Regional open space buildings 0 (369)
Infrastructure 0 702
Balance at end of period 33,925 31,770

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)

Balance at start of period 706,691 676,980
Transfer of debit balance in Contributed equity 0 (17,510)
Result for the period 127,107 47,221
Balance at end of period 833,798 706,691

706,691
Total Equity at end of period 871,720 738,461

35. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

Reconciliation of Cash

205,506 150,480

6,817 11,512

212,323 161,992

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities

Net cost of services 33,544 (41,595)

Non cash items:
Depreciation expense 3,270 2,683
Bad and doubtful debts expense 14 17
Revaluation (increment) / decrement (48,637) 19,937
Resources received free of charge 3 0
Land not acquired at fair value (credited to other revenue) (261) 0
Adjustment for other non-cash items (1) 12
Net (gain)/loss on sale of assets (6,844) (4,780)

Add : State grants and contributions 268 351

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables 1,508 (1,385)
Current inventory 0 4
Other current assets 23 (12)

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Payables 912 (248)
Other current liabilities 11 3,260

Cash and cash equivalents (see Note 20 'Cash and Cash
Equivalents')

TI 955 requires a debit balance in the Contributed Equity to be transferred to Accumulated surplus in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items
in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (see Note 21
'Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents')



WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION

2014 2013
$000 $000

Net GST receipts/(payments) (702) 221
Change in GST in receivables/payables (85) 20

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (16,977) (21,514)

36. Remuneration of Members of the Accountable Authority

2014 2013
No. No.

$
0 - 10,000 3 2
10,001 - 20,000 5 6
120,001 - 130,000 1 0
160,001 - 170,000 0 1

9 9

$000 $000
Base remuneration and superannuation 213 197
Annual leave and long service leave accruals 0 31
Other benefits 2 31
The total remuneration of members of the accountable authority 216 259

37. Remuneration of Auditor

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect to the audit for the current financial year is as
follows:

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key performance indicators 68 66

38. Commitments

The commitments below are inclusive of GST where relevant

Capital expenditure commitments

Within 1 year 0 422
0 422

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Within 1 year 71 56
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 104 42
Later than 5 years 1 0

176 98

The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-
monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by WAPC in respect of members of the
accountable authority.

No members of the Accountable Authority are members of the Pension Scheme.

Capital expenditure commitments, being contracted capital expenditure additional to the amounts reported in the
financial statements, are payable as follows:

Commitments in relation to non-cancellable operating lease rentals contracted for at the end of reporting period
but not recognised as liabilities in the financial statements are payable as follows:
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Lease commitments

385 370
1,001 938

992 1,214
2,378 2,522

39. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contaminated sites

40. Supplementary Financial Information

Write-Offs

19 72
0 12

19 84

Later than 5 years

Some of the land and buildings are leased to tenants under long-term operating leases with rentals payable
monthly.

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases of land and buildings not recognised in the
financial statements are receivable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years

During the year, the WAPC reported no new suspected contaminated sites to DEC. Previously reported sites
have yet to be classified by DEC. The WAPC is unable to assess the likely outcome of the classification process,
and accordingly, it is not practical to estimate the potential financial effect or to identify the uncertainties relating
to the amount or timing of any outflows. Whilst there is no possibility of reimbursement of any future expenses
that may be incurred in the remediation of these sites, the WAPC may apply for funding from the Contaminated
Sites Management Account to undertake further investigative work or to meet remediation costs that may be
required.

Debts written-off by the WAPC during the financial year
Public property written-off by the WAPC during the financial 

In addition to the liabilities included in the financial statements, there are the following contingent liabilities:

Under the operation of the Metropolitan, Peel and Greater Bunbury Region Schemes, reservations exist on
properties that may result in compensation being paid to the landholder or the property being acquired for the
WAPC's estate.  The WAPC on an annual basis sets such compensation and  acquisition priorities.

In some cases the landholder disputes the compensation/consideration offered by the WAPC, either through
arbitration or through Court action. Resolving such disputes form part of the ordinary business of the WAPC and
any additional payments that arise are managed within the resources of the Metropolitan Region Improvement
Fund and the regional land Acquisition Appropriation.

The WAPC's contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2014 (with respect to the Metropolitan, Peel and Greater
Bunbury Region Schemes) is approximately $46.7 million. The WAPC is unable to provide individual estimates of
each liability as negotiations are in progress. The provision of estimates may compromise the WAPC's legal
position.

The WAPC's contingent assets as at 30 June 2014 (with respect to the Metropolitan, Peel and Greater Bunbury
Region Schemes) is approximately $1.1 million, being a claim seeking the repayment of compensation following
the return of land to the landholder.

Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003 , the WAPC is required to report known and suspected contaminated
sites to the Department of Environment and Conservation (DEC). In accordance with the Act, DEC classifies
these sites on the basis of the risk to human health, the environment and environmental values. Where sites are
classified as contaminated - remediation required or possibly contaminated - investigation required , the WAPC
may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses.
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41. Services Provided Free of Charge

42. Events Occurring after the Reporting Period

43. Related Bodies

The WAPC does not have any related bodies.

44. Affiliated Bodies

The WAPC does not have any affiliated bodies.

No information has become apparent after the reporting period which would materially affect the financial
statements.

During the period no services were provided to other agencies free of charge for functions outside the normal
operations of the WAPC.
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45. Explanatory Statement

2014 2014
Estimate Actual Variance

$000 $000 $000
Expenses
Supplies and services 38,171 34,303 (3,868)
Bad and doubtful debts 10 14 4
Grants and subsidies 5,410 4,026 (1,384)
Compensation payment and other expenses 3,913 7,227 3,314

Income
Grants from other bodies 395 30 (365)
Revaluation increment 0 48,637 48,637
User charges and fees 13,416 14,866 1,450
Other revenue 1,640 1,218 (422)

Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 5,000 6,844 1,844

Income from State Government
State grants and contributions 325 268 (57)

Expenses

Supplies and Services

Bad and Doubtful Debts

Grants and subsidies

Compensation payment and other expenses

Income

Grants from other bodies

Revaluation increment

The variance is due to an increase in the number of legal and arbitration settlements than originally
anticipated. The Commission has a number of compensation cases that are awaiting arbitration
settlements and these outcomes are outside the control of the normal budget process.

The variance is due to expected grant revenue not being received due to changes in work programs
such as the Transport Route Planning Project.

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2014 and between the actual results for
2013 and 2014 are shown below. Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 20% or
$1,000,000.

Significant variances between estimated and actual results for 2014

The decrease in the expenditure is due to the changes in work programs and deferment of projects.

Apart from this, certain project studies are done internally instead of appointing consultants / contactors.

The variance is due to slightly higher doubtful debts being recorded than anticipated due to defaults on
rental properties.

The variance is due to a general decrease in grants under the Coast West Program, Coastal Zone
Management Program and the completion of other programs.

Recent revaluation of land and building assets resulted in an increment. These movements reflect the
increase in property values and it is not possible to budget for these movements.
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User charges and fees

Other revenue

Gains

Gain on disposal of non-current assets

Income from State Government

State Grants and Contributions

Significant variances between actual results for 2013 and 2014

2014 2013 Variance
$000 $000 $000

Expenses
Depreciation expense 3,270 2,683 587
Grants and subsidies 4,026 8,360 (4,334)
Revaluation decrement 0 19,937 (19,937)
Compensation payment and other expenses 7,227 3,951 3,276

Income
Grants from other bodies 30 1,190 (1,160)
Revaluation increment 48,637 0 48,637
User charges and fees 14,866 9,423 5,443

Gains
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 6,844 4,780 2,064

Income from State Government
State grants and contributions 268 351 (83)
Service appropriation 93,292 88,465 4,827

Expenses

Depreciation Expense

Grants and subsidies

Revaluation decrement

The variance is due to expected grant revenue not being received due to changes in work programs
such as the Transport Route Planning Project.

The variance is due to the completion of a number of capital projects during the year which resulted in
increased depreciation.

The reduction in grant payments is due to the completion of the transfer of the Elizabeth Quay to the
Metropolitan Redevelopment Authority. This resulted in capital works monies being transferred as a
grant in the FY2013. No grant was provided to Department of Parks and Wildlife for the management of
Araluen Botanic Park in FY2014.

Revaluation of land to fair value in June 2014 resulted in a revaluation increment for the year. The
Commission revalues its landholdings each year and this can lead to an increase or decrease in value
of the landholdings.

The variance is due to an increase in the volume of sub-division applications and the general increase in
fees that applied during the financial year.

The actual recoup from the property tenants are set off against the expenses as compared to the budget
which captured the recoup under other revenue.

The increase in the gain on disposal is mainly due to extra sales of land and increased selling prices
than originally anticipated when the budget was set. The gain on sale of assets is mainly land which can
very considerably depending on the carrying value of the asset.
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Compensation payment and other expenses

Income

Grants from other bodies

Revaluation increment

User charges and fees

Gains

Gain on disposal of non-current assets

Income from State Government

State grants and contributions

Service appropriation

Gains will vary depending on the carrying value of land. In many cases the carrying value is current use
which is lower in value due to constrained planning purposes. Increases sales values were achieved
due to upturn in property values.

The variance is due to decrease in grants due to expected revenue not being received due to change of
priorities.

The variance is due to the increase in the Metropolitan Region Improvement Tax due to movements in
property values and an increase in appropriation to cover the shortfall in the WAPC Trust fund.

The variance is due to a number of arbitration decisions that resulted in the Commission paying
amounts of compensation for land purchases. The Commission has a number of compensation cases
that are awaiting arbitration settlements and these outcomes can vary considerably between reporting
periods.

Revaluation of land to fair value in June 2014 resulted in a revaluation increment for the year. The
Commission revalues its landholdings each year and this can lead to an increase or decrease in value
of the landholdings.

The variance reflects the completion of the Stirling Regional Centre project and resulting associated
grants.

The variance is due to an increase in the volume of sub-division applications and an increase in the fees
and charges revenue to cover full cost recovery.
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46. Financial Instruments

(a)  Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market risk.

(b) Categories of Financial Instruments

2014 2013
$000 $000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 205,506 150,480
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 6,817 11,512
Receivables(a) 5,779 6,907
Total Financial Assets 218,102 168,899

Financial liabilities
Payables 8,928 8,016
Total Financial Liabilities 8,928 8,016

In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).

Financial instruments held by the WAPC are cash and cash equivalents, finance leases, receivables
and payables. The WAPC has limited exposure to financial risks. The WAPC's overall risk
management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the WAPC’s receivables defaulting on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial loss to the WAPC.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any allowance for
impairment as shown in the table at Note 45(c) 'Financial Instruments Disclosures' and Note 22
'Receivables'.

Credit risk associated with the WAPC’s financial assets is minimal because the main receivable is the
amounts receivable for services (holding account). For receivables other than government, the WAPC
trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties. The WAPC has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the WAPC’s exposure to
bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period, there were no significant concentrations of
credit risk.

Liquidity risk arises when the WAPC is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
WAPC is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business. The WAPC has
appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring
forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments.

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates
will affect the WAPC's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The WAPC does
not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to other price risks (for example, equity
securities or commodity prices changes). The WAPC's exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents which
are held at variable interest rates. The WAPC have no borrowings. Other than as detailed in the
Interest rate sensitivity analysis table at Note 45(c), the WAPC is not exposed to interest rate risk.
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(c) Financial Instrum
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isclosures

C
redit risk

A
ged analysis of financial assets
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ot past due
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paired
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arrying

and not
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1-3
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onths

M
ore than

financial
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ount
im

paired
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to 1 year

1-5 years
5 years

assets
$000

$000
$000

$000
$000

$000
$000

$000
2014
C

ash and cash equivalents
205,506

205,506
R

estricted cash and cash equivalents
6,817

6,817
R

eceivables
(a)

1,800
1,572

1
151

67
10

A
m

ount receivable for services
3,979

3,979
218,102

217,874
1

151
67

10
0

0

2013
C

ash and cash equivalents
150,480

150,480
R

estricted cash and cash equivalents
11,512

11,512
R

eceivables
(a)

3,308
2,835

0
418

49
6
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m

ount receivable for services
3,599

3,599
168,899

168,426
0

418
49
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0
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Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure

Interest rate exposures and m
aturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities

W
eighted

average
effective

Fixed
V

ariable
N

on-
interest

C
arrying

interest
interest

interest
N

om
inal

U
p to

1-3
3 m

onths
M

ore than
rate

am
ount

rate
rate

bearing
am

ount
1 m

onth
m

onths
to 1 year

1-5 years
5 years

%
$000

$000
$000

$000
$000

$000
$000

$000
$000

$000
2014
Financial A

ssets
C

ash and cash equivalents
2.82

205,506
205,504

2
205,506

205,506
R

estricted cash and cash equivalents
2.82

6,817
6,817

6,817
6,817

R
eceivables

(a)
1,800

1,800
1,800

1,800
A

m
ount receivable for services

3,979
3,979

3,979
3,979

218,102
0

212,321
5,781

218,102
218,102

0
0

0
0

Financial Liabilities
P

ayables
8,928

8,928
8,928

8,928
8,928

0
0

8,928
8,928

8,928
0

0
0

0
(a) The am

ount of receivables excludes the G
S

T recoverable from
 the A

TO
 (statutory receivable).

2013
Financial A

ssets
C

ash and cash equivalents
3.40

150,480
150,478

2
150,480

150,480
R

estricted cash and cash equivalents
3.40

11,512
11,512

11,512
11,512

R
eceivables

(a)
3,308

3,308
3,308

3,308
A

m
ount receivable for services

3,599
3,599

3,599
3,599

168,899
0

161,990
6,909

168,899
168,899

0
0

0
0

Financial Liabilities
P

ayables
8,016

8,016
8,016

8,016
8,016

0
0

8,016
8,016

8,016
0

0
0

0
(a) The am

ount of receivables excludes the G
S

T recoverable from
 the A

TO
 (statutory receivable).

The
follow
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and
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m
aturity
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ounts of each item
.

Interest rate exposure
M

aturity dates
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis

C
arrying

Am
ount

Surplus
Equity

Surplus
Equity

2014
$000

$000
$000

$000
$000

Financial A
ssets

C
ash and cash equivalents

205,506
(2,055)

(2,055)
2,055

2,055
R

estricted cash and cash equivalents
6,817

(68)
(68)

68
68

212,323
(2,123)

(2,123)
2,123

2,123

C
arrying

Am
ount

Surplus
Equity

Surplus
Equity

2013
$000

$000
$000

$000
$000

Financial A
ssets

C
ash and cash equivalents

150,480
(1,505)

(1,505)
1,505

1,505
R

estricted cash and cash equivalents
11,512

(115)
(115)

115
115

161,992
(1,620)

(1,620)
1,620

1,620

Fair values

A
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S
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entofFinancialP
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carried
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reasonable approxim
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ise stated in the applicable notes.
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ofthe
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W
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P

C
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atthe
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reporting
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on
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surplus
forthe

period and equity for a 1%
 change in interest rates.  It is assum

ed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.

-100 basis points
+100 basis points

-100 basis points
+100 basis points
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47.
Schedule of Incom

e and Expenses by Service

2014
2013

2014
2013

2014
2013

2014
2013

$000
$000

$000
$000

$000
$000

$000
$000

C
O

ST O
F SER

VIC
ES

Expenses
Supplies and services

15,270
11,074

5,351
7,753

13,682
15,399

34,303
34,226

D
epreciation expense

0
0

0
0

3,270
2,683

3,270
2,683

Bad and doubtful debts
0

0
0

0
14

17
14

17
C

om
m

ittee/board fees
110

122
86

77
79

76
275

275
G

rants and subsidies
38

0
3,525

6,428
463

1,932
4,026

8,360
R

evaluation decrem
ent

0
0

0
0

0
19,937

0
19,937

C
om

pensation paym
ent

0
0

0
0

5,715
2,643

5,715
2,643

O
ther expenses

57
49

449
264

1,006
995

1,512
1,308

Total cost of services
15,475

11,245
9,411

14,522
24,229

43,682
49,115

69,449

Incom
e 

R
evenue

G
rants from

 other bodies
0

0
0

1,160
30

30
30

1,190
R

evaluation increm
ent

0
0

0
0

48,637
0

48,637
0

R
ental revenue

0
0

0
0

6,617
6,375

6,617
6,375

U
ser fees and charges

13,330
8,400

1,095
1,020

441
3

14,866
9,423

Interest revenue
1,482

1,565
1,482

1,565
1,483

1,566
4,447

4,696
O

ther revenue
8

208
19

212
1,191

970
1,218

1,390
Total R

evenue
14,820

10,173
2,596

3,957
58,399

8,944
75,815

23,074

G
ains

G
ain on disposal of non-current assets

0
0

0
0

6,844
4,780

6,844
4,780

Total G
ains

0
0

0
0

6,844
4,780

6,844
4,780

Total incom
e other than incom

e from
 State 

G
overnm

ent
14,820

10,173
2,596

3,957
65,243

13,724
82,659

27,854

N
ET C

O
ST O

F SER
VIC

ES 
655

1,072
6,815

10,565
(41,014)

29,958
(33,544)

41,595

Statutory Planning
Strategic Planning

Asset M
anagem

ent
Total
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State grants and contributions
0

0
268

301
0

50
268

351
Service appropriation

29,804
14,324

18,706
18,497

44,782
55,644

93,292
88,465

R
esources received free of charge

1
0

1
0

1
0

3
0

Total incom
e from

 State G
overnm

ent
29,805

14,324
18,975

18,798
44,783

55,694
93,563

88,816

Surplus/(deficit) for the period
29,150

13,252
12,160

8,233
85,797

25,735
127,107

47,221

The Schedule of Incom
e and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction w

ith the accom
panying notes.





WESTERN AUSTRALIAN PLANNING COMMISSION
PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Government Goal

WAPC and Government Desired Outcomes and Key Performance Indicators

The WAPC’s Mission is to formulate and coordinate land use strategies for Western Australia to facilitate its growth while
continuously enhancing its unique quality of life and environment. In this way the WAPC contributes to the Government's goals
outlined in the table below. 

Outcomes and Key Effectiveness Indicators

WAPC Level Government Desired Outcome: Land use planning and land use implementation strategies to guide the 
State's long-term urban settlement and economic development.

The WAPC is not the sole determinant of land availability, as, for a number of reasons, not all preliminary approvals (which reflect
a bank of developable land from which developers can draw) go through to the final approval stage. These include external
factors such as availability of raw materials, interest rates, developer capacity and market conditions. Therefore, the WAPC is
only able to respond to applications lodged for preliminary and final approval. These measures are extracted from the Department
of Planning's electronic administrative subdivision tracking system and are published in the quarterly bulletin entitled State Lot
Activity.

The WAPC seeks to provide sufficient land for housing to accommodate the anticipated future population growth of the State. To
this end, the WAPC plays an important role by ensuring sufficient zoned urban land and facilitating orderly land release through
structure planning and issuing subdivision approvals throughout the State. The WAPC is partnered with the Department of
Planning in this process. The WAPC issued final approvals for 1,895 subdivisions during 2013/14 (Perth and Peel) to the land
development industry.  

Why are the indicators considered relevant to the outcomes and services?

The efficiency indicators incorporate the cost of each service and as such gauge the overall efficiency in achieving the desired
outcome.

Why they are key indicators of performance?

Effectiveness Indicator: % of planning applications determined within set statutory parameters.

The indicators chosen directly measure the WAPC's effectiveness and efficiency in producing services and meeting the service
objectives.

How can the indicators assist the reader to assess performance?

The effectiveness indicators inform the reader how well the land use planning activities of the WAPC contribute to the
development of Land Use Planning and Land Use implementation Strategies that guide the State's long term urban settlement
and economic development. Results can be compared with previous years performance (where available) or with like service
providers in other States. Efficiency indicators gauge the cost of each service based on a measurable unit of quantity. For
example, results are presented on a $cost per decision or per hectare managed basis for easy comprehension.

The planning community comprises the WAPC's primary client group and consists of a wide range of individuals, companies,
agencies and groups involved in the land use planning process. The level of usefulness of the WAPC's activities to this client
group directly measures how effective the WAPC is in guiding the State's long term urban settlement and economic development.

Services

1. Statutory Planning

2. Strategic Planning

3. Asset Management

Desired Outcome

Land use planning and land
use implementation
strategies to guide the
State's long-term urban
settlement and economic
development.

State Building - Major Projects
Building strategic infrastructure that will
create jobs and underpin Western
Australia's long-term economic
development.



2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

- Metropolitan Perth 84% 81% 100% 75%

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

- Country Western Australia 68% 93% 100% 95%

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Determinations which were processed
without a successful appeal 99% 99% 99% 99%

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Applications processed within the
statutory timeframes 76% 84% 80% 79%

Effectiveness Indicator: 

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Planning decisions - strategic,
environment, industry, infrastructure,
transport

101% 89% 100% 112%

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Effectiveness Indicator: Determinations which were processed without a successful appeal

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Effectiveness Indicator: Applications processed within the statutory timeframes

Extra reports submitted due
to an increase in MRS
amendments and strategic
reports referred to the WAPC
for decisions

The percentage of determinations made without successful applications for review provides an indicator of the WAPC's
effectiveness in the application of the State Planning Framework . Effective application of this framework delivers efficient
decisions and ensures that new land is adequately serviced. Where a determination is successfully challenged by demonstrating
flaws in the application of policy, additional costs may be incurred both by the developer and subsequently by land purchasers.
The indicator is the percentage of all subdivision, strata and development determinations made that are not successfully
"reviewed" (i.e. upheld) before the State Administrative Tribunal (SAT). The data shows that 4 applications for review before the
SAT were upheld in 2013-14,and that  4,198 subdivisions, strata and development applications were determined.  

The WAPC determines land use planning applications put to it. This indicator measures the timeframe efficiency of the statutory
approval processes employed by the WAPC.

Planning decisions - strategic, environment, industry, infrastructure, transport

Also to determine the effectiveness of statutory and strategic planning activities, an external survey is undertaken with the clients
of the land use planning system (developers, infrastructure departments, local authorities and other stakeholders). Specific
strategies, programs, plans, policies and statutory activities which guide the State's long term urban settlement and economic
growth are nominated within the survey and clients are requested to rate the WAPC's effectiveness with regard to those activities.
The results of the survey (shown below) measure directly the effectiveness of the WAPC.

The WAPC conducts an annual survey of its clients seeking their views on the activities of the WAPC in a wide range of planning
areas. Research Solutions, an independent research consultancy, conducted the 2014 survey using an online questionnaire. A
response rate of 25% (24% in 2013) equal to 395 responses out of a population of 1,443 was achieved, with a confidence level of
95% and a sampling error at 95% confidence level of +/-4.8%.

Large number of applications
received at the end of June
2013 which caused delays in
processing. This backlog has
now been cleared.



Client Survey
Usefulness of Statutory Planning 
Activities

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

(Rated useful or better)
-Not Useful 20% 17% 7% 7% 7%
-Neutral 24% 24% 13% 15% 20%
-Useful 56% 59% 80% 78% 73%

Client Survey
Usefulness of Strategic Planning 
Activities

2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14

(Rated useful or better)
-Not Useful 20% 22% 8% 14% 12%
-Neutral 27% 22% 24% 22% 24%
-Useful 53% 56% 68% 64% 64%

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Client satisfaction with strategic
planning activities (via survey) 73% 73% 75% 65%

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Client satisfaction with the timeliness 
of strategic planning activities (via 
survey)

55% 53% 65% 48%

Success in Conversion of Structure Plans 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
-Area actioned in Hectares (running total) 40,956 46,165 46,506 46,760 47,477
-Target Area in Hectares 55,558 55,558 55,558 55,558 55,558
-% of Target Area Actioned 73.7% 83.10% 83.70% 84.16% 85.50%

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Effectiveness Indicator: Client satisfaction with strategic planning activities (via survey)

Effectiveness Indicator: Client satisfaction with the timeliness of strategic planning activities (via survey)

Over optimistic target set
given previous results

Not expressed in survey 

The WAPC maintains sophisticated Geographic Information Systems (GIS) and the figures used in this measure are derived from
those systems.

The WAPC sets in place structure plans that form the long term framework for the development of urban areas. A measure of the
effectiveness of the WAPC is the success in converting structure plans into statutory zones.

A structure plan is a non-statutory land use program produced after a broad scale plan has been formulated. The structure plan
provides detail regarding the different types of land uses in a given area, how they relate to each other, what movement systems
are provided and includes, the amount of housing and industrial land, and open space provision. Structure plans form the basis
of local planning schemes or amendments to schemes. A local planning scheme is a statutory land use plan usually produced by
a local government and consists of land reserved for certain public purposes, and that land is zoned for a variety of different land
uses  (eg. Residential, commercial, industrial, open space).

Structure plans developed by the WAPC directly contribute to the State’s long term urban settlement and economic development
by ensuring that appropriate land is available through the implementation of statutory zones to meet population growth, that
supporting infrastructure is put in place whilst addressing other social outcomes such as environmental sustainability.

Effectiveness Indicator: Usefulness of Statutory Planning activities

Effectiveness Indicator: Usefulness of Strategic Planning activities

Effectiveness Indicator: Success in Conversion of Structure Plans

The survey undertakes satisfaction levels of various planning activities. Whilst a target rate of 100% useful would be an ideal
outcome there is there is no set target figure set each year due to the scope of the survey.



2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Acquisitions - acceptances within
approved range 95% 91% 95% 100%

Disposals - realised in excess of
reserved price 100% 100% 100% 100%

Acquisitions - approved schedule
acquired within period 95% 105% 100% 90%

Disposals - approved schedule
disposed within period 278% 205% 100% 132%

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Available days tenanted 97% 95% 96% 97%

Approved management program
achieved 89% 95% 92% 53%

Approved management plan activities
achieved 89% 95% 92% 53%

Service 1: Statutory Planning

Effectiveness Indicator: Occupancy rate and management of rental properties

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Efficiency Indicator: Average cost per application determined

The WAPC's measures of efficiency are formulated to measure the cost per planning activity. The overall cost to the State of
providing a land use planning service on a per capita basis and as a proportion of the State's economic activity is a macro level
indicator that gauges the efficiency of the WAPC.

Extra sales generated due to
ongoing disposal of surplus
land

Staff shortages due to
sickness and injury. 

Effectiveness Indicator: Price and timing for acquisition and disposal of land for region schemes

Staff shortages due to
sickness and injury. 

Reasons for Significant
Variance

The WAPC determines land use planning applications put to it. This indicator measures the cost efficiency of the statutory
approval processes employed by the WAPC.

Service Description: Utilisation of statutory, consultative, legislative, regulatory reform and coordination processes that
facilitate the implementation of creative and innovative strategic regional and local plans and policies.

Why is planning cost in relation to the size of the State's population and economic activity a key indicator of our performance?
The WAPC sets in place land use plans and strategies to guide the State's long term urban settlement and economic
development. These indicators of performance measure how efficiently the WAPC is conducting land use planning activities on a
completion, time and cost basis.

Key Efficiency Indicators

Wherever possible, the WAPC leases residential and commercial buildings on acquired land until it is utilised for the purpose of
its reservation.  The WAPC aims to maximise rental income on the basis of high occupancy rates and market rentals.

The prices for the acquisition and disposal of land are negotiated with reference to both internal and independent valuation
information. This ensures that a fair price is determined for both parties to the transactions. Timing of acquisitions and disposals
is important to ensure that land is acquired when needed and that land is disposed of in accordance with a planned program.  



2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Average cost per application
determined $2,833 $3,273 $4,423 $3,686

Service 2: Strategic Planning

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Average cost per planning decision - 
strategic, environment, industry, 
infrastructure and transport

$63,322 $82,045 $95,339 $50,870

Service 3: Asset Management

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Efficiency Indicator: Average cost per planning decision - strategic, environment, industry, infrastructure and transport

Reasons for Significant
Variance

Increased efficiencies in
processing applications. The
upturn in the property market
has seen an increase in the
number of applications
received

Increase in the number of
reports submitted to the
WAPC and reduced costs
associated with strategic
projects

The indicator is derived by dividing the full cost of Statutory Planning services by the number of statutory planning decisions made
in the financial year. The figures are sourced from the WAPC's financial system and from an internal database which tracks the
number of applications received/determined.

The indicator is derived by dividing the full management costs (excluding revaluation increments) associated with property
activities by the number of hectares under management as shown. The figures are sourced from the WAPC's financial system
and from and in-house property database system that tracks property holdings and transactions.  

Efficiency Indicator: Cost of management of land acquired for region schemes

Service Description: The development and advancement of planning strategies, policies and information systems that
guide the State's long-term urban settlement, industrial and economic development and the management of the
environment in such a way that reflects the aspirations of the Western Australian community for a high quality of life.

The WAPC provides a wide range of Strategic Planning services in Western Australia. The indicators measure the output of
decisions and the extent to which the WAPC's clients rate the Strategic Planning activities of the WAPC as being useful or better.

Service Description: The acquisition, management and disposal of properties reserved under the Metropolitan, Peel and
Greater Bunbury Region Schemes for primary and other regional roads, parks and recreation and regional open space
areas, special uses including planning control area and improvement plans and major land development projects.

The WAPC makes decisions on a wide range of strategic land use planning matters. This indicator measures the cost efficiency
of the WAPC in coming to its strategic decisions.

The indicator is derived by dividing the full cost of Strategic Planning services by the number of strategic planning decisions made
in the financial year. The figures are sourced from the WAPC's financial system and from an internal database which tracks the
number of Strategic Planning decisions made.

The WAPC holds properties with a value in excess of $634 million (fair value). These properties are held for a variety of purposes, 
but in the main are for park and recreational use, as well as for road and highway reserves. The cost per hectare of managing
these properties is a measure of cost efficiency for this service.



2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2013-14
Actual Actual Target Actual

Hectares managed:
- Improvement plans, regional roads

and other uses (includes rental
properties)

3,502 3,387 3,450 3,389

 - Parks and recreation reserves 10,603 10,425 10,500 10,684

Average cost per hectare managed $1,781 $1,719 $1,480 $1,722
Increase in cost associated
with arbitration settlements 

Reasons for Significant
Variance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Department of Planning. 
 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014, the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash 
Flows, Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service, Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by 
Service, and Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates for the 
year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information, including Administered transactions and balances.  
 
Director General’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Director General is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and 
the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Director General determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements 
relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Department’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Director General, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Department of Planning at 30 June 2014 and its 
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions. 
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Report on Controls 
I have audited the controls exercised by the Department of Planning during the year ended  
30 June 2014 
 
Controls exercised by the Department of Planning are those policies and procedures established 
by the Director General to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions. 
 
Director General’s Responsibility for Controls 
The Director General is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to 
ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of 
public and other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial 
Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Department of Planning based on my audit conducted in accordance 
with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of controls 
to ensure that the Department complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and implementation 
of relevant controls. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Department of Planning are sufficiently adequate to 
provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the 
acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Report on the Key Performance Indicators 
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Department of Planning for the year ended 
30 June 2014.  
 
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
Director General’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators 
The Director General is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key 
performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer’s Instructions and for such controls as the Director General determines necessary to 
ensure that the key performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
and Assurance Standards.  
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Director General’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of 
outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Department of Planning are relevant and 
appropriate to assist users to assess the Department’s performance and fairly represent 
indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2014. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements.  
 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators 
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
Department of Planning for the year ended 30 June 2014 included on the Department’s website. 
The Department’s management is responsible for the integrity of the Department’s website. This 
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the Department’s website. The auditor’s 
report refers only to the financial statements and key performance indicators described above. It 
does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from 
these financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the financial statements and 
key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks arising from publication on a 
website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements and key 
performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this website version of the financial 
statements and key performance indicators. 
 

 
GLEN CLARKE 
ACTING AUDITOR GENERAL 
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA 
Perth, Western Australia 
16 September 2014 
 











































































































 	  

Department	  of	  Planning	  Level	  Government	  Desired	  Outcomes	  	  
and	  Key	  Performance	  Indicators	  

	  
The	  breadth	  and	  diversity	  of	  the	  Department	  of	  Planning’s	  (the	  Department)	  functions	  and	  services	  means	  that	  
the	  Department	  contributes	   to	  many	  of	   the	  Government’s	   strategic	  goals.	   	  The	  Department’s	  most	   significant	  
contributions	  to	  the	  Government's	  goals	  are	  outlined	  in	  the	  tabled	  below.1	  
	  

Government	  Goal	   Department	  Desired	  Outcomes	   Department	  Services	  

Outcomes	  Based	  Service	  
Delivery	  	  
Greater	  focus	  on	  achieving	  
results	  in	  key	  service	  delivery	  
areas	  for	  the	  benefit	  of	  all	  
Western	  Australians.	  

Integration	  of	  land	  systems	  that	  
facilitate	  economic	  
development.	  	  

Integrated	  Land	  and	  	  
Infrastructure	  Policy	  Development	  	  

Accessibility	  to	  serviced	  land	  and	  
infrastructure	  

Land	  Accessibility	  Planning	  and	  Policy	  
Development	  

	  
During	   the	  year	   the	  Department	  of	  Treasury	  approved	  abolition	  of	   the	   following	  performance	  measures	   from	  
the	  Department’s	  Outcome	  Structure:	  

• People	  in	  the	  metropolitan	  region	  that	  live	  within	  ten	  minutes	  of	  a	  major	  public	  transport	  route	  	  
Within	  a	  10	  minute	  walk	  to	  a	  bus	  stop,	  Within	  a	  10	  minute	  ride	  to	  a	  railway	  station,	  Within	  10	  minute	  
car	  travel	  to	  a	  railway	  station);	  and	  

• Avoided	  land	  consumption	  costs.	  
	  
For	  comparisons	  purposes	  with	  previous	  years,	  the	  2013-‐14	  actuals	  for	  the	  above	  performance	  measures	  have	  
been	  reported	  on	  pages	  53.	  	  
	  
DoP Level Government Desired Outcome: 
Integration of land systems that facilitate economic development 
	  
Effectiveness	  Indicator:	   Proportion	  of	  zoned	  land	  in	  the	  metropolitan	  area	  that	  is	  400	  metres/1	  kilometre	  

from	  major	  transport	  systems.	  
	  
The	   Department,	   through	   its	   land-‐planning	   role,	   determines	   the	   location	   of	   major	   transport	   routes,	   their	  
suitability	   for	   a	   range	   of	   transport	   services	   and	   their	   proximity	   to	   urban	   areas.	   	   The	   term	   “major	   transport	  
routes”	  includes	  all	  major	  roads	  and	  railway	  lines	  which	  buses	  and	  trains	  use	  as	  the	  main	  connecting	  corridors,	  
but	  excludes	  minor	  suburban	  roads.	  	  	  
	  
Convenient	  access	  to	  major	  transport	  systems	  pays	  significant	  economic	  dividends	  through:	  	  

• facilitating	  commuting	  to	  industrial	  centres;	  	  
• linking	  consumers	  to	  products	  and	  services;	  	  
• enabling	  the	  efficient	  transport	  of	  freight;	  and	  
• reducing	  private	  usage	  road	  infrastructure	  costs.	  

	  
Enabling	  ease	  of	  access	  to	  major	  public	  transport	  systems	  also	  allows	  development	  to	  occur	  sustainably	  through	  
reduced	  greenhouse	  gases	  and	  greater	  reliance	  on	  environmentally	  friendly	  transport	  options.	   	   In	  this	  context,	  
major	  transport	  systems	  are	  primary	  regional	  roads,	  other	  regional	  roads	  and	  railway	  stations	  as	  defined	  in	  the	  
Regional	  Scheme.	  	  

                                                
 
1  The	  Department	  is	  undertaking	  a	  review	  of	  its	  Outcome	  Structure	  and	  KPIs.	  Subject	  to	  approval,	  it	  is	  anticipated	  the	  Department	  may	  
commence	  reporting	  against	  new	  KPIs	  in	  2015-‐2016. 



 	  

	  
Where	   the	   proportion	   of	   zoned	   land	   that	   meets	   the	   international	   benchmark	   of	   400	   metres	   from	   major	  
transport	  systems	  is	  trending	  upwards	  or	  remains	  constant,	  the	  Department	  demonstrates	  achievement	  of	  land	  
and	  transport	  integration.	  	  
	  
This	   indicator	   is	  calculated	   from	  the	  Local/Town	  Planning	  Scheme	   Information	  extracted	  using	  the	  Geographic	  
Information	  System	  (GIS).	   	  This	  GIS	  is	  a	  spatial	  database	  consisting	  of	  mapping	  characteristics	  and	  coordinates.	  	  
The	  data	  extracted	  represents	  percentages	  of	  land	  for	  selected	  residential	  density	  codes	  (R-‐Codes)	  proximity	  to	  
major	  transport	  routes.	  	  The	  data	  is	  for	  the	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  area	  only.	  
	  
	   2010-‐11	  

Actual	  
2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

Proportion	  of	  zoned	  
land	  in	  the	  
metropolitan	  area	  that	  
is	  400	  metres/1	  
kilometre	  from	  major	  
transport	  systems.	  

	   	   	   	   	  

	  

	  -‐	  Less	  than	  R20	  :	  400m	   40.5%	   40.5%	   40.2% 40.5%	   40.1%	   	  

	  -‐	  Less	  than	  R20	  :	  1	  km	   78.8%	   78.7%	   78.2% 78.6%	   78.2%	   	  

	  -‐	  R20	  :	  400m	   59.9%	   59.9%	   60.0% 59.9%	   59.1%	   	  

	  -‐	  R20	  :	  1	  km	   95.2%	   95.2%	   95.1% 95.2%	   95.0%	   	  

	  -‐	  Greater	  than	  R20	  :	  
400m	  

60.8%	   60.9%	   60.6% 60.8%	   60.6%	   	  

	  -‐	  Greater	  than	  R20	  :	  
1km	   95.9%	   96.1%	   95.9% 95.9%	   95.9%	   	  

	   	  



 	  

Effectiveness	  Indicator:	  	  Area	  of	  commercial	  and	  industrial	  land	  per	  capita	  per	  corridor	  
	  
One	   of	   the	   objectives	   sought	   from	   the	   integration	   of	   land	   and	   transport	   is	   economic	   development	   through	  
enhanced	  employment	  self-‐sufficiency	   in	  metropolitan	  planning	  sectors.	   	   In	  other	  words,	  people	   that	   live	   in	  a	  
suburb	  are	  able	  to	  find	  work	  in	  that	  suburb.	  	  Employment	  self-‐sufficiency	  yields	  several	  benefits	  including:	  	  

• minimising	   environmental	   impacts	   through	   reducing	   the	   need	   for	   long	   car	   journeys	   to	   places	   of	  
employment;	  	  

• revitalising	  suburbs	  through	  increased	  local	  employment;	  	  
• maximising	  utilisation	  of	  infrastructure	  and	  services	  through	  greater	  density	  in	  prescribed	  areas;	  and	  	  
• social	   benefits	   including	   improved	   work/life	   balance	   through	   reduced	   commuting	   times	   and	   an	  

enhanced	  sense	  of	  community.	  	  
	  
The	  Department	  can	  directly	  influence	  the	  creation	  of	  jobs	  in	  specific	  geographical	  areas,	  through	  ensuring	  that	  
land	  is	  available	  for	  commercial	  and	  industrial	  purposes.	  	  Western	  Australia	  has	  many	  opportunities	  to	  promote	  
and	  foster	  continued	  strong	  and	  sustainable	  economic	  growth	  in	  commerce,	  industry	  and	  trade.	  	  These	  have	  and	  
will	   continue	   to	   provide	   an	   expanded	   financial	   base	   to	  Government	   for	  meeting	   growing	   community	   lifestyle	  
expectations.	  Responding	  to	  the	  needs	  of	  this	  growth	  potential,	  along	  with	  responding	  to	  the	  general	  needs	  of	  
population	  growth,	  has	  and	  will	  continue	  to	  require	  careful	  planning	  and	  management	  of	   the	  State's	   land	  use	  
and	   infrastructure	   requirements.	   	   As	   the	   Department	   has	   significant	   involvement	   in	   this	   role	   through	   the	  
provision	  of	  effective	  and	  timely	  advice,	  the	  Department	  can	  therefore	  make	  a	  substantial	  contribution	  to	  the	  
State's	  economic	  and	  social	  development	  goals.	  	  
	  
Where	   the	   percentage	   of	   commercial	   and	   industrial	   land,	   per	   capita	   per	   planning	   sector	   increases,	   the	  
Department	  demonstrates	  its	  contribution	  to	  fostering	  economic	  development.	  
	  
To	  calculate	  this	  indicator,	  industrial	  and	  commercial	  zoned	  land	  in	  Local	  Authority	  Town	  Planning	  Schemes	  and	  
the	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  Region	  Schemes	  are	  combined	  with	  planning	  sector	  boundaries	  and	  the	  resulting	   land	  
area	   summed	   by	   planning	   sector.	   	   Land	   areas	   per	   capita	   are	   determined	   by	   dividing	   these	   areas	   by	   the	  
population2	  in	  each	  planning	  sector.	  	  
	  
	   2010-‐11	  

Actual	  
2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

Area	  of	  commercial	  
and	  industrial	  land	  
per	  capita	  per	  
corridor:	  

	   	   	   	   	   	  

	  -‐	  Eastern	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

9.4m2	   9.1m2	   9.0m2 9.0m2	   9.6m2 	  

	  -‐	  Eastern	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	   74.7m2	   78.2m2	   96.7m2 77.2m2	   93.3m2 

The	  target	  was	  determined	  
based	  on	  the	  2011-‐12	  actual	  
and	  prior	  to	  the	  2012-‐13	  actual	  
data	  being	  available	  resulting	  
in	  the	  target	  not	  being	  an	  
accurate	  reflection	  of	  the	  
current	  trend.	  However	  the	  
actual	  for	  2013-‐14	  remains	  
consistent	  with	  the	  previous	  
year’s	  result.	  

                                                
 
2 The	  population	  data	  is	  based	  on	  the	  report	  Regional	  Population	  Growth,	  Australia,	  2012-‐13,	  Australian	  Bureau	  of	  Statistics,	  3218.0	  	  -‐	  Estimated	  Resident	  
Population,	  by	  Local	  Government	  Area,	  Western	  Australia.,	  released	  3	  April	  2014 



 	  

	   2010-‐11	  
Actual	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

	  -‐	  Inner	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

32.0m2	   31.1m2	   30.4m2 31.0m2	   29.6m2 	  

	  -‐	  Inner	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	   12.5m2	   12.2m2	   11.8m2	   12.1m2	   11.4m2 	  

	  -‐	  Middle	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

22.2m2	   21.4m2	   20.6m2	   21.3m2	   20.8m2	   	  

	  -‐	  Middle	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	   61.9m2	   62.2m2	   59.8m2	   61.6m2	   58.7m2 	  

	  -‐	  North	  West	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

35.5m2	   34.4m2	   33.4m2	   34m2	   39.5m2 

Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  219Ha	  of	  
commercial	  land	  being	  added	  to	  
the	  North	  West	  sector.	  

	  -‐	  North	  West	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	   58.7m2	   59.1m2	   57.3m2	   57.5m2	   55.2m2 	  

-‐	  South	  East	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

12.4m2	   14.0m2	   13.0m2	   14.0m2	   17.7m2 

Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  115Ha	  Commercial	  
land	  being	  added	  to	  the	  South	  
East	  sector.	  

-‐	  South	  East	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	   55.4m2	   53.2m2	   63.6m2	   52.6m2	   60.4m2 	  

-‐	  South	  West	  Sector	  –	  
Commercial	  per	  
capita	  

21.9m2	   21.5m2	   20.9m2	   20.5m2	   27.3m2 	  	  

-‐	  South	  West	  Sector	  –	  
Industrial	  per	  capita	   159.3m2	   152.4m2	   139.9m2	   150.7m2	   134.1m2 

Zoning	  changes	  resulted	  in	  
approximately	  73Ha	  of	  Industrial	  
land	  being	  removed	  from	  the	  
South	  West	  sector.	  

-‐	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  
Region	  –	  Commercial	  
per	  capita	  

23.5m2	   23.0m2	   22.2m2	   22.5m2	   24.8m2 	  

-‐	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  
Region	  –	  Industrial	  
per	  capita	  

67.5m2	   67.0m2	   67.9m2	   66.3m2	   63.7m2 	  

	  
	   	  



 	  

EFFICIENCY	  KEY	  PERFORMANCE	  INDICATORS	  
	  
Service	  1:	  Integrated	  Land	  and	  Infrastructure	  Policy	  Development	  
	  
By	  shaping	  the	  pattern	  of	  development	  and	  influencing	  the	  location,	  scale,	  density,	  design	  and	  mix	  of	  land	  uses	  
it	  contributes	  to	  the	  Government’s	  goal,	  Outcomes	  Based	  Service	  Delivery	  by:	  

• ensuring	  flexibility	  to	  meet	  the	  demands	  of	  a	  changing	  economy	  and	  market	  environments;	  and	  
• maximising	  the	  use	  of	  existing	  infrastructure	  rather	  than	  incurring	  the	  costs	  of	  green	  fields	  infrastructure	  

with	  its	  resulting	  impact	  on	  home	  affordability.	  
	  
	  

Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2010-‐11	  
Actual	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  Significant	  
Variance	  

Average	  cost	  per	  policy	  
hour	  for	  integrated	  
land	  policy	  
development	  

$99.51	   $119.19	   $113.25	   $96.44	   $131.08	  

The	  variance	  between	  
the	  target	  and	  actual	  
for	  2013-‐14	  arose	  when	  
the	  budget	  was	  recast	  
to	  ensure	  the	  
Department	  was	  fully	  
funded	  in	  2013-‐14	  and	  
in	  the	  out	  years.	  
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DoP Level Government Desired Outcome: 
Accessibility to serviced land and infrastructure 
	  
	  
Effectiveness	  Indicator:	  	   Number	  of	  lots	  given	  preliminary	  and	  final	  approval	  	  
	  
The	  Department	  seeks	  to	  provide	  sufficient	  land	  for	  housing	  to	  accommodate	  the	  anticipated	  future	  population	  
growth	  of	   the	  State.	   	  To	   this	  end,	   the	  Department	  plays	  an	   important	   role	  by	  ensuring	  sufficient	  zoned	  urban	  
land	   and	   facilitating	   orderly	   land	   release	   through	   structure	   planning	   and	   issuing	   subdivision	   approvals	  
throughout	  the	  State.	  	  The	  Department	  is	  partnered	  with	  the	  Western	  Australian	  Planning	  Commission	  (WAPC)	  
in	  this	  process.	  	  
	  
The	  Department	   issued	   final	  approvals	   for	  15,580	  new	  residential	   lots	  during	  2013-‐14	   (Perth	  and	  Peel)	   to	   the	  
land	  development	  industry.	  	  The	  corresponding	  total	  Statewide	  figure	  for	  final	  approvals	  for	  residential	  lots	  was	  
17,781.	  
	  
The	  Department	  is	  not	  the	  sole	  determinant	  of	  land	  availability,	  as	  for	  a	  number	  of	  reasons,	  not	  all	  preliminary	  
approvals	   (which	   reflect	  a	  bank	  of	  developable	   land	   from	  which	  developers	  can	  draw)	  go	   through	   to	   the	   final	  
approval	   stage.	   	   These	   include	   external	   factors	   such	   as	   availability	   of	   raw	  materials,	   interest	   rates,	   developer	  
capacity	   and	   market	   conditions.	   	   Therefore,	   the	   Department	   (via	   the	   WAPC)	   is	   only	   able	   to	   respond	   to	  
applications	  lodged	  for	  preliminary	  and	  final	  approval.	  
	  
These	  measures	  are	  extracted	  from	  the	  Department's	  electronic	  administrative	  subdivision	  tracking	  system	  and	  
are	  published	  in	  the	  quarterly	  bulletin	  entitled	  State	  Lot	  Activity.	  Analysis	  of	  trends	  relating	  to	  the	  number	  of	  lots	  
given	  preliminary	  or	  final	  approval	  should	  be	  undertaken	  separately	  as	  each	  indicator	  can	  respond	  differently	  to	  
the	  prevailing	  market	  conditions.	  
	  
	   2010-‐11	  

Actual	  
2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

Number	  of	  lots	  given	  
preliminary	  and	  final	  
approval	  

	   	   	   	   	   	  

	  -‐	  Residential	   38,041	   36,133	   41,027	   43,370	   44,759	   	  
	  -‐	  Non-‐Residential	   6,569	   6,364	   5,095	   4,560	   2,221	   Non-‐residential	  

subdivision	  activity	  is	  
subject	  to	  demand	  cycles,	  
which	  create	  year-‐on-‐
year	  variations	  to	  the	  
total	  number	  of	  lots	  
approved.	  

	   	  



 	  

Effectiveness	  Indicator:	  	   Median	  land	  price	  as	  a	  percentage	  of	  median	  residential	  property	  sales	  
price	  

	  
This	   indicator	  details	   land	   costs	   compared	   to	  median	  house	   sale	  prices.	   	   The	  Department	  has	   some	  effect	  on	  
median	   land	   prices	   by	   ensuring	   that	   there	   is	   sufficient	   stock	   of	   approved	   land	   suitable	   for	   development	   or	  
redevelopment,	  although	  the	  principal	  price	  determinants	  are	  supply	  and	  demand	  in	  the	  market	  itself.	  	  
	  
This	  indicator	  is	  useful	  because	  it	  disaggregates	  the	  price	  of	  residential	  land	  from	  the	  price	  of	  houses.	  	  The	  actual	  
for	  2013-‐14	  for	  the	  whole	  of	  Western	  Australia	  is	  48%	  while	  the	  actual	  for	  Perth	  is	  57%.	  
	  
Median	  sales	  prices	  (derived	  from	  sales	  information	  obtained	  from	  Landgate)	  are	  quoted	  for	  houses	  and	  vacant	  
land	  in	  the	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  areas	  and	  for	  the	  whole	  of	  the	  State	  in	  the	  quarterly	  REIWA	  Market	  Update.	  	  This	  
indicator	   is	   calculated	   by	   expressing	   the	  median	   land	   price	   as	   a	   percentage	   of	   the	  median	   established	   house	  
price	  for	  the	  Perth	  metropolitan	  area.	  
	  
	   2010-‐11	  

Actual	  
2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

Median	  land	  price	  as	  a	  
percentage	  of	  median	  
residential	  property	  sales	  
price	  

55%	   57%	   54%	   55%	   57%	   	  

	  
	  
Effectiveness	  Indicator:	  	   Relative	  Affordability	  of	  property	  and	  land	  prices	  
	  
This	   indicator	   compares	   the	   cost	   of	   existing	   property	   and	   land	   prices	   with	   that	   of	   other	   mainland	   and	   non-‐
territory	   capital	   cities.	   	   Given	   that	   housing	   and	   land	   costs	   are	   a	   function	   of	   land	   supply,	   it	   is	   reasonable	   to	  
assume	  that	  relative	  affordability	  of	  housing	  and	  land	  indicate	  effective	  management	  of	  land	  supply	  in	  support	  
of	  economic	  outcomes.	  	  
	  
This	   indicator	  measures	  the	  comparative	  number	  of	  weeks	  that	  a	  home	  purchaser	  requires	  to	  pay	  off	  a	  house	  
purchase	  in	  the	  major	  capital	  cities.	  It	  is	  a	  function	  of	  the	  median	  house	  prices	  of	  each	  of	  those	  cities	  over	  the	  
average	  weekly	  earnings.	  	  
	  
Data	  for	  this	  indicator	  is	  sourced	  from	  the	  REIWA	  publication	  Market	  Facts3	  and	  the	  Average	  Weekly	  Earnings4,	  
published	  by	  the	  Australian	  Bureau	  of	  Statistics.	  	  	  
	  
	   2010-‐11	  

Actual	  
2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

Relative	  affordability	  of	  
property	  and	  land	  prices	  

Lowest	  
quintile	  

Lowest	  
quintile	  

Lowest	  
quintile	  

Lowest	  
quintile	  

Second	  
quintile	  

	  

	  
	   	  

                                                
 
3 March	  Quarter	  2014 (Cat	  no.	  6302)	  
4 November	  2013 



 	  

Effectiveness	  Indicator:	  	  	   Average	  lot	  size	  in	  the	  Perth	  Metropolitan	  Region	  
	  
In	   addition	   to	   managing	   demand	   through	   timely	   release	   of	   land	   supply,	   the	   Department	   impacts	   on	   the	  
affordability	  through	  ensuring	  that	  infrastructure	  is	  optimally	  used.	  	  
	  
The	   State	   Government’s	   submission	   to	   the	   Productivity	   Commission5	   inquiry	   into	   first	   home	   ownership	  
estimated	  savings	  to	  the	  community	  through	  redirecting	  growth	  from	  the	  urban	  fringe	  to	  areas	  of	  under-‐utilised	  
infrastructure	   as	   $30,000	   per	   lot.	   	   The	   Planning	   and	   Transport	   Research	   Centre	   (PATREC)6	   study	   found	   that	  
savings	   of	   $33,000	  per	   lot	   can	  be	   achieved	  where	   a	   contiguous	  development	   front	   is	  maintained	   rather	   than	  
allowing	   development	   to	   occur	   in	   spatially	   scattered	   sites.	   	   Therefore,	   in	   order	   for	   urban	   sprawl	   and	   its	  
associated	  costs	  to	  be	  minimised	  to	  provide	  affordable	  lots	  and	  to	  provide	  choice	  and	  variety,	  the	  sizes	  of	  newly	  
created	  lots	  should	  be	  reduced.	  
	  
The	   data	   for	   this	  measure	   refers	   to	   new	   lots	   and	   are	   obtained	   from	   the	  WAPC	   publication	   State	   Lot	   Activity	  
Report	  (June	  2014).	  	  	  
	  
	   2010-‐11	  

Actual	  
2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

Average	  lot	  size	  in	  the	  
Perth	  Metropolitan	  Region	   441m2	   413m2	   420m2	   500m2	   410m2	  

As	   a	   result	   of	   industry	  
trends	   towards	   smaller	  
lots	   due	   to	   cost	   and	  
planning	   policy	   requiring	  
diversity7,	  average	  lot	  size	  
has	   remained	   consistent	  
with	   the	   results	   from	  
previous	   years.	   This	  
means	   the	   Department	  
has	   met	   its	   aim	   of	  
lowering	   lot	   sizes	   in	   line	  
policies	   that	   facilitate	  
greater	   diversity	   and	  
customer	  choice.	  	  

	  
	   	  

                                                
 
5	  Australian	  Government	  Productivity	  Commission,	  First	  Home	  Ownership	  –	  Productivity	  Commission	  Inquiry	  Report,	  No.	  28,	  31	  March	  2004	  
6	  PATREC	  is	  a	  collaboration	  between	  the	  four	  public	  universities	  of	  Western	  Australia:	  	  Curtin	  University	  of	  Technology,	  Edith	  Cowan	  University,	  Murdoch	  
University	  and	  the	  University	  of	  Western	  Australia.	  	  It	  receives	  financial	  support	  from	  the	  Government	  of	  Western	  Australia	  through	  the	  Department	  for	  
Planning	  and	  Infrastructure	  and	  Main	  Roads	  WA.	  	  
7 As	  per	  Liveable	  Neighbourhoods	  -‐	  2004	  -‐	  Edition	  3. 



 	  

	  
Effectiveness	  Indicator:	  	   Determination	  appeals	  that	  are	  unsuccessful	  
	  
The	  percentage	  of	  determinations	  made	  without	  successful	  applications	  for	  review	  provides	  an	  indicator	  of	  the	  
Department's	  effectiveness	  in	  the	  application	  of	  the	  WAPC's	  State	  Planning	  Framework.	  	  	  
	  
Effective	   application	   of	   this	   framework	   delivers	   efficient	   decisions	   and	   ensures	   that	   new	   land	   is	   adequately	  
serviced.	   	   Where	   a	   determination	   is	   successfully	   challenged	   by	   demonstrating	   flaws	   in	   the	   Department's	  
application	   of	   policy,	   additional	   costs	   may	   be	   incurred	   both	   by	   the	   developer	   and	   subsequently	   by	   land	  
purchasers.	  	  
	  
The	  indicator	  is	  the	  number	  of	  all	  subdivision,	  strata	  and	  development	  application	  determinations	  made	  that	  are	  
not	   successfully	   "reviewed',	   (i.e.	   upheld)	   before	   the	   State	   Administrative	   Tribunal	   (SAT),	   expressed	   as	   a	  
percentage	  of	  the	  total	  number	  of	  applications	  determined	  within	  the	  reporting	  period.	  	  	  
	  
The	   data	   shows	   that	   four	   applications	   for	   review	   before	   the	   SAT	   were	   upheld	   in	   2013-‐14,	   and	   that	   4,198	  
subdivisions,	  strata	  and	  development	  applications	  were	  determined.	  
	  
	   2010-‐11	  

Actual	  
2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  Variance	  

Determination	  appeals	  that	  
are	  unsuccessful	   99.7%	   99.8%	   99.9%	   99.9%	   99.9%	   	  

	  



 	  

EFFICIENCY	  KEY	  PERFORMANCE	  INDICATORS	  
	  

Service	  2:	  Land	  Accessibility	  Planning	  and	  Policy	  Development	  
	  
This	   service	  contributes	   to	   the	  achievement	  of	   the	  outcome	  "accessibility	   to	   serviced	   land	  and	   infrastructure"	  
through:	  

• ensuring	  that	  sufficient	  land	  is	  available	  for	  purchase	  for	  both	  residential	  and	  commercial	  purposes;	  

• controlling	  lot	  sizes	  and	  therefore	  the	  costs	  of	  infrastructure	  required	  to	  service	  each	  lot;	  	  

• minimising	  delays	   and	   their	   attendant	   costs	   by	  making	   accurate,	   timely	  decisions	  on	   redevelopment	   and	  
subdivision	  proposals;	  and	  

• providing	  resources	  to	  the	  WAPC	  to	  enable:	  	  

Ø the	  acquisition	  and	  management	  of	  properties	  reserved	  under	  Perth's	  Metropolitan	  Region	  Scheme	  for	  
important	  urban	  roads,	  controlled	  access	  highways,	  parks	  and	  recreational	  reserves,	  special	  uses	  and	  
major	  land	  redevelopment	  projects;	  	  

Ø the	  disposal	  of	  surplus	  properties;	  	  
Ø the	  management	  of	  rental	  properties;	  and	  

Ø other	  special	  planning	  projects	  undertaken	  within	  the	  Perth	  metropolitan	  area.	  	  
	  

	  

Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2010-‐11	  
Actual	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  Significant	  
Variance	  

Cost	  per	  subdivision	  and	  
development	  application	  
processed	  

$6,125	   $7,645	   $6,998	   $6,473	   $5,818.71	  

The	   variance	   is	   due	   to	  
the	   increase	   in	   the	  
number	   of	   applications	  
and	   this	   has	   been	  
absorbed	   through	  
greater	   internal	  
efficiencies	   thereby	  
reducing	   the	   cost	   per	  
application.	  
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Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2010-‐11	  
Actual	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  Significant	  
Variance	  

Statutory	  planning	  
applications	  processed	  
within	  statutory	  
timeframes	  

78%	   76%	   84%	   80%	   79%	   	  
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Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2010-‐11	  
Actual	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  
Significant	  
Variance	  

Average	  cost	  per	  policy	  
and	  planning	  hour	   $101.50	   $118.39	   $112.03	   $97.18	   $125.67	  

The	  variance	  
between	  the	  
target	  and	  the	  
actual	  for	  2013-‐14	  
arose	  when	  the	  
budget	  was	  recast	  
to	  ensure	  the	  
Department	  was	  
fully	  funded	  in	  
2013-‐14	  and	  in	  the	  
out	  years	  
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Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2010-‐11	  
Actual	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  Significant	  
Variance	  

Town	  Planning	  Scheme	  
amendments	  (for	  final	  
approval)	  processed	  
within	  non-‐statutory	  
timeframes	  

51%	   44%	   49%	   60%	   28%	  

The	   target	  was	   not	  met	  
due	  to	  a	  high	  number	  of	  
complex	   amendments	  
being	   received	   during	  
the	   year	   resulting	   in	  
longer	  timeframes.	  
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Key	  Efficiency	  Indicator	   2010-‐11	  
Actual	  

2011-‐12	  
Actual	  

2012-‐13	  
Actual	  

2013-‐14	  
Target	  

2013-‐14	  
Actual	  

Reasons	  for	  Significant	  
Variance	  

Deposited	  and	  Strata	  
Plans	  endorsed	  within	  
non-‐statutory	  timeframes	  

99%	   99%	   99%	   100%	   99%	  
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